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EMBRACING
The Path Forward

he past year was one of significant accomplishment for FMC year of delivering in

the present and mindfully planning for our future

We achieved record financial performance in 2010

Sales increased 10 percent

Earnings per share before restructuring and other charges grew 17 percent

Free cash flow increased to $257 million

Return on invested capital reached 21.9 percent

FMC shareholders realized total return of 44 percent well ahead of the 15 percent

rise of the SP 500 Index and the 22 percent increase of the SP Chemicals Index

of our closest peer companies

It also was year in which we challenged ourselves to define roadmap for

our future to deliver even greater opportunity for our customers shareholders

and employees As you will read on the following pages we completed

strategic review of our entire business and developed robust growth plan

for FMC Vision 2015 In brief our vision is to be larger stronger and

more global company than we are today

We took major steps in 2010 to begin realizing that vision as we

Strategically realigned our Industrial Chemicals business to

achieve higher margins greater earnings stability and superior

return on net assets while reducing our exposure to GDP cycles

Moved from highly decentralized organizational model to

one more balanced Key functional teams were put in place

including global procurement from which we expect to realize

significant cost savings over the next five years

Increased our focus on capturing market opportunities in rapidly

developing economies by leveraging our already strong market positions

Underlying our vision is continued commitment to our core values As

always we will put satetyfirst and continue to conduct our business in an

ethical and sustainable manner

It was good year And we are confident 2011 will be another record year for

FMC as we move with resolve and passion toward realizing our vision

Pierre Brondeau

President Chief Executive Officer and

Chairman of the Board
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VSON 20Th
The Rght Chemstry

and the desfte to capitaHze

on our unique strengths and external growth strategy one

steadily expanding market that does not contemplate
opportunities By sustaining making large-scale or trans

corporate culture of innovation formational acquisitions

integnty responsibility and

customer intimacy we intend re ing
to foster The Right Chemistry We will go where the growth is

in everything we do Rapidly developing economies

RDEs are expected to deliver

Vision 2015 anticipates an more than 50 percent of FMCs Glass environmental

FMC with $5 billion in sales sales by 2015 taking ADS remediation and food safety

earnings before interest and sales beyond $2 billion driven Industrial Chemicals
taxes EDIT in the range of by annual sales growth above

$1 .2 billion greater earnings the 10 percent range
stability return on ii wn

ital in the mid We expect increasing demand We see opportunities to

strong cash gene for our unique chemistries in capture the value of common
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tightly
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key consumer and industnal

categories to fuel our growth

Increasing productivity in

food teed fiber and
bio fuel production

Agricultural Products

Food ingredients

pharmaceuticals energy

storage and electric vehicles

Specialty Chemicals

ision 201 is shared across

all FMC businesses with

ambitious yet achievable goals

toward faster growing end

markets Complementing our

organic growth initiatives is

highly focused and disciplined



LEADERSHIP
For Bold Future

Michael Wilson

President

Specialty Chemicals Group

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President

and Objet Financial Officer

Mark Douglas

President

Industrial Chemicals Group



Andrea Utecht

Executive Vice President

General Counsel and

Secretary

Milton Steele

President

Agricultural Products Group

Kenneth Garrett

Executive Vice President

Human Resources and

Corporate Communications
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VISION

THE RIGHTCHEMSTRY

WE ENVSON
AN FMCWFH

AND TOP QUAR1LE
SHAREHOLDER

LMO eade snp tea riered the

nvostment co -nmunity about Vihon 2015

Jo hg ou Dcccrn or 0010 frwostor

Co Ye ice in Now York

ownership to realize greater

efficiencies and deliver cost

savings while maintaining

strong accountability thin

business units Priority

areas of focus will be in our

procurement and global supply

chain as well as infrastructure

in ROEs to enable continued

profitable growth

Proac.tively managi ig our

portfolio We will ensure

that all FMC businesses are

strong positioned to del ver

sustained premium sales

growth and superior return

on assets

Disciplined csh deploymer
We expect to have aporox

imately $3 billion in cash for

deployment over the next

five years Our disciplined

approach to external growth is

not expected to consume all

cash available for deployment
Therefore we expect to return

significant amount of cash to

our shareholders

We launch Vision 2015 from

position of strength We are

confident in our ability to build

stronger and more obal

company Our vision is an

exciting and engaging one for

all FMO employees in every

business throughout the world

FMC Corro ator 2Oi0Annua Rcporr



FMC making reai contributbn to better and more

efficient management of our business
AurØio Pa\Anato Agricultural Diretoç Grupo SLC

FMC HAS BEEN ABLE TO STRETCH
THE USE OF ITS PORTFOLIO AND FIND
WITH NEW MOLECULES SEVERAL
APPLICATIONS THAT SERVE OUR
MARKET FMC CONTINUES TO
REINVENT ITSELF

LAs Fernando Fed Director of Operations ETH

You could say that we are strategic partners with FMC Our

of FMCs research and development which also makes our

ONE PIECE OF OUR INNOVATION

STRATEGY SEEMS COUNTER-INTUITIVE
INSTEAD OF INVENTING NEW ACTIVE

INGREDIENTS WE FIND TECHNOLOGIES
AND PRODUCTS THAT COMPLEMENT
OUR PRODUCT LINES THEN WE APPLY
OUR KNOWLEDGE TO MAKE THEM
WORK FOR OUR FOCUSED MARKETS

Kim Foster aecutive Vice President CFO FMC Corporation

FMC Corporation 2010 Annud Report



FMC HAS THE LONGSTANDING
TRADITION OF BEING

RESPONSIBLE SUPPLIER FROM
AN ENVIRONMENTAL STANDPOINT
FROM DATA STANDPOINT FROM

STAFF STANDPOINT THEY KNOW
WHAT THEYRE TALKING ABOUT

Bob Ferguson CEO General Manager Heron Lake BioEnergy

new products and formulas all contain some elements

products sell very well in the marketplace

Yao Haitao Executive President Men gniu

large growth area for us is lithium-

ion batteries for the electric vehicle

market FMC has consistently

provided high-quality product and

smooth reliable supply They also

send their technical people to work

with our customers which is beyond

our expectations

Hrosh Katano Manager

Elecrric Materials Section

Chemical Pesources Oepartment

Sojitz Corporation

FMC has applied technical expertise in the

field and personnel who are intimately involved

with the product who take lot of care not

only from the standpoint of the product

working but the safety of personnel too
John Ey President Ely Associates

FMC Corporation 2010 Annual Report



RESEARCH
That Never Seeps

Oreer

Mexico City

ME
uNY

ung NJ

vark DE

.ssemer City NC
parks GA LaZada Spain

Campinas Brazil

ness day our

engineers and

ns in labs around the

invenfin tions
rs to

ore tively

or foods offer

enient medicines

rove the quality of our

i1 and water These are

Ilmarks of our research

ievelopment efforts

ricultural Products

scouts the world for

and technologies

complementary to our

ivi lines and strategic

we call this aggregating

iologies We then test

apply develop

and commerciahze

our focus markets

take our existing

products and combine them

with third-party chemistries to

create new innovative products

that address unmet needs In

2010 we launched several new

products in number of key

markets In fact we estimate

that approximately 25 percent

of our 2010 sales came from

products that we introduced

over the past five years

Our scientists alsc evaluate

and develop new active

ingredients in partnership

with other companies Last

year we signed an agreement

with Kumiai Chemical Industry

Co Ltd for access to the

new herbicide pyroxasulfone

which complements our

recently acquired molecule

fluthiacet-methyl We expect

this combination to play an

mportant role in providing

farmers with highly effective

solution to control many of the

weeds that are resistant to

glyphosate

Enhancing Foods
Pharmaceutics

FMCs BioPolymer division

has nine laboratories on four

continents with plans to build

new Singapore food lab to

support the rapidly expand ng

Southeast Asia market In 2010

alone we launched 25 new

food ingredient products and

in 2011 we plan to introduce

the first of several new health

and nutrition ingredients

derived from brown seaweed

These II Join our robust

product line of heath and

wellness ingredients

For the pharmaceuticals

market we are using novel

biomaterials for new capsule

technologies includng

alginate-derived products This

year we unveiled Avicel DO

Corporatron 2010 Annual Repo



disinfectant was successfully

commercialized in both the

United States and Canada
offering wastewater treatment

olants an alternative to the

of chlorine Additionally

completed successful

tration trials in 2010
ntive technology

NASA using

peroxide to reduce
en oxide emissions from

coal fired power plants

ystalline cellulose

that revolutionizes the

process for

vance
uction

tools

FMC
nium

PTM which
ndle powdered

nat increases

ensity and life of

In 2010
began program with the

U.S Department of Energy to

scale up SLMP development at

our lithium research laboratories

in Bessemer City North Carolina

Ceaning SoU Water Air

Our Industrial Chemicals

business is pursuing promising

environmental applications

spanning ar sol and water

treatment We anticipate

significant growth in these

markets in the coming years
and see opportunities to

broaden our technology

platform through targeted

acquisitions of complementary
and/or adjacent technologies

In Peroxygens we deve oped
and demonstrated novel

process using hydrogen

peroxide to treat wastewater at

leading Canadian oil sands

operation VigorOx WWT
an environmentally friendly

In 2010 our Alkali Chemicals
division developed patent

pending process for production
of EnProveTM TA milled trona to

reduce air pollutants at power
plants and other industrial

facilities It enables users to

reduce cap tal costs and energy

consumption while removing
sulfur doxide sulfur trioxide

mercury and hydrochloric acid

from their stack emissions
Another new product innovation

is L/quidSodaTM less hazard
ous alternat ye to caustic soda
for the pulp and paper industry

This year we plan to break

ground on new Asia Innovation

Center in Shanghai that will

serv ce both regional customers
and global innovation across our

FMC businesses Its just one
more outgrowth of innovative

research that never rests

in 21

Our Foret business continues

to develop OFFNOx which

converts nitrogen oxide into

nitrates reducing air pollution

Used initially in building tiles the

product is being evaluated for

applications in paints metals
cement and concrete under

grant from Spain and the

European Regiona Develop
ment Fund

FMO Corporat on 20 Annua Report
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FEEDNO GROWNO WORLD
Through Abundance Appea Protection

ur diverse product portfolio

touches peoples lives daily

and nowhere is it more
evident and personal than

the food we eat Whether

its the benefits of abundant

foods that are only possible

because competing weeds and

pests are controlled or food

ingredients that improve the

texture of foods or biocides

that help ensure the

what we eat wA

right cher

basic

Today our Ewing New

Jersey innovation center for

example we are evaluating

over 20 different technolog es

that can be applied to either

increase yields or protect

crops That research could

result in stream of new

products that will provide

unique yield enhancer

solutions to farm

mouth Products like yogurt
ce cream beverages and

convenience foods are pr me
examples where texture is

nearly as important as taste

In this market we are global

supplier of unique textures

anJ ingredients derived from

cellulone making

.1 is not

er to

the best
mistries

Dffer balanced product

nc cticides and
small but

fin cides

In Specialty Ch our

texture ingredients improve the

feel of food in the consumers



In fact we work very closely

with customers around the

globe to help them launch

new products and reformulate

existing products to the unique

cultural tastes of their region

core part of the business

is helping customers extend

the lifecycles of their products

through continued innovation

In the food business being

first with proprietary technology

provides our customers with

substantial competitive

advantage Thats why we place

high priority on innovation and

customer intimacy

We expect the $35 billion food

ingredient industry to continue

its stable growth rate given

the steady rise in food demand
and ongoing improvements in

the global standa of living

food ingredients business

ror almost half of our

Chemics business
ainable

FMG .xtu ng e0e

ear am prove

ou moo

Food Safety Chemistry

In Industrial Chemicals our

antimicrobial applications today

are primarily focused on food

safety using our peracetic

acid-based chemistries These

applications range from the

direct treatment of red meat and

poultry to aseptic packaging for

low-acid beverages

Just as Agricultural Products

and Specialty Chemicals will

be increasingly influenced

by rising demand from new
mouths to feed the necessity

of food safety within these

rising markets also ensures an

rowth opportunity

Chemicals in

ials and aseptic

for years to come

Our hem tue re ed pot .ct

food ad veoge dunno proc ung
and bat nng
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SODA ASH RSNO
On The GobaI Stage

VVe
are the words largest

natural soda ash producer
Soda ash is core ingredient

in the product on of many
detergents and glass including

structural glass containers

bottles and solar panels
It also used in emerging
applicat ons for pollution

control at power plants and

other industrial facilities

We expect this bus ness to

continue delivering strong

earnings growth an

holds lo

ri efficient

idn system from our

River Wyoming mine

Although global oversupply

of soda ash is likely to persist

for some time we expect

to operate at full production

capacity through 2015

because of our different ated

position as low-cost supp er

In fact given the projected

strength in export demand
in 201 we will restart our

Granger solution-mining

operation that has been

temporarily offline since 2009

ndustnal commodities which

can be highly cycl ca and
less consistent in earnings

performance

One factor is access to natural

raw materal trona ore There

are few commercial viable

deposits of trona around the

obe creating comn
barrier to entE

Our operation

on the worl

-ost poW

market standing is further

strengthened by the scale

of our operations and the

proprietary process technology

we employ For example we
have been innovators in using

longwall mining of trona as we
as secondary solution mining

Glooal demard growtn ror

FMCs natura soda ash has

proven to be very steady New
markets are also emerging
for pollution applications

using trona And we plan to

extend our obal reach While

Latin America and Asia are our

largest export markets today
there are rising opportunities

rapidly developing

that Ito

Soda ash will contnue to

produce sustained returns

well in excess of reinvestment

economics throughout our

Vs on 2015 period Because

it del vers steady growth

strong profitability and superior

returns on capital soda ash

is very attractive component
of our Industrial Chemicals

business number of factors

differentiate it from typical

FMC Corpo 2C 10 Annua Repoh



THE UNSUNG NGREDENJ
For Heath WeHness

V\Ihile FMC does not

manufacture drugs vitamins

or nutritional supplements
we have long been eader

in helping the pharmaceutica

industry create and market

consumable products from

renewable bopolymers Our

pharmaceutical customers

represent significant segment
of our Specialty Chemicals

ousiness and we take

sly our role in providing

hI chemistry to serve

assent

If we dont make pharma
ceuticals what do we make

One category excipients

nactive substances that bind

product together add bu to

high-potency active ingredients

speed or slow absorption in the

body or activate the products

dissolving process Excipients

commonly take the form of

tab et binoers suspension
aids super-disintegrants and

control ed-release coatings
Our Avicel brand continues

to be the leading binder of

Today we are in the advanced

development stages of new

alginate-based soft capsules

for pharmaceutcas And

our ultrapure biopo ymers
have numerous biomedical

applications including tissue

engineering cel encapsulat on
and medical devices

FMC ithium plays role too

as it is used for syntnesizing

cholesterol-reducing drugs We
have constructed butyllithium

plant in India and one China

to serve the pharmaceutical

manufacturing industry in

these expanding markets And
lithium carbonate is the active

ingredient in the preferred

treatment of bipolar disorder

Our chemistry argely taken

for granted by most consumers
but it an essential component
in the practical consumption
of many pharmaceuticals For

FMC demand for this chemistry

parallels consumers ever-

increasing health consciousness
and the need for medicines

to manage acute or chronic

pain particularly as average life

spans continue to rise Coupled
wth demand growth in rapidly

developing economies the

market indicators for this sector

are highly favorable

Today we are investing in our

core business to maintain

our position as high-quality

premium supplier We are

adding new capac ty and new
capabil ties to improve our

service and speed to market

for our customers

15

We also have developed and

commercialized new soft

capsule technology that utilizes

carrageenan These new soft

capsues are being used for

vitamins and other supplements

FMC Corpora2on 2010 nua Report



ENERGY THL ENVRONMENT
On The ThreshoN of Opportunity

denfifyng oppolunity at the

ear est stages of change is

one characterisfic of market

leadership As EMC oaks to

201 we expect to be at the

aunching point of accelerated

demand for two major areas

of our proprietary chemistries

Both areas will be driven by

natural resource realities and

cultural priorities

The Next Energy Revoution

With growing awareness that

petroleum-based energy

resources are steadily

becoming more scarce

more difficult to extract and

inevitably more expensive for

consumers today we are at

the cusp of growing demand
for alternative sources of

energy Energy storage is one
of FMCs key markets where

our lithium chemistry is used in

lithum-ion batteries to power
cell phones computers power
tools and now automobiles

As one of the worlds largest

lith urn suppliers we are

poised to serve new innovative

energy storage applications

that are poised to grow rapidly

within the next five years as

demand accelerates in the

United States Europe and

particularly in India and China

With governments and

societies in industria zed

countries cant nuing to make
shifts in policies and priorities

that favor alternat ye energy

sources we expect steady

market growth of to

percent annually between

16

now and 2015 and the

potential for doubling of that

growth rate startng in 2015

Meanwhile EMC Industrial

Chemica serving the

oil and gas industry wh ch

ut lizes hydrogen peroxide for

enhanced oil recovery in ci

sands operations And we are

exploring other potential uses

of our peroxygens chemistry in

energy production

Recaming The Panet

Just as sustainable energy

resources are becoming

higher priority for people

around the globe there

growing nterest in solut ons
that protect and reclaim the

environment Here too FMC
offers the right chemistry to

serve these vital needs

spann ng ar soi and water

treatment Our product

solutions in this space are

cost effective and genera ly

supported by intellectual

property and other proprietary

technologies

The green nature of our

peroxygen chemistry makes

preferred solution for many
environmental and food safety

applications Our persulfate

chemistry serves as the

leading solution for destroying

organic contaminants in soil

Meanwhile our hydrogen

peroxide and trona applications

are used for scrubbing acid

gases from air emissions at

utilities and industrial boiler

operations And both hydrogen

peroxide and peracetic acid

are being used to treat

municipal and processed
waters

Across our Industrial Chemica

portfolio we are pursuing

number of promising

environmental app ications

We env sian steadily growing

long-term opportunities in

this area particu any among
developed and developing

economies due to increas ng
natural resource and

environmental

pressures

FMCCorportor 2010 Anr uai Rpo



ERATONAL EXCELLENCE
At The Forefront

Ve have long been

mpany known for ts

excellence Our

bility to grow earnings

reducing costs is well

whether thats

Harnessing The Power of

Common Ownership

We see opporturnty in doing

things as one FMC where it

matters In 2010 we began
the transition from highly

lized organizational

more balanced

in global

ent whose

significant

becomes best in ass and

works hand in band with

our businesses so we are

delivering what they need

and enhancing profitability

Expanding Operations to

Support Our Growth

Our experienced operating

teams have strong track

record of delivenng superior

financial returns on the assets

under their control Using the

disciplined evaluation metrics

we have consistently emp oyed
we are selectively expanding

operations worldwde to meet

the increasing demand in

key markets

the high growth

storage ano pharma
utica markets for lith um
are expanding our mining

nations high in the Andes

Argentina To capture

increasing demand for food

ingredients and pharmaceutical

excipients we are expanding

our BioPolymer operations in

Cork Ireland and Haugesund

In Prince George British

Columbia we are installing

hydrogen reformer to more cost

effectively serve peroxygens
markets And in Green River

Wyoming we are restarting our

Granger soda ash facility to

meet growing export demand

Though change is often

diftcult especialy when

nothing broken its best

done from position of

strength Thats precisely

what we are doing

FMC Corp tor O1C ua Re ort



HNANOIAL STRENGTh
Enables Strategc Growth

EARNINGS PER SHARER
are nancially strong

company with quid balance

sheet high return on assets

and substantial free cash

ow Our businesses are well

pos tinned in attractive markets

most with margins and asset

returns well above the peers
And our experienced worldwide

team carres proven record

of superior performance

performance that has created

premium shareholder value

consistently in the top quartile

of our industry

This enviable position has

allowed us to launch Vision

2015 from position of strength

with the strategic flexibility

that comes with it We have

well-structured and executable

plan for growth However we
wi remain disciplined and not

pursue growth for growths sake

alone rather our focus will

rema on delivering premum
shareholder value

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

18

2008 17.1%

2009 25.8%

2010 44.2%

We envision an FMC with $5

billion in sales in 2015 Well

over haf of our sales growth will

come from organic sources We
expect organic sales growth in

the range of percent per year

over the next five years very

much in line with the percent

we achieved over the 2002-

2009 period

If Vision 2015 was based so

on our organic growth plan the

results would be impressive

Delivering this sales and profit

2008 $4.63

2009 $4.15

2010 $4.84

2008 23.8%

2009 19.9%

2010 21.9%

2008 2009 2010

FMO Corpora or 10 Annual Report



2010 Revenue by Segment Our operabng rformance and

abihty to borrow wl provide

$3 bbion in cash hat can be

deployed between now and

2015 We intend to use this

cash to support our external

Special Chemicals 8245
growth initiatives and return

Industrial Chemicals $1054.8
cash to shareholders using

the disciplined evaluation

metrics we have always

fn rihon employed we believe external

opportunities should require

between $1 .5 billion to $2

billion of cash The remaining

cash could then be returned

to shareholders

The success of our efforts will

Profit by Segment
be measured by the returns

realized by our shareholders

We believe that by delivering

our vision company by

Agricultural Products 309 2015 with $5 billion in sales

$1 .2 billion in profits before

ccialChemicals 185.0 tax sustained mid-teen

Industrial Chemicals 122.9
returns on invested capital

with significantly greater

earnings stability strong cash
inmiico

generation and disciplined

cash deployment our

shareholders will be rewarded

with premium shareholder

returns

growth while sustaining particularly those that otter us

returns on invested capital strategic optionality such as

in the mid-teens would be series of acquisitions that build

premium performance But we upon one another We plan

believe we can do better for externally derived growth

to raise our overall sales

Our intent is to supplement this growth to percent and our

growth by selectively investing EBIT growth in excess of

in external opportunities that percent while maintaining our

offer attractive sales growth return on invested capital in

with premium margins the mid-teens

MCC au IRepo
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington DC 20549

FORM 10-K
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15D OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

Commission file number 1-2376MC
FMC CORPORATION

Exact name of registrant as specfled in its charter

DELAWARE

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

1735 Market Street Philadelphia Pennsylvania

Address ofprincipal executive offices

94-0479804

I.R.S Employer Identzjl cation No
19103

Zp Code

Registrants telephone number including area code

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12B OF THE ACT
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

New York Stock Exchange

Common Stock $0.10 par
value Chicago

Stock Exchange

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12G OF THE ACT
NONE

Iicate by check mark YES NO

seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

iftlie registrant is not required to file
reports pursuant to Section 13 and Section 15d of the Act

whether the registrant
has filed all

reports required to be filed by Section 13 ot 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was

g1ired to file such reports and has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days

whether the
registrant

has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate wcbsite if
any ever

interactive

data file required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding

l2osonths or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files

if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and

will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive
proxy or information statements

Jpejby reference in Part III of this Form 10-k or any amendment to this form 10-k ________
whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller reporting Company See definitions of

large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchan RAct check one

filer Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Smaller re ortin com an
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PART

FMC Corporation FMC was incorporated in 1928 under Delaware

law and has its principal executive offices at 1735 Market Street

Philadelphia Pennsylvania 19103 Throughout this Annual Report

on Form 10-K except
where otherwise stated or indicated by the

context FMC We Us or Our means FMC Corporation

ITEM Business

General

and its consolidated subsidiaries and their predecessors Copies of the

annual quarterly and current reports we file with the Securities and

Exchange Commission SEC and
any

amendments to those reports

are available on our website at www.FMC.com as soon as practicable

after we furnish such materials to the SEC

We are diversified chemical company serving agricultural consumer

and industrial markets globally with innovative solutions applications

and market-leading products We operate in three distinct business

segments Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals Our Agricultural Products
segment develops markets and

sells all three major classes of crop protection
chemicals insecticides

herbicides and fungicides with particular strength in insecticides

and herbicides These products are used in agriculture to enhance

crop yield and quality by controlling broad spectrum
of insects

weeds and disease as well as pest control in non-agricultural markets

Specialty Chemicals consists of our BioPolymer and lithium businesses

and focuses on food ingredients that are used to enhance texture

structure and physical stability pharmaceutical additives for binding

encapsulation and disintegrant applications ultrapure biopolymers

for medical devices and lithium for
energy storage specialty polymers

and pharmaceutical synthesis Our Industrial Chemicals
segment

manufactures wide
range

of inorganic materials including soda

ash hydrogen peroxide specialty peroxygens
zeolites and silicates

Through December 31 2010 our Industrial Chemicals segment also

held niche position in phosphorous chemicals products however in

November 2010 we made the decision to exit the phosphate business

via the shutdown of our Huelva
facility

in Spain

The following table shows the principal products produced by our three business
segments

and their raw materials and uses subsequent to the

exit of our phosphorous chemicals business

Protection of
crops including cotton sugarcane rice corn soybeans cereals

Synthetic chemical fruits and vegetables from weed groscth and for non-agricultural applications

1-lerbicides intermediates including turf and roadsides

Synthetic chemical

Fungicides intermediates Protection of crops including fruits vegetables and tobacco from fungal disease

Microcrystalline

Spcciahy Chemicals Celitmiose Specialty pulp Drug dry tablet hinder and disintegrant food ingredient

Food ingredient for thickening and stabiliiing encapsulants

Carrageenan Refined seaweed for pharmaceutical and nutraceutical

Alginates Refined seaweed Food ingredients pharmaceutical cxcipient heakhcare and industrial uses

Batteries polymers pharmaceuticals greases
and lubricants

Lithium Mined lithium air conditioning and other industrial uses

Industrial

hcmuicals

Zeolites Silicates Caustic Soda Soda Ash Detergents car tires pulp paper

Through December31 2010 our Industrial Chemicals principaiproducts included phosphorous
chemicals

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K
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We have
operations in many areas around the world With worldwide manufacturing and distribution infrastructure we are able to respond

rapidly to global customer needs offset downward economic trends in one region with positive trends in another and better match revenues

to locai costs to mitigate the impact of currency volatility The charts below detail our sales and long-lived assets by major geographic region

26%

REVENUES BY REGION 2010
REVENUE $3116.3 MILLION

6%

LONG-LIVED ASSETS BY REGION 2010
LONG-LIVED ASSETS $1359.0 MILLION

4%

Our Strategy

Throughout 2010 we invested significant resources and managerial

time in the development of new strategic plan for the Company This

new corporate strategy which we refer to as Vision 2015 is focused

on driving sales and earnings growth while sustaining return on

invested capital well above our cost of capital and has as its objective

of achieving total shareholder return in the
top quartile of broad

group
of industry peers

Vision 2015 has five key elements

Growing Leadership Positions

We intend to continue to build and strengthen our market leading

positions by executing plan that relies primarily on organic growth

complemented by focused external growth strategy We benefit from

business portfolio that is exposed to faster growing end markets and

geographic regions Agricultural Products organic growth plan focuses

on market and product innovations while strengthening market access

Specialty Chemicals
organic focus is primarily on new products and

new applications for existing products Industrial Chemicals focus is

on new applications for existing chemistries To complement these

organic growth initiatives our external growth strategy employs

focused disciplined approach to company product and technology

acquisitions We believe this strategy reduces the risk normally inherent

in external growth Agricultural Products intends to complement its

organic growth initiatives by acquiring new products and
technologies

as well as making selective acquisitions principally in adjacent spaces In

Specialty Chemicals the food ingredients market is our top priority for

acquisitions that will expand our product line offerings and positions

in rapidly-developing economies Industrial Chemicals will evaluate

selective
acquisitions focused in specialty applications Across all

businesses our strategy does not include making large scale complex

or transformational acquisitions or adding another business platform

to our portfolio

Increasing our reach

We intend to bias our growth initiatives toward further strengthening

our positions in rapidly-developing economies RDEs Our growth

in Latin America will be largely driven by leveraging Agricultural

Products leadership positions In Asia our growth initiatives will be

more broad-based with targeted investments in human scientific and

technological resources across our businesses in the region In Central

and Eastern Europe Turkey and Russia we will focus on establishing

strong footholds in key countries

Capturing the Value of Common Ownership

We are moving from highly decentralized organizational model to

one that has both centralized and decentralized qualities We believe

this shift will enable us to better leverage the size and
scope

of our

company to realize cost savings and increase efficiencies
yet maintain

strong accountability in our business units Our initial cost reduction

initiatives will focus in such areas as procurement global supply chain

and RDE infrastructure

Proactively Managing our Portfolio

In the fourth
quarter

of 2010 we ceased
operations at our phosphates

facility
in Huelva Spain due to increasing environmental constraints

and
poor

financial performance Following this resolution all current

businesses are well positioned for sustained growth and delivering returns

above cost of capital We will continue to assess the performance of

all of our businesses and will take actions as needed should units

performance change

Latin America

15%
Africa

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K



Disciplined Cash Deployment
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Over the next five
years we do not expect that our external growth

strategies will consume all cash available for deployment Therefore

our Vision 2015 pian contemplates the return of significant amount

of cash to our shareholders in the form of share repurchases and/or

increased dividends

Underlying our ambition to deliver our Vision 2015 plan is continued

commitment to being safe ethical and responsible stewards As we

grow we will do so in responsible way Safety will continue to be of

utmost importance Meeting
and exceeding our customers needs will

continue to be primary
focus And we will as always conduct our

business in an ethical and sustainable manner

Financial Information about Our Business Segments

See Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K Also see below for selected financial information related to

our segments

Agricultural Products

Financial Information In Millions

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
REVENUE AND OPERATING MARGIN 2006-20 10
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Overview

Our Agricultural Products segment which represents approximately

40
percent

of our 2010 consolidated revenues develops manufactures

and sells portfolio of
crop protection professional pest control and

lawn and garden products Our growth efforts focus on developing

environmentally compatible solutions that can effectively increase

farmers yields provide cost-effective alternatives to older chemistries

to which insects weeds or disease may have developed resistance and

strengthen our customer relevancy in focus markers We are committed to

providing unique differentiated products to our customers by acquiring

and further developing technologies as well as by making selective

investments in innovation to extend product life cycles Our external

growth efforts include product acquisitions in-licensing of chemistries

and technologies and alliances to strengthen our market access or

complement our existing product portfolio In 2010 we successfully

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND

DEPRECIATION AMORTIZATION 2006-20 10

acquired the proprietary
herbicide fluthiacet-methyl which has an

excellent fit in our focus market segments and is particularly effective

on many tough-to-control weeds that have developed resistance to

glyphosate

We differentiate ourselves by focusing on
specific crops

and markets and

by our low-cost manufacturing strategy We are continually working

to gain access to proprietary chemistries and technologies which are

complementary to our existing products and market focus We are

encouraged by our progress
in licensing and partnering to create

proprietary products developing technically-advanced delivery systems

and commercializing unique product premixes
and combinations We

are optimistic that these efforts will continue to result in sales and profit

growth in the foreseeable future

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

LIII Capital Expenditure Depreciation and Amortization
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PART
ITEM Business

Products and Markets

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
2010 SALES MIX

9%

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS
2010 REVENUE BY REGION

20%

North America

Agricultural Products provides wide
range

of proprietary branded

products based on both patented and off-patent technologies Product

branding is prevalent industry practice used to help maintain and

grow
market share by promoting end-user

recognition and product

and supplier reputation Agricultural Products
enjoys relatively strong

niche positions in
crop

and
non-crop

market
segments in the Americas

Europe and other
parts

of the world and derived approximately 80

percent
of its revenue from outside North America in 2010

Insecticides
represent

the
largest product line in the Agricultural Products

segment
which include our pyrethroid and carbamate chemistries in

which we maintain leading market
positions based on revenues Our

proprietary herbicides have grown significantly over the last several years

due to organic growth new product launches product acquisitions and

the in-licensing of new chemistries Our herbicide portfolio primarily

targets niche uses and controls wide variety of difficult-to-control

weeds We are evaluating opportunities to enhance our market position

in fungicides so that we can broaden our portfolio across the three

major pesticide categories i.e insecticides herbicides and
fungicides

In 2009 we successfully acquired the proprietary fungicide benalaxyl

which has an excellent fit in several regions and crops

The following table summarizcs the principal product chemistries in Agricultural Products and the principal uses of each chemistry

Professional

Fruits Sugar Oil Seed Pest Control

Cotton Corn Rice Cereals Vegetables Soybeans Cane Tobacco Rape Home Garden

Insecticides Pyrerhroidc pcrmethrin

cypcrmerhrin

bifenthrin

zeta

permethrin

Carbamatec carbofuran

carhosukan

Other cadusafos

Herbicides carfenu-azonc

ethyl

We have entered into number of agreements with third-party pesticide

producers under which we work together to develop market and/or

distribute existing and new pesticide chemistries in various markets

These proprietary chemistries and technologies are complementary to

our existing products and market strategies The chemistries include

flonicamid unique insecticide for controlling sucking pests cyazofamid

novel fungicide for
crop

and
non-crop uses in the Americas fluthiacet

methyl proprietary herbicide for controlling glyphosate-resistant

weeds and acetamiprid for
pest

control markets in North America

We also have numerous supply and access agreements with third-party

producers for other pesticide products including the commercialization

of proprietary premixes and combinations

We access key Western European markets through Belgian-based

pesticide distribution company Belchim Crop Protection N.Y in

which we have an ownership interest We also have
joint venture

48% 51% 13%

sulfentrazone

Funticides benalaxvl

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K
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arrangements
with Nufarm Limited in three countries in Eastern

Europe
which allows us to capitalize on growth in this part

of Europe

In North America we access the market through several major national

and regional distributors In the large agricultural
market of Brazil

we access the market in part through independent distributors and in

part we sell directly to large growers through our own skilled sales

and marketing organization Through
these and other alliances along

with our own targeted marketing efforts access to novel technologies

and our innovation initiatives we expect to maintain and enhance

our access in key agricultural and non-crop
markets and develop new

products that will help us continue to compete effectively

We maintain competitive manufacturing cost positions through our

strategy
of sourcing raw materials intermediates and finished products

from third parties in lower-cost manufacturing countries such as

China India and Mexico We have been implementing this low-cost

manufacturing strategy
for more than ten years

This strategy
has

resulted in significant cost savings and lower capital spending and has

reduced the fixed capital intensity
of the business Since its inception

through 2010 we estimate that our low-cost manufacturing strategy

has produced annual cost savings of more than $90 million

Groh

We plan to grow by obtaining new and approved uses for existing product

lines and acquiring accessing developing marketing distributing andl

or selling complementary chemistries and/or related technologies in

order to enhance and expand our product portfolio and our capabilities

to effectively service our target
markets and customers Our growth

will depend on our ability to deliver unique innovative solutions to

our customers Over the next several
years growth

is anticipated

from our proprietary
insecticides herbicides and fungicides as well

as recently-accessed third party chemistries and/or technologies For

our insecticides we launched number of new products expanded

labels and/or introduced unique
formulations that deliver value-

adding
solutions to our customers The continued spread of herbicide-

resistant weeds and shifts in weed populations coupled with several

recently launched product formulations expanded labels premixes

and new chemistries provide growth opportunities
for our herbicide

product
line The successful development and commercialization of

our productivity-enhancing technologies should also contribute to

growth over the next five
years

Industry Overview

The three principal categories of agricultural and non-crop
chemicals

are herbicides representing approximately half of global industry

revenue insecticides representing approximately quarter
of global

industry revenue and fungicides representing
most of the remaining

portion of global industry revenue

Insecticides are used to control wide
range

of insects including

chewing pests such as caterpillars and sucking pests such as aphids

Insecticides are applied as sprays
dusts or granules and are used on

wide variety of crops such as fruits vegetables cotton soybean corn

and cereals There are several major classes of insecticide chemistries

including organophosphates carbamates pyrethroids
and neonicotinoids

Herbicides prevent
or inhibit weed growth thereby reducing or

eliminating the need for manual or mechanical weeding Herbicides

can be selective controlling only specific unwanted vegetation or non-

selective controlling all vegetation and are also segmented by their

time of application pre-planting pre-emergent
and

post-emergent

Fungicides prevent or inhibit the spread of plant
disease which can

adversely impact crop yields
and quality

Fungicides are used on wide variety of crops
such as fruits vegetables

soybean cereals and rice

The agrochemicals industry is relatively consolidated Leading crop

protection companies Syngenta AG Bayer AG Monsanto Company

BASF AG The Dow Chemical Company and du Pont de Nemours

and Company DuPont currently represent approximately 75 percent

of the industrys global sales Significant drivers for this consolidation

have been the growth and grower acceptance
of biotechnology employed

in row crops
and the escalation of research and development and

marketing costs

The next tier of agrochemical producers including FMC Makhteshim

Agan Industries Ltd Sumitomo Chemical Company Limited Nufarm

Limited Arysta LifeScience Corporation United Phosphorous
Limited

and Cheminova A/S employ various differentiated strategies and

compete by unique technologies focusing on certain crops

markets and geographies and/or competitive pricing
based on

low-cost manufacturing positions Some of these producers are generic

competitors
with little or no investment in innovation There is

growing trend among these producers to partner with one another to

gain economies of scale and competitive
market access more comparable

to larger competitors Additionally number of these companies have

grown rapidly through acquisitions
of other companies and/or product

divestitures from the leading crop protection companies

FMC CORPORATION 2010 Form 10-K
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Specialty Chemicals

Financial Information In Millions

765
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Revenue Operating Margin

Overview

Our Specialty Chemicals segment which represents 26 percent of our

2010 consolidated revenues is focused on high-performance food

ingredients pharmaceutical excipients biomedical technologies and

lithium products all of which
enjoy

solid customer bases and consistent

growing demand The significant majority of Specialty Chemicals sales

are to customers in non-cyclical end markets We believe that our

future growth in this
segment

will continue to be based on the value-

Products and Markets

BioPolymer

BioPolymer is organized around the food and pharmaceutical markets

and is key supplier to many companies in these markets Many of

BioPolymers customers in the food and pharmaceutical markets have

come to rely on us for the majority of their supply requirements for

our products and solutions We believe that such reliance is based on

our innovative solutions and operational quality

added performance capabilities of these products and our research and

development capabilities as well as on the alliances and the close working

relationships we have developed with key global customers The food

ingredients area in particular is focus for external growth and our

intent is to broaden our product line and expand our participation in

RDEs through acquisitions joint ventures and alliances

BioPolymer is supplier of microcrystalline cellulose MCC
carrageenan

and alginates ingredients that have high value-added

applications in the production of food pharmaceutical and other

specialty consumer and industrial products MCC processed from

specialty grades of both hardwood and softwood pulp provides binding

and disintegrant properties for dry tablets and capsules and has unique

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
REVENUE AND OPERATING MARGIN 2006-20 10

825

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND DEPRECIATION

AND AMORTIZATION 2006-20 10
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SPECIALTY CHEMICALS SPECIALTY CHEMICALS

2010 SALES MIX 2010 REVENUE BY REGION

8%

74%

BioPolymer

26%
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functionality that improves the texture and stability of many food

products Carrageenan
and alginates both processed

from seaweed are

used in wide variety of food pharmaceutical
and oral care applications

Additionally we are developing technology platforms within biomedical

Lithium

Lithium is vertically-integrated technology business based on both

inorganic and organic
lithium chemistries While lithium is sold into

variety of end-markets we have focused our efforts on energy storage

specialty polymers and pharmaceuticals

The electrochemical properties
of lithium make it an ideal material for

portable energy storage in high performance applications including

heart pacemakers cell phones camcorders personal computers
and next-

markets to provide ultrapure biopolymers
and application know-how

for biomedical devices The following chart summarizes the markets

for BioPolymers products and our chemistries in each market

generation technologies that combine cellular and wireless capabilities

into single
device Lithium is also being developed as the enabling

element in advanced batteries for use in hybrid electric plug-in hybrids

and all-electric vehicles

Organolithium products are sold to fine chemical and pharmaceutical

customers who use lithiums unique chemical properties to synthesize

high value-added products Organolithiums are also highly
valued

in the specialty polymer markets as initiators in the production of

synthetic rubbers and elastomers

The following chart summarizes the
major

markets for various lithium products

Polymers

Elastomers synthetic rubbers

indusrrialcoatings

Energy Storage

Non-rechargeable batteries lithium ion

batteries rechargeabk

Other

Glass ceramics construction
greases

lubricants air treatment pooi water treatment

Industry Overview

Food Ingredients

Our BioPolymer business serves the texture structure and physical

stability TSPS food ingredients market TSPS ingredients impart

physical properties to thicken and stabilize foods There are many

types
of TSPS ingredients and wide range

of food
groups

served

including bakery meats dairy and convenience products The industry

is dispersed geographically with the majority
of our sales in Europe

North America and Asia

Trends driving market growth include increasing consumer interest

in healthier foods greater convenience and growth in per capita

consumption of processed
foods in emerging markets The trend

toward health and convenience drives the need for more functional

ingredients to impart
desired food tastes and textures We believe

carrageenan
and MCC which address this need are growing

faster

than the overall TSPS market The global customer base for TSPS is

relatively fragmented and includes large and small food processors

Consolidation among these customers has been significant trend over

the past several years
As result TSPS ingredient suppliers such as

us have focused on establishing alliances with market leaders with the

goal of reducing costs leveraging technology and expanding product

offerings with key accounts

Microcrystalline

cellulose Carrageenan Alginates Other

Food Beverage

Dairy

Convenience foods

Meat and Potlltr\

Pet food and other

Pharmaceutical Tablet binding and coating

Anri-reflux

quid suspension

Oral care

Cosmetic care

Oral dose forms

Biomedical

Lithium

Metal/Ion Battery
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Within the entire food ingredients market there are relatively

large number of suppliers due principally to the broad spectrum

of chemistries employed Segment leadership global position and

investment in technology are key factors to sustaining profitability In

addition compared to our business larger suppliers may often provide

broader product line and
range

of services to food companies

including functional
systeni or blends The

top suppliers of TSPS

ingredients include FMC DuPont J.M Huber Corporation Kerry

Group plc and Cargill Incorporated

Pharmaceutical Ingredients

Our BioPolymer business sells formulation ingredients to the

pharmaceutical industry our raw materials function as binders

disintegrants suspending agynts and control release compounds in

the production of both solid and liquid pharmaceutical products

Competitors tend to be grouped by chemistry Our principal MCC
competitors include Rettenrnaier Sôhne GmbH Ming Tai Chemical

Co Ltd Asahi Kasei Corporation and Blanver Farmoquimica Ltda

/hile
pricing pressure

from low cost producers is common competitive

dynamic companies like us offset that
pressure by providing the most

reliable and broadest
range

of products and services Our customers are

pharmaceutical firms who depend upon reliable therapeutic performance

of their drug products

Industrial Chemicals

We also supply alginates MCC and carrageenan into oral care cosmetics

and health care markets Highly refined extracts from selected seaweeds

provide broad
range

of alginate functionality including uses in

antirefiux dental impressions
control release of drugs and wound

dressings Special grades of carrageenan extracts are used in liquid cough

medicines toothpaste and variety of skin care products

Lithium

Lithium is highly versatile metal with diverse end-use markets including

both rechargeable and disposable batteries polymers pharmaceuticals

greases/lubricants glass/ceramics and aluminum production The markets

for lithium chemicals are global with
significant

demand growth occurring

outside the U.S in Japan
China and South Korea We market wide

variety of lithium-based products ranging from upstream commodity

lithium carbonate to highly specialized downstream products such

as organolithium compounds and high value materials for batteries

There are only three key producers of lithium FMC Rockwood

Holdings Inc and Sociedad QuImica Minera de Chile S.A all

of which produce lithium carbonate FMC and Rockwood are the

primary producers in downstream lithium specialties

Financial Information In Millions

INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS
REVENUE AND OPERATING MARGIN 2006-2010

Overview

Our Industrial Chemicals segment which represents 34 percent of our 2010

consolidated revenues has low-cost positions in high volume inorganic

chemicals including soda ash and hydrogen peroxide complemented by

high value niche positions in specialty alkali and peroxygen products

Through December 31 2010 we also held niche position in phosphorous

chemicals products however in November 2010 we made the decision

to exit the phosphate business and have shutdown our Huelva
facility

in Spain Our strategic
intent for the Industrial Chemicals Group is to

create portfolio of high performing businesses exhibiting greater top

and bottom line growth with significantly higher margins and reduced

INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND DEPRECIATION

AND AMORTIZATION 2006-20 10

volatility
than in the past We will achieve this by enhancing our leadership

position in natural soda ash and specialty peroxygens
while restructuring

our Spanish Foret subsidiary to its profitable core We expect steady

organic growth in our soda ash business due to consistent growth in

global demand We anticipate significant organic growth in environmental

applications over the next five
years

and we see opportunities to expand

our environmental technology platform through targeted acquisitions of

complementary technologies In addition to solid revenue growth we

expect improved profit mix
stemming

from increased specialty market

participation and the benefits of restructuring actions
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INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS

2010 SALES MIX

Industrial Chemicals serves diverse group
of markets from economically

sensitive industrial sectors to technology-intensive specialty
markets

We process
and sell refined inorganic products that are sought by

customers for their critical
reactivity

or specific functionality in markets

such as glass detergents chemicals and pulp and
paper

In addition

we produce purifi
and market higher value downstream derivatives

into specialized and customer-specific applications
These applications

include electronics biocides and animal nutrition

Alkali

Our Alkali Chemicals Division produces
natural soda ash Soda ash

is used by manufacturers in glass chemical processing and detergent

industries To lesser degrees we also produce sodium bicarbonate caustic

soda and sodium sesquicarbonate The majority of our alkali sales are

manufactured by and sold through FMC Wyoming Corporation
which

we manage as an integral part of our alkali business and in which we

own shares representing an 87.5 percent economic interest with the

remaining shares held by two Japanese companies

We mine and produce natural soda ash using proprietary low-cost

mining technologies such as longwall and solution mining which

we believe give us the lowest cost position Our two production sites

in Green River Wyoming have the name plate capacity to produce

approximately 4.85 million tons of soda ash annually with approximately

1.3 million tons of this capacity
mothballed at December 31 2010

During 2009 with the economic downturn resulting in drop in soda

ash demand we mothballed the Granger facility
and consolidated all

of our soda ash production at the Westvaco facility Since then U.S

export
markets have recovered much faster than the U.S domestic

market and in January 2011 we announced the restart of our Granger

production at rate of 500000 tons per year by July 2011 to satisfy

export
demand We plan to evaluate further production

increases at

Granger during 2011

Peroxygens

We produce hydrogen peroxide at production facilities in the

United States Canada Spain and the Netherlands We also participate

in joint venture company
in Thailand We sell hydrogen peroxide into

the pulp and
paper industry and increasingly to the chemical processing

environmental electronics and food industries We are leading North

13%

INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS

2010 REVENUE BY REGION MIX

American producer of hydrogen peroxide due in part to our broad

product line geographically-advantaged plant locations state-of-the-

art processing technology and superior customer service Hydrogen

peroxide represents approximately 65 percent of our peroxygens
sales

Our specialty peroxygens
business supplies persulfate products primarily

to polymer printed circuit board hair care and soil remediation markets

Peracetic acid is predominantly supplied to the food industry for

biocidal applications Typically we compete as specialty player where

we believe that we are differentiated by our strong technical expertise

unique process technology intellectual property
and geographic

location

Zeolites and Silicates

We have two manufacturing facilities in Spain where we have market

position in zeolites and silicates We sell zeolites and silicates products

which are used in detergents car tires pulp and paper
markets We are

exploring new applications
of the zeolite and silicate uses including

water treatment environmental applications and agricultural markets

Industry Overview

Through December 31 2010 we primarily participated in the following

product areas soda ash peroxygens phosphorus chemicals zeolites and

silicates Subsequent to December 31 2010 and as result of the Huelva

facility
shutdown our primary product areas are soda ash peroxygens

zeolites and silicates These products are generally inorganic and are

generally
commodities that in many cases have few cost-effective

substitutes Growth is typically
function of industrial production in

developed economies and function of the rate of industrialization in

developing economies in the export markets Pricing tends to reflect

the supply and demand balance as producers add or reduce capacity

in response to demand changes

Soda Ash

Soda ash is highly alkaline inorganic
chemical essential in the production

of glass and widely used in the production of chemicals soaps
and

detergents and many other products Natural soda ash is typically

produced from trona natural form of sodium sesquicarbonate

through mining and chemical processing Soda ash may also be produced

Zeolites Silicates

Europe

Middle East

Africa
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synthetically but this process requires significant amount of
energy

and produces large quantities of waste by-products making it much

less cost-effective than natural soda ash production

Because of the processing cost advantages of trona and the large natural

reserves of trona in the U.S particularly in Green River Wyoming
all U.S soda ash is naturally produced By contrast due to lack of

trona the
majority of the soda ash that is manufactured in the rest of

the world is produced synthetically Other U.S producers are OCI
Chemical Corporation Solvay S.A The General Chemical Group Inc

in which majority stake it owned by Tata Chemicals Limited and

Nirma Limited

Approximately 52 percent
cf U.S soda ash production served

export

markets in 2010 with
apgroximately 31

percent
of U.S soda ash

production exported through the American Natural Soda Ash

Corporation ANSAC ANSAC is the foreign sales association

of Wyoming U.S soda ash producers established in 1983 under the

Webb-Pomerene Act and subsequent legislation Since its creation

ANSAC has been successful in coordinating soda ash
exports taking

advantage of the inherent cost benefits of U.S produced natural

soda ash and leveraging its
.arge

scale of
operations to the benefit of

its member companies Consequently U.S exports of soda ash have

increased over fivefold in th last 25 years

Peroxygens

Hydrogen peroxide is typically sold for use as bleach or oxidizer As

such it often
competes

with other chemicals capable of performing

similar functions Some of our specialty peroxygen
derivatives e.g

persulfates and percarbonates also function as bleaching or oxidizing

agents Environmental regulations regional cost differences primarily

due to transportation costs and technical differences in product

performance factor into the decision to use hydrogen peroxide or one

of its derivatives rather than another product Since these considerations

vary by region
the

consumption patterns vary
in different

parts
of the

Source and Availability of Raw Materials

We own number of U.S and foreign patents trademarks and licenses

that are cumulatively important to our business We do not believe that

the loss of
any one or group related patents trademarks or licenses

world Hydrogen peroxide is sold in
aqueous solutions usually 70

percent 50 percent or 35 percent by weight

The North American and European pulp and paper industry represents

approximately 65 and 70 percent respectively of North American and

European demand for hydrogen peroxide In these markets hydrogen

peroxide is used as an environmentally friendly bleaching agent to

brighten chemical mechanical and recycled pulps as well as to treat

wide
range

of mill pollutants in the waste stream The North American

and European paper markets are mature and new investment in pulp

and paper capacity is largely focused in Asia and South America The

other North American and European hydrogen peroxide producers are

EKA wholly owned subsidiary of Akzo Nobel NV Arkema Inc

Evonik Industries AG Kemira Ovj and Solvay S.A

Zeolites and Silicates

Zeolite has network structure which facilitates the exchange of cations

enabling it to soften hard water in detergents Environmental regulations

limiting or banning the use of sodium tripolyphosphate in detergents

have facilitated the introduction of Zeolite as builder in detergents The

properties of zeolites make them
very

suitable for specific applications

such as adsorption separation ion exchange and others In addition

the zeolite network structure can be modified to produce specialty

zeolite products designed to meet sophisticated market demands We

are currently working on applications to meet these demands The

main European Zeolite producers are PQ Industrial Zeolite and FMC

Soluble silicates are very versatile inorganic chemical products They

are produced by combining various ratios of sand with alkali to obtain

variety of products used in many industries The applications of

silicates include detergents ceramics paper foundry construction

rubber agriculture textiles and production of other chemicals Due

to their relatively low price and high logistic cost the silicate market

is very fragmented with mostly local production The main European

producers are PQ Cognis and FMC

would have material adverse effect on the overall business of FMC
The duration of our patents depends on their respective jurisdictions

Their expiration dates
range through 2030

Our raw material requirements vary by business
segment

and include We extract ores used in Industrial Chemicals
manufacturing processes

mineral-related natural resources trona ore and lithium brines processed from mines e.g trona in North America Raw materials used by
chemicals seaweed specialty wood pulps and

energy sources such as Specialty Chemicals include lithium brines various types of seaweed that

gas coal oil and
electricity

Raw materials represented approximately 25 are sourced on global basis and specialty pulps which are purchased

percent of our 2010 costs of sales and services and no one raw material from selected global producers Raw materials used by Agricultural

represented more than 10 percent of our total raw material purchases Products primarily processed chemicals are obtained from variety

of suppliers worldwide Through December 31 2010 our Huelva

facility purchased the raw material phosphorous rock from others

Patents
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We encounter substantial competition in each of our three business

segments This competition
is expected to continue in both the

United States and markets outside of the United States We market

our products through our own sales organization and through alliance

partners independent distributors and sales representatives The number

of our principal competitors varies from segment to segment In general

we compete by operating in cost-efficient manner and by leveraging

our industry experience to provide advanced technology high product

quality and reliability
and quality customer and technical service

Our Agricultural
Products segment competes primarily in the global

chemical crop protection
market for insecticides herbicides and

fungicides The industry is characterized by relatively small number

of large competitors and large number of smaller often regional

competitors Industry products
include

crop protection
chemicals

and for certain major competitors genetically engineered crop

biotechnology products Competition
from generic agrochemical

producers
has increased as significant

number of product patents

held industry-wide
have expired in the last decade In general we

compete as an innovator by focusing on product development including

novel formulations proprietary mixes and advanced delivery systems

and by acquiring or licensing mostly proprietary
chemistries or

technologies that complement our product and geographic focus We

also differentiate ourselves by our global cost-competitiveness
via our

manufacturing strategies establishing effective product stewardship

programs
and developing strategic

alliances that strengthen market

access in key countries and regions

With significant positions in markets that include alginate carrageenan

microcrystalline cellulose and lithium-based products our Specialty

Chemicals segment competes on the basis of product differentiation

market applications expertise customer service and price BioPolymer

competes
with both direct suppliers of cellulose and seaweed extract

as well as suppliers of other hydrocolloids which may provide similar

functionality in specific applications
In microcrystalline cellulose

competitors are typically smaller than us while in seaweed extracts

carrageenan and alginates we compete with other broad-based chemical

companies We and each of our two most significant competitors in

lithium extract the element from naturally occurring
lithium-rich

brines located in the Andes Mountains of Argentina and Chile which

are believed to be the worlds most significant and lowest cost sources

of lithium

Our Industrial Chemicals segment serves the soda ash markets worldwide

the peroxygens
markets predominantly

in North America and Europe

and the zeolite and silicate markets in Europe In North America

our soda ash business competes with four domestic producers
of

natural soda ash three of which operate in the vicinity of our mine

and processing
facilities near Green River Wyoming Outside of

the U.S Canada Europe
and South Africa we sell soda ash mainly

through ANSAC Internationally our natural soda ash competes
with

synthetic soda ash manufactured by numerous producers ranging
from

integrated multinational companies to smaller regional companies

We maintain leading position
in the North American market for

hydrogen peroxide especially in specialty segments There are currently

five other firms competing in the hydrogen peroxide market in North

America but most of them focus primarily on the commodity pulp

and
paper segment

The primary competitive factor affecting the sales

of soda ash and hydrogen peroxide to commodity markets is price

We seek to maintain our competitive position by employing
low cost

processing technology We possess strong cost and market positions
in

our European peroxygens business zeolites and silicates In each of these

markets we face significant competition
from

range
of multinational

and regional
chemical producers

Seasonality

The seasonal nature of the crop protection
market and the geographic quarters

Markets in the southern hemisphere Latin America and

spread of the Agricultural Products business can result in significant parts
of the Asia Pacific region including Australia are served from

variations in quarterly earnings among geographic locations Agricultural July through February generally resulting in earnings in the third

products sold into the northern hemisphere North America Europe and fourth and first quarters
The remainder of our businesses are generally

parts
of Asia serve seasonal agricultural markets from March through not subject to significant

seasonal fluctuations

September generally resulting in earnings in the first second and third

Competition

We have number one or number two market position in many of our product lines based on revenue either globally or in North America

largely as result of our product offerings proprietary technologies
and our position as low-cost producer The following product lines accounted

for the majority
of our 2010 consolidated revenue Market positions are based on the most recently available revenue data

AricuItura1 Products Specialty Chemicals Industrial Chemicals

Product Line Market Position Product Line Market Position Product Line Market Position

Pvrethroids t2 in North America Microcrystalline ellulose globally
Soda ash in North America

Carboljitan globally Carrageenan globally
Persultttes in Norih \rncrica

Alginates globally

Lithium globally
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Research and Development Expense

We perform research and development in all of our segments
with the formulations that cost-effectively increase farmers yields and provide

majority of our efforts focused in the Agricultural Products
segment alternatives to existing and new chemistries Our research and

The development efforts in the Agricultural Products segment focus development expenses
in the last three

years are set forth below

on developing environmentally sound solutions and new product

Year Ended December 31

in 4iuillions 2010 2009 2008

Agricultural Products S80.8 S73 c70.6

SpecialtyChcmicals 13.4 12.9 14.9

Industrial Chemicals 6.3 6.8 8.3

TOTAL $100.5 $92.8 $93.8

Environmental Laws and Regulations

discussion of environmental related factors can be found in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations and in Note 10 Environmental in the notes to our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K

Employees

The worldwide financial and credit market disruptions that were first

manifested in 2008 reduced the availability of liquidity and credit

generally necessary to fund continuation and expansion of global

economic activity The shortage of liquidity and credit combined

with substantial losses in equity markets led to worldwide economic

recession While we have seen signs of
recovery

the general slowdown

in economic activity caused by an extended recession could adversely

affect our business continuation or worsening of the current difficult

economic conditions could adversely affect our customers ability to

meet the terms of sale or our suppliers ability to fully perform their

commitments to us

We employ approximately 4900 people with approximately 2400 rare instances where work
stoppage

has occurred there has been no

people in our domestic
operations and 2500 people in our foreign material effect on consolidated sales and

earnings We cannot predict

operations Approximately 33 percent of our U.S.-based employees and however the outcome of future contract negotiations In 201 we

36 percent of our foreign-based employees are represented by collective have
collective-bargaining agreements expiring These contracts affect

bargaining agreements We have successfully concluded virtually all approximately percent of U.S.-based employees and 34
percent

of

of our recent contract negotiations without work
stoppage In those foreign-based employees

Securities and Exchange CommissionFilings

Securities and Exchange Commission SEC filings are available free of In accordance with the New York Stock Exchange NYSE rules

charge on our website www.fmc.com Our annual reports on Form 10- on May 21 2010 the Company filed our certification by our Chief

quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and Executive Officer CEO that as of the date of the certification he was

amendments to those
reports are posted as soon as practicable after unaware of any violation by FMC of the NYSEs

corporate governance

we furnish such materials to the SEC
listing

standards We also file with each Form lO-Qand our Form 10-K

certifications by the CEO and Chief Financial Officer under sections

302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

ITEM 1A Risk Factors

Among the factors that could have an impact on our ability to achieve operating results and meet our other
goals are

Worldwide Recession and Disruption of Financial Markets
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Pricing and volumes in our markets are sensitive to number of industry

specific and global issues and events including

Capacity utilization Our businesses are sensitive to industry capacity

utilization particularly in our Industrial Chemicals business As

result pricing tends to fluctuate when capacity
utilization changes

occur within our industry

Competition All of our segments
face competition which could

affect our ability to maintain/raise prices successfully enter certain

markets or retain our market position Additionally in Agricultural

Products competition from genetically modified products GMO
as well as generic producers has increased Generics are driven by

the number of significant product patents
that have expired in the

last decade

Changes in our customer base Our customer base has the potential

to change especially when long term supply contracts are renegotiated

Our Industrial Chemicals and Specialty Chemicals businesses are

most sensitive to this risk

Climatic conditions Our Agricultural Products markets are

affected by climatic conditions which could adversely impact crop

pricing
and

pest
infestations The nature of these events makes them

difficult to predict

Changing regulatory environment Changes in the regulatory

environment particularly in the United States Brazil and the European

Union could adversely impact our ability to continue selling certain

products in our domestic and foreign markets Our Agricultural

Products business is most sensitive to this general regulatory
risk In

the European Union the regulatory
risk

specifically
includes the new

chemicals regulation
known as REACH Registration Evaluation and

Authorization of Chemicals which will affect each of our business

segments to varying degrees
The fundamental principle behind this

regulation is that manufacturers must verif that their chemicals can

be marketed safely through special registration system

Climate change regulation Changes in the regulation
of greenhouse

gases depending on their nature and scope could subject our

manufacturing operations particularly certain Industrial Chemicals

operations in the United States to significant
additional costs or

limits on operations

Raw materials and
energy costs Our operating results are

significantly

affected by the cost of raw materials and
energy including natural gas

We are an international company and therefore face foreign exchange

rate risks We are particularly sensitive to the euro the Chinese yuan

and the Brazilian real To lesser extent we are sensitive to other

Asian currencies particularly
the Japanese yen

We may not be able to fully offset the impact of higher raw materials

and energy costs through price increases or productivity improvements

Supply arrangements
and production

hazards Certain raw materials

are critical to our production process especially in our Agricultural

Products and Specialty Chemicals segments
While we have made

supply arrangements to meet planned operating requirements an

inability to obtain the critical raw materials or execute under the

contract manufacturing arrangements
would adversely impact our

ability to produce certain products
We increasingly source critical

intermediates and finished products
from number of suppliers

especially in Agricultural Products An inability to obtain these

products or execute under the contract sourcing arrangements
would

adversely impact our ability to sell products Our facilities and those

of our key contract manufacturers are subject to operating hazards

which may disrupt our business

Economic and political change
Our business could be adversely

affected by economic and political changes in the markets where

we compete including war terrorism civil unrest inflation rates

recessions trade restrictions foreign ownership restrictions and

economic embargoes imposed by the United States or any of the

foreign countries in which we do business change in governmental

laws and regulations
and the level of enforcement of these laws and

regulations other governmental actions and other external factors

over which we have no control

Market access risk Our results may be affected by changes in

distribution channels which could impact our ability to access the

market In certain Agricultural Products segments we access the market

through joint ventures in which we do not have majority control

Where we do not have strong product portfolio or market access

relationships we may be vulnerable to changes in the distribution

model or influence of competitors with stronger product portfolios

Litigation and environmental risks Current reserves relating to

our ongoing litigation and environmental liabilities may ultimately

prove
to be inadequate

Hazardous materials We manufacture and transport
certain

materials that are inherently hazardous due to their toxic or volatile

nature While we take precautions to handle and transport
these

materials in safe manner if they are mishandled or released into the

environment they could cause property damage or personal injury

claims against us

In Brazil our customers face combination of economic factors

that could result in cash flow
pressures

that lead to slower payments

We have deferred income tax assets The carrying value of these assets

is dependent upon among other things our future performance

and our ability to successfully implement our future business plans

Technology Risks

Failure to make continued improvements in our product technology Failure to continue to make process improvements to reduce costs

and new product introductions could impede our competitive position could impede our competitive position

particularly in Agricultural Products and Specialty Chemicals

Financial Risks
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We have significant investments in long-lived assets and continually

review the carrying value of these assets for recoverability in light

of changing market conditions and alternative product sourcing

opportunities

Our results incorporate the financial performance of our equity

affiliates As such our influence though significant is exercised in

concert with our partners accordingly the performance of these

investments is not under our control

Obligations related to our pension and postretirement plans reflect

certain assumptions To the extent our plans actual experience differs

from these assumptions our costs and funding obligations could

increase or decrease significantly

ITEM Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ITEM Properties

FMC leases executive offices in Philadelphia Pennsylvania and
operates

31 manufacturing facilities and mines in 18 countries Our major

research and development facility is in Ewing New Jersey

Trona ore used for soda ash production in Green River Wyoming is

mined primarily from property held under long-term leases We own

the mineral rights to the Salar del Hombre Muerto lithium reserves

in Argentina number of our chemical plants require
the basic raw

ITEM Legal Proceedings

Like hundreds of other industrial companies we have been named as

one of many defendants in asbestos-related personal injury litigation

Most of these cases allege personal injury or death resulting from

exposure to asbestos in premises of FMC or to asbestos-containing

components
installed in machinery or equipment manufactured or

sold by discontinued operations The machinery and equipment

businesses we owned or operated did not fabricate the asbestos

containing component parts at issue in the litigation and to this day

neither the U.S Occupational Safety and Health Administration nor

the Environmental Protection Agency has banned the use of these

components Further the asbestos-containing parts
for this machinery

and equipment were accessible only at the time of infrequent repair

and maintenance Recently few jurisdictions have permitted claims

to proceed against equipment manufacturers relating to insulation

installed by other companies on such machinery and equipment
We believe that overall the claims against FMC are without merit

Indeed the bulk of the claims against us to date have been dismissed

without payment

materials that are provided by these mines without which other sources

would have to be obtained With regard to our mining properties

operated under long-term leases no single lease or related
group

of

leases is material to our businesses or to our company as whole

We believe our facilities meet present requirements and are in good

operating
condition The number and location of our owned or leased

production properties for continuing operations are

As of December 31 2010 there were approximately 12000 premises and

product asbestos claims pending against FMC in several jurisdictions

Since the 980s we have had discharged approximately 98000 asbestos

claims against FMC the overwhelming majority of which have been

dismissed without
any payment to the plaintiff Settlements by us with

claimants since that time have totaled approximately $36.6 million

We intend to continue
managing

these cases in accordance with our

historical experience We have established reserve for this litigation

In late June 2004 we were served in lawsuit captioned Lewis et

al FMC Corporation which was filed in United States District

Court for the Western District of New York The suit was brought by

thirteen residents of Middleport New York who allege that we violated

certain state and federal environmental laws and seeks injunctive relief

and monetary damages for personal injuries and property damage in

connection with such alleged violations motion for summary was

filed by the Company in 2007 and is expected to be decided in 2011

We believe this suit is without merit

United States Latin America and Canada Western Europe Asia-Pacific Total

Agricultural Products

Specialty
Chcrnicals 17

Industrial Chemicals

TOTAL 10 31
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We have certain other contingent
liabilities arising from litigation

claims performance guarantees
and other commitments incident

to the ordinary course of business Based on information currently

available and established reserves the ultimate resolution of our known

contingencies including the matters described in Note 18 to the

consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K is not expected to

have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or

liquidity However there can be no assurance that the outcome of these

contingencies will be favorable and adverse results in certain of these

contingencies
could have material adverse effect on our consolidated

financial position
results of operations or liquidity

See Note Principal Accounting
Policies and Related Financial

Information Environmental Obligations Note 10 Environmental

and Note 18 Commitments Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

in the notes to our consolidated financial statements beginning on page

39 page
50 and page 68 respectively included in this Form 10-K the

content of which are incorporated by reference to this Item

ITEM Removed and Reserved

ITEM 4A Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of FMC Corporation the offices currently held by them their business experience since at least January 2006 and earlier

and their ages as of December 31 2010 are as follows

Age on

Name 12/3 1/2010 Office year of election and other information

Pierre Brondcau 53 President Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board 10-present President and Chief Executive flicer

of Dow Advanced Materials specialr materials company 091 President and Chief Operating
Officer of Rohm

and Haas company predecessor
of Dow Advanced Materials 08 Executive Vice President and Business Group

Executive Electronic Materials and Specialty Materials 07 Vice President and Business Group Executive

Electronic Materials 03 President and Chief Executive Officer Rohm and Haas Electronic Materials LLC

and Regional Director Furope 03 Board Member Tvco Electronics 07 Present

Marathon Oil Company 10 present

Kim Foster 62 Eeuiuve Vice President anti Chief Financial Officer 01-present Vice President and General Manager

Agricultural Products Group 98 Director International Agricultural Products Group 96 General Manager

fl...-.A Division 91 Board

Michael Wilson 48 President Specialty Chemicals Group 11-present Vice President and General Manager Industrial

Chemicals Group 03-10 General Manager Lithium Division 97 Vice President and General Manager

Technical Specialty Papers Division Wausau Paper Corporation 96
I_..- C.I... Rexam Inc

Mark Douglas
48 President Industrial Chemicals Group 11-present Vice President Global Operations and

International Development 10 Vice President President Asia Dow Advanced Materials 09

Corporate Vice President President Asia Rohm and Haas Company 07-09 Corporate Vice President

-ics Rohm and Haas -071

Graham Wood 57 Vice President Controller 01-Present Group Controller Agricultural Products Group 99
Chief Financial Officer European Region 97 Group Controller FMC Foodtech 93

All officers are elected to hold office for one year or until their successors

are elected and qualified No family relationships exist among any of the

above-listed officers and there are no arrangements or understandings

between any
of the above-listed officers and

any
other person pursuant

to which they serve as an officer The above-listed officers have not

been involved in any legal proceedings during the
past ten years

of

nature for which the SEC requires disclosure that are material to an

evaluation of the ability or integrity of any such officer
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ITEM Market for the Registrants Common Equity

Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

FMC common stock of $0 10
par

value is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Chicago Stock Exchange Symbol FMC There

were 4041 registered common stockholders as of December 31 2010 Presented below are the 2010 and 2009 quarterly summaries of the high

and low prices of the companys common stock

Our Board of Directors has declared regular quarterly dividends since

2006 however any
future

payment of dividends will depend on our

financial condition results of
operations conditions in the financial

markets and such other factors as are deemed relevant by our Board

of Directors Total cash dividends of $36.4 million $36.3 million

and $34.4 million were paid in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

On February 18 2011 our Board of Directors approved regular

quarterly dividend of 15 cents per
share to shareholders of record as

Transfer Agent and Registrar of Stock

Stockholder Return Performance Presentation

of March 31 2011 This
represents an increase of 20 percent over the

dividend of 12.5 cents per share declared on December 17 2010 to

shareholders of record as of December 31 2010

FMCs annual
meeting

of stockholders will be held at 200 p.m on

Tuesday April 26 2011 at Top of the Tower 1717 Arch Street 50
Floor Philadelphia PA 19103 Notice of the meeting together with

proxy materials will be mailed approximately 30 days prior to the

meeting to stockholders of record as of March 2011

The graph that follows sha not be deemed to be incorporated by $350-

reference into any filing de by FMC under the Securities Act of

1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 $300

The
following Stockholder Performance Graph compares

the five-year

cumulative total return on FMCs Common Stock for the period from

January 2006 to December 31 2010 with the SP 500 Index and

the SP 500 Chemicals Index The comparison assumes $100 was

invested on December 31 2005 in FMCs Common Stock and in

both of the indices and the reinvestment of all dividends

2010

First Second Third Fourth

2009

First Second Third Fourth

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

Attn Manager of Account Administration

161 North Concord Exchange

South St Paul Minnesota 55075-1139

$250-

$200-

150-

$100-

$50-

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

FMC Corporation

SP 500 Index

SP 500 Chemical Index
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

PART II

ITEM Selected Financial Data

Publicly Announced Program

Maximum Dollar Value

of Shares that May Yet

be Purchased

Year Ended December31

in Millions eXceprpr s/sire dos and ratios
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Income Statement Data

Resenue S3l 16.3 S2826.2 3.1 u.S 2632.9 S234S.9

income from conrinuin opcrauons before equity in earnings loss of aThliates

interest income and expense
loss on extinguishmcnt

of debt and income taxes 387.1 331.7 500 28.0 250.8

nonie from continuing operations before income taxes 50.5 310.0 471.9 19S.3 220.2

Income from conunuirmg operations
218.5 257.0 346.5 166.3 151.9

DisLontinued operations net of income taxes 33.6 18.2 24.9 24.3 12.8

Net income 184.9 238.8 321.6 142.0 139.1

ess Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest P.4 10.3 P.O 9.6 7.8

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders $172.5 $228.5 S30s.6 l32.4 S13I

Amounts attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations net of income taxes
206.1 246 329.5 156 144

Discontinued operations nrt of income taxes 3.6 18.2 24.9 24.3 12.8

For the three and twelve months ended December 31 2010 we made the following share repurchases

Total Number of Average Price Paid Total Number

Shares Purchased Per Share of Shares Purchased

Total Dollar

Amount D....4........l

Period

QI 2010 24.437 $58.38 5189808.358

Q2 2010 U0.07 560.96 410.016 999955 16 1.808 m03

Q3 2010 103650 564.40 155.700 9.99S252 1Si810b1

October 1-31 2010 65.428 $73.13 55.500 40S$.5S7 50751564

November 1-30 2010 1194268 S76.18 1194268 S9L220.963 S59.350601

December 1-31 2010 59.035 S79.96 59035 S4720421 s54.80180

Q4 0l0 1318731 6.36 1.308.803 $99999971 54 810.180

TOTAL 2010 1916892 571.82 1874519 $134998178 $54810180

On October 24 2008 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase transactions at the discretion of management based on its evaluation

of up to $250 million of our common stock At December 31 2010 of market conditions and other factors During the twelve months

$54.8 million remained unused of the 2008 authorization On ended December 31 2010 we repurchased 1874519 shares under

February 18 2011 the Board authorized the repurchase of
up to the publicly announced repurchase program

for $135.0 million We

an additional $250 million of our common stock for total of also reacquire shares from time to time from employees in connection

$304.8 million The repurchase program
does not include specific with the vesting exercise and forfeiture of awards under our equity

timetable or price targets
and may be suspended or terminated at any

time compensation plans

Shares may be purchased through open
market or privately negotiated

ITEM Selected Financial Data

Selected Consolidated Financial Data

The selected consolidated financial and other data presented below for and as of the end of each of the years
in the five-year period

ended

December 31 2010 are derived from our consolidated financial statements The selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction

with our consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31 2010

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K 17



PART II

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31

in Mi//ions evrepr per
share dew nd ratios 2U II 2009 2008 LULl JUb

Net income $172.5 $228.5 $304.6 $132.4 $131.3

Basic earnings loss per common share attributable to FMC stockholders

continuing operations $2.84 $3.40 $4.44 $2.06 $1.86

perauons W.46 0.25 0.3 0.32 0.17

Net income $2.38 $3.15 $4.10 $1.74 $1.69

Diluted earnings loss per common share attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuingoperations $2.82 $3.37 $4.35 $2.02 $1.82

Discontinued operations 0.46 0.25 0.33 0.31 0.16

Net income $2.36 $3.12 $4.02 $1.71 $1.66

alance She

Total amass $3319.9 $3136.2 $2993.9 $2733.4 $2740.7

Long-term debt $619.4 $610.5 $595.0 $497.3 $576.0

Other Data

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 7.5x 9.2x II .6x Ix S.3x

Cash dividends dedrcd per share $0.500 50.500 $0480 $0.405 $0360

1smtnud op rat ions net of income exe incltid t/cJollouing item related to our /cotinud bzenes
gains

ad losses related to aeljustnicts to our esttmates ofour liabilities

fir envirunmenial
ixposori general liability workers compnsation posrrrtirement benefit obligations legal defense property

maintenance and other costs losses for the settlement of

litigation
and

gains related to
property

sales

In
calculating

this ratio earnings consist of intome loss from continuing operations before income taxes plus interest expense amortization expense
related to debt discounts foes

and

expenses
amortization ofcapitalized interest interest included in rental

expenses assumed to be one-third of rent and
equity in earnings loss of affiliates

Fixed
charges consist of

interest
expense amortization of debt discounts foes

and
expenses interest capitalized as part of /Ixed assets and interest included in rental

expenses

Forward-Looking Information

Statement under the Safe Harbor Provisions of the Private Securities

Litigation Reform Act of 1995 We and our representatives may from

time to time make written or oral statements that are forward-looking

and provide other than historical information including statements

contained in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations within in our other filings with

the SEC or in reports to our stockholders

In some cases we have identified forward-looking statements by such

words or phrases as will likely result is confident that expect

expects should could may will continue to believe

believes anticipates predicts forecasts estimates projects

potential intends or similar expressions identifying forward-looking

statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 including the negative of those words and phrases

Such forward-looking statements are based on our current views and

assumptions regarding future events future business conditions and

the outlook for the company based on currently available information

These statements involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and

other factors that may cause actual results to be materially different from

any results levels of activity performance or achievements expressed

or implied by any forward-looking statement These factors include

among other things the risk factors listed in Item 1A of this Form 10-

We wish to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any
such

forward-looking statements which speak only as of the date made

ITEM Managements Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

We are diversified chemical company serving agricultural consumer

and industrial markets globally with innovative solutions applications

and market-leading products We operate in three distinct business

segments Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals Our Agricultural Products segment develops markets and

sells all three major classes of
crop protection chemicals insecticides

herbicides and fungicides with particular strength in insecticides

and herbicides These products are used in agriculture to enhance

crop yield and quality by controlling broad spectrum of insects

weeds and disease as well as pest
control in non-agricultural markets

Specialty Chemicals consists of our BioPolymer and lithium businesses

and focuses on food ingredients that are used to enhance texture

structure and physical stability pharmaceutical additives for binding

encapsulation and disintegrant applications ultrapure biopolymers

Discontinued

Data
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for medical devices and lithium for
energy storage specialty polymers

and pharmaceutical synthesis Our Industrial Chemicals segment

manufactures wide range of inorganic materials including soda

ash hydrogen peroxide specialty peroxygens zeolites and silicates

2010 Highlights

Through December 31 2010 our Industrial Chemicals segment
also

held niche position in phosphorous chemicals products however in

November 2010 we made the decision to exit the phosphate business

via the shutdown of our Huelva
facility

in Spain

Our businesses this year have been positively impacted by the increase

in global economic activity resulting in higher
volumes Results for

2010 reflect increases in both consolidated revenues and earnings in all

three of our operating segments
driven by solid performance

Our Agricultural Products segment revenues increased 18 percent

driven by sales gains in North America Latin America particularly

Brazil and Asia due to improved market conditions in several key crops

and growth from new and recently introduced products Revenue also

increased in our Specialty Chemicals segment
with revenues up

nine

percent compared to the prior year period Increases in the Specialty

Chemicals segment were led by robust demand recovery in lithium

primaries and strong
commercial performance in BioPolymer Our

Industrial Chemicals segment revenues increased three percent from

prior year period as volume gains across all businesses were largely

offset by reduced selling prices and lower electricity sales stemming

from the sale of Spanish cogeneration facility in 2009 In Spain we

operate electricity cogeneration
facilities and sell excess electricity

into

the Spanish
electrical grid

Agricultural Products operating profit increased seven percent compared

to the
prior year period reflecting strong sales performance partially

offset by less favorable mix higher inventory and distribution costs

increased selling and administrative expenses and higher spending on

growth initiatives Specialty
Chemicals operating profit grew by 16

percent as volume gains in lithium
primaries

favorable commercial

performance in BioPolymer and the benefits of productivity initiatives

were partially offset by higher raw material costs Industrial Chemicals

operating profit increased 37 percent from the prior year period driven

by the strong demand recovery
and lower raw material particularly

2011 Outlook

phosphate rock and
energy costs which more than offset lower selling

prices across the
segment

See Segment Results section starting on

page 21 for further discussion on the results of our operating segments

In the fourth quarter of 2010 we announced new corporate strategy

which we refer to as Vision 2015 Vision 2015 is focused on driving

sales and earnings growth while sustaining return on invested capital

well above our cost of capital and has as one of its key objectives

achieving total shareholder return in the
top quartile of broad

group
of industry peers

Vision 2015 and its five key elements are

explained in more detail in our strategy section of this Form 0-K

included in Item

In November 2010 we made the decision to cease operations at our

Huelva Spain facility and exit the phosphate business in Europe
The

facility was part of our subsidiary FMC Foret S.A Foret which is

included in our Industrial Chemicals segment
The closure of the

facility

was initiated as consequence
of the Spanish judicial ruling which

effective January 2011 prohibited us from storing phosphogypsum

on site adjacent to our production facility
The phosphogypsum is

byproduct of the process
of manufacturing phosphoric acid which is

used in the manufacturing of our phosphate products Since receipt
of

the unfavorable Spanish judicial ruling we attempted to pursue strategic

alternatives for our Foret phosphorus business With no reasonable

economic alternatives the judicial ruling inhibited our ability to cost

effectively produce our phosphate product and therefore rendered it

uneconomical for FMC to continue operations at the facility The

Huelva decision resulted in the incurrence of significant restructuring

charges in 2010

In 2011 we expect year of solid performance We expect to have an

increase to our revenues driven by increased volumes in most regions

particularly Latin America and Asia in our Agricultural
Products

segment and favorable commercial performance in BioPolymer and

higher selling prices
and favorable mix in lithium in our Specialty

Chemicals segment This revenue increase will be slightly offset by

lower revenue in our Industrial Chemicals segment as growth in soda

ash and
peroxygens

is expected to be fully offset by the absence of

revenue for the exited phosphate business

Results of Operations 2010 2009 and 2008

Overview

We expect an increase in earnings The increase will be partially driven

by higher
sales as discussed above Additionally we expect

continued

productivity improvements
in our Specialty Chemicals segments as well

as the benefit of cost reduction initiatives in our Industrial Chemicals

segment
Our projected earnings increase will be partially offset by

higher spending on growth initiatives and higher raw material costs

particularly in our Agricultural Products segment We expect
cash flow

from our business segments to remain strong

The following presents
reconciliation of our segment operating profit to net income attributable to FMC stockholders as seen through the eyes

of our management For management purposes we report the operating performance
of each of our business segments

based on earnings before

interest and income taxes excluding corporate expenses
other income expense net and

corporate special income/charges
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The following chart which is provided to assist the readers of our

financial statements depicts certain after-tax charges gains These

items are excluded by us in the measures we use to evaluate business

performance and determine certain performance-based compensation

These after-tax items are discussed in detail within the Other results of

operations section that follows Additionally the chart below discloses

our Non-GAAP financial measure After-tax income from continuing

operations excluding restructuring
and other income and charges

reconciled from the GAAP financial measure Net income attributable

to FMC stockholders We believe that this measure provides useful

information about our operating results to investors and securities

analysts We also believe that excluding the effect of restructuring and

other income and charges from operating results allows management

and investors to compare more easily the financial performance of our

underlying businesses from period to period
This measure should not

be considered as substitute for net income loss or other measures of

performance or liquidity reported in accordance with GAAP

Year Ended December 31

ii Ui//ion 2010 2009 200k

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders $172.5 $228.5 $304.6

Corporate spedal diarge income pretax 159.2 139.9 53.3

Income tax expense lbenc6t on corporate special charges income 50.4 38.8 23.0

Corporate pccial charges income net ol income taxes 108.8 101.1 30.3

Disconrintied operations net of income tax benefit of 18.7 million 11.2 million

and 15.0 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respe.tively 33.6 18.2 24.9

_______
38.7 43.7 8.7

After-tax income from continuing operations excluding restructuring

and other income and charges $353.6 $304.1 $351.1

Year Ended December 31 2010 compared to December 31 2009

Tax adjustments

In the following discussion year refers to the
year

ended December 31 2010 and prior year refers to the year ended December 31 2009

Additionally in the discussion below please refer to our chart on this
page

under Overview All comparisons are between the periods unless

otherwise noted

Year Ended December 31

2009in Mi/liens 2010 2008

Revenue

Agricultural Products $124L8 $1051.6 $1058.7

Specialty Chemicals 824.5 753.1 7645

Industrial Chemicals 1054.8 1026.7 1296.9

Eliminations 48 5.2
TOTAL $3116.3 $2826.2 $3115.3

Income loss from contisusing operations tefore income taxes

Agricultural Products $309.5 $289.0 $245.2

SpecIalty Chemicals 185.0 159.6 15211

Industrial Chemicals 122.9 89.7 201.4

Eliminations 02 0.1 11.1

Segment operating profit111 617.6 538.2 598.5

Corporate 63.0 44.1 49.8

Other income expense net 18.0 27.5 8.6

Interest expense net 39.3 27.0

Corporate special income charges

Restructuring and other income charges 151.9 132.8

Impairment of Perorsa
joint venture 1.4

Purchase accounting inventory fair value impact and other related inventory

adjustments 7.1

Pension settlement charge 7.3

Provision for income taxes 132.0 53.0 12.4
Discontinued operations net of income taxes 33.6 18.2 24.9

Net income attribuiab1e to FMC stoclchGlders $172.5 $2285

Results for al/segments are net ofnoncontrolling interests in 2010 2009 and 2008 of $12.4 million $10.3 million and $17.0 million respectively The najorisy of which pertains

to our Industrial Chemicals segment
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For management purposes segment operating profit is defined as

segment revenue less segment operating expenses segment operating

expenses consist of costs of sales and services selling general and

administrative expenses
and research and development expenses We

have excluded the following items from
segment operating profit

corporate
staff

expense
interest income and

expense
associated with

corporate
debt facilities and investments income taxes gains or

losses on divestitures of businesses restructuring
and other charges

income investment gains
and losses loss on extinguishment of debt

Agricultural Products

asset impairments Last-in First-out LIFO inventory adjustments

amortization of inventory step-up from business acquisitions and other

related inventory adjustments pension settlement charge adjustments

and other income and
expense

items

Information about how each of these items relates to our businesses

at the segment level and results by segment
are discussed below and

in Note 19 to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K

Operating Profit

Revenue of $1241.8 million increased 18 percent versus the prior year

as higher sales were recognized in North America Latin America and

Asia North America revenue increased 15 percent to $252.0 million due

to strong demand for our proprietary herbicides growth
from new and

recently introduced products particularly our newly acquired herbicide

fluthiacet-methyl and
improving

market conditions in some non-crop

segments Europe Middle East and Africa revenue of$ 158.7 million were

flat
year over year Latin America revenue of $628.9 million increased

24 percent
due to improved market conditions particularly in the

sugarcane cotton soybeans corn and tobacco segments
and growth

in new and recently introduced products Revenue in Asia increased

21
percent to $202.1 million reflecting better market conditions the

introduction of new products and growth in most countries particularly

India Indonesia Australia and China

Segment operating profit of $309.5 million increased seven percent

compared to the prior year period reflecting strong sales performance

partially
offset by higher first-half inventory and distribution costs and

selling and administrative expenses Higher selling and administrative

expenses were primarily due to foreign exchange impacts higher spending

on growth initiatives and increased people-related costs

In 2011 we expect full-year revenue growth in the high-single digits

driven by increased volumes in most regions particularly Latin America

and Asia due to expected strong market conditions and growth in new

and recently introduced products Full-year segment operating profit

growth is expected in the high-single digits reflecting the sales gains

partially offset by higher spending on growth initiatives and higher

raw material costs

Certain Regulatory Issues

In our Agricultural Products
segment

several products are undergoing

re-registration in the U.S and/or comparable regulatory review by the

European Union EU governmental
authorities In August 2006

the U.S Environmental Protection Agency EPA issued its Interim

Reregistration Eligibility
Decision IRED for our carbofuran

insecticide under the U.S federal pesticide law The IRED proposed

cancellation of all carbofuran uses in the United States subject to phase

out period for certain minor crop uses while maintaining tolerances

for imported commodities bananas coffee rice and sugarcane The

EPA reiterated its proposal in January 2008 with the issuance of draft

Notice of Intent to cancel carbofisran use Notice In February 2008

the EPA convened Scientific Advisory Panel meeting to evaluate

scientific issues relevant to the Notice Separately the U.S Department

of Agriculture issued its comments on the Notice stating that carbofuran

should continue to be registered On July 24 2008 the EPA published

proposal to revoke all carbofuran tolerances under the Federal Food

Drug and Cosmetic Act in advance of any issuance of final Notice

under the federal pesticide law We responded to that notice expressing

our strong disagreement with the EPAs proposal to revoke tolerances

and our belief that carbofuran residues on food do not pose
threat

to human health In May 2009 the EPA published its final revocation

of all carbofuran tolerances effective December 31 2009 We filed

our objections to this revocation and requested hearing before an

administrative law judge On October 30 2009 the EPA denied our

objections
and our request for hearing We believe that we are entitled

to hearing and we have challenged this decision by seeking judicial

review in the U.S federal courts On July 23 2010 the U.S Court

of Appeals
for the D.C Circuit ruled that the EPA acted arbitrarily

and capriciously in revoking the import tolerances and ordered that

those tolerances be reinstated However the Court did not extend its

rationale to the domestic tolerances and instead ruled that the EPA

had the right to deny our request
for administrative hearing In mid-

February 2011 we filed petition
for writ of certiorari seeking review

before the U.S Supreme Court In light of the December 31 2009

tolerance revocation FMC ceased sales of carbofuran in the United States

in 2009 FMCs sales of our carbofuran products in the United States

were not significant and termination of such U.S sales did not have

material effect on the Companys financial condition or results of

operations We do not know the EPAs timing on final Notice of

Intent to Cancel the carbofuran registration though the EPA has said

it intends to issue such notice after the tolerance revocation decision

is finally resolved

In the EU following an administrative appeals process
the European

Commissions proposal to exclude our bifenthrin product from the

European Commissions official list of approved pesticides was adopted

on November 30 2009 FMC had an additional six months to sell

bifenthrin in the EU i.e through end-May 2010 and subsequently

in most EU countries there is up to 6-12 months for further sale by

distributors or dealers and use by farmers We have re-submitted for

reconsideration and the product dossier is now being
reviewed by

relevant European authorities On December 30 2010 the French

Ministry of Agriculture issued notice adding bifenthrin along with

eight other pesticidal active ingredients to the Grenelle list of

pesticides prohibited for sale in France We believe that such listing

2r

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

289.0 20.5
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was unwarranted and
contrary to French administrative law and we

are challenging the decision Through these efforts we are seeking to

minimize the interruption in existing and future bifenthrin sales in

the European market

We intend to defend vigorously all our products in the U.S EU and

other countries regulatory processes
where FMCs pesticide products

will be reviewed in the ordinary course of regulatory programs during

2011 as part
of the

ongoing cycle of
re-registration in countries around

the world The Brazilian health surveillance agency has informed us

Specialty Chemicals

that they intend to review carbofuran along with 13 other major

pesticides but has yet to issue any required formal announcement

that identifies their specific concerns or preliminary position on re

registration FMC is cooperating and defending our product in this

process
Under the Brazilian regulatory process any

recommendation

would
require public notice and comment as well as concurrence from

the Brazilian environmental and agricultural ministries before
any

regulatory change is effective Thus we do not expect potential sales

impact in Brazil in 2011

Revenue in Industrial Cheraicals was $1054.8 million an increase of

approximately three percent versus the prior-year period An increase in

volumes across the
segment

increased revenues by eight percent
which

was offset by seven percenT
decline in pricing

Soda ash revenues were

up due to increased volumes particularly in the export market partially

offset by lower prices The segment experienced volume increases in

peroxygens
and phosphates offset by reduced selling prices for these

products The higher volumes in the segment also resulted in increased

freight billings
which increased revenue by three percent The segment

was also negatively impacted by $12 million or one percent decrease

due to lower electricity sales due to the divestiture of Spanish co

generation facility
in the iii ird

quarter
of 2009 In Spain we operate

electricity co-generation La cilities and sell excess electricity into the

Spanish electrical grid

Segment operating profit of $122.9 million increased approximately

37 percent versus the year ago period driven by the strong demand

recovery
and lower raw material particularly phosphate rock and

energy

costs which more than offset lower selling prices across the
segment

In 2011 we expect full-year revenue to be approximately percent

lower as growth in soda ash and
peroxygens

will be offset by the absence

of revenue from the exited phosphate business which occurred at the

end of 2010 Full-year operating profit growth is expected in the mid-

twenties driven by higher selling prices and volume growth augmented

by the benefit of cost reduction initiatives

Recent events in Venezuela such as hyperinflation devaluation of

currency government price controls parallel exchange rates and political

issues have created significant risks and uncertainties for the Venezuelan

operations of U.S-based companies Our Spanish subsidiary FMC

Foret holds noncontrolling interest in Venezuelan joint-venture

named Tripoliven The value of this investment on our consolidated

balance sheet at December 31 2010 is approximately $9 million While

the receipts of collecting dividends from this entity have slowed we

continued to receive dividends from the entity during 2010 We do

not believe there is any impairment of the entity at December 31 2010

and in light of the facts and circumstances noted above will continue

to monitor this situation The risks associated with this entity would

have an immaterial impact on our liquidity or consolidated financial

position but could result in an impact to our results of operations in

any one period in the form of an impairment charge

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decreasal

in Millions 2010 2009

Revenue S824.S 53.1 Ls 9%

Operarin Profit 185.0 9.6 2S 16

Revenue in Specialty Chemicals was $824.5 million an increase of increased revenue by 29 percent while the lower pricing impacted

approximately nine percent versus the prior-year period The increase revenues downward by seven percent The improving economic

was driven primarily by robust demand
recovery

in lithium primaries conditions in lithium are driven primarily by growth in battery and

and
strong

commercial performance in BioPolymer metals markets in Asia

BioPolymer revenues of $61 1.5 million increased six
percent

from the Segment operating profit of $185.0 million increased 16
percent versus

prior-year period This increase was primarily due to higher volumes the
year ago period as volume

gains in lithium
primaries

favorable

which increased revenue by five percent BioPolymer experienced commercial performance in BioPolymer and the benefits of productivity

broad-based volume gains across both food and pharmaceutical markets initiatives were partially offset by higher raw material costs

Additionally improved pricing and mix increased revenue driven
In 201 we expect full-year revenue growth in the mid-single digits

primarily by higher pricing in food ingredients
driven by favorable commercial performance in BioPolymer and higher

Lithium revenues of $213.0 million increased 22 percent from the
selling prices and favorable mix in lithium Full-year segment operating

prior-year period primarily due to higher volumes driven by improving profit growth is expected in the low teens reflecting higher sales across

economic conditions slightly offset by lower pricing Higher volumes all businesses and continued productivity improvements

Industrial Chemicals

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

in Millions 2010 2009

Revenue %IO4.8 Sf0267 28.1 3%

Operating Profit 122.9 897 31.2
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Other Results of Operations

Corporate expenses

We recorded
expenses

of $63.0 million in 2010 compared to

$44.1 million in 2009 The increase was primarily due to increased

incentive compensation expense
and consulting expense compared to

the prior year
The increase in consulting services is result of several

new initiatives primarily involving global procurement
aimed at

reducing the costs of goods and services purchased on world-wide

basis Corporate expenses are included as component of the line item

Selling general and administrative expenses on our consolidated

statements of income

Other income expense net

Other income expense net is comprised primarily of LIFO inventory

adjustments and pension expense
Other

expense was $18.0 million

in 2010 compared to $27.5 million in 2009 The decrease was due

primarily to income related to decrease in our LIFO inventory

reserves These charges were partially offset by higher pension expense

and incentive compensation Excluding pension expense other income

expense net is included as component
of the line item Costs of

sales and services on our consolidated statements of income Pension

expense
is included as component of the line item Selling general

and administrative expenses on our consolidated statements of income

Interest expense net

The 2010 net interest
expense

increased to $39.3 million compared to

$27.0 million in 2009 primarily due to higher interest rates associated

with our senior bond offering in the fourth quarter 2009 whose proceeds

were used to pay off lower variable rate debt under out committed

credit facilities

Corporate special
income charges

Restructuring and other charges income were $151.9 million in 2010

compared to $132.8 million in 2009 Please see the table and further

discussion regarding our restructuring and other charges income

in Note to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in

this Form 10-K The restructuring and other charges income of

$151.9 million recorded in 2010 were result of the following

Restructuring charges and asset disposals

$7.2 million charge in our Specialty Chemicals segment due to the

continued realignment of our BioPolymer alginates manufacturing

operations
The charge consisted of accelerated depreciation on

fixed assets to be abandoned of $1.6 million ii reduction to

previously
recorded severance reserves of $0.6 million iii the accrual

of costs associated with leased properties which we have ceased using

of $5.2 million and iv other shut down charges of $1.0 million

In 2009 we made the decision to close our Bayport butyllithium

facility located in Bayport Texas which is part
of our Specialty

Chemicals segment As the closure was finalized in 2010 we recorded

$1.1 million of income which consisted of reduction of previously

recorded retirement obligations at the site of $0.9 million and ii

reduction of previously recorded severance reserves of $0.2 million

$110.4 million charge in our Industrial Chemicals segment

due to the decision to shut down our Huelva
facility

and exit the

phosphate business The charge consisted of severance and employee

benefits of $37.0 million ii accelerated depreciation on fixed

assets to be abandoned of $69.4 million and iii other shut down

charges of $4.0 million We ceased production at this facility on

December 31 2010

$6.9 million charge in our Industrial Chemicals
segment

due

to our decision in 2009 to phase out operations
of our Barcelona

Spain facility The charge consisted of accelerated depreciation

on fixed assets to be abandoned of $10.1 million and ii other costs

of $1.0 million mainly related to spare part write-offs and contract

termination expenses partially offset by iii recoveries associated

with the phase out of $4.0 million and iv reduction to previously

recorded severance reserves of $0.2 million The recoveries represented

the sale of the land lease
rights

associated with portion
of this

facility

In 2009 we made the decision to shut down our manufacturing

operations at our Peroxygens facility in Santa Clara Mexico which is

part of our Industrial Chemicals segment During 2010 we recorded

$1.0 million of income which related to the reversal of previously

recorded loss contingency

Severance costs due to other workforce restructurings
of $5.5 million

primarily related to our Industrial Chemicals segment

$0.7 million gain primarily related to foreign currency translation

adjustment as result of the liquidation of
legal entity that owned

co-generation facility at Foret

Other charges income net

Corporate net charges of $14.2 million relating to environmental

remediation at operating sites

$5.7 million charge related to our Agricultural Products segment

acquiring certain rights relating to herbicide compound still under

development

$1.5 million of net charges primarily related to legal settlement

associated with the U.S hydrogen peroxide matter in our Industrial

Chemicals segment

$0.5 million of charges in our Agricultural Products segment related

to collaboration and license agreement
with third-party company

$2.8 million of charges primarily relating to the accrual of interest

associated with European Commission fine currently being appealed

The restructuring
and other charges income of $132.8 million recorded

in 2009 were result of the following

Restructuring charges and asset disposal charges

$1.8 million charge in our Agricultural Products segment due to

our decision to phase-out operations at our Baltimore Maryland

agricultural chemicals facility
The charge consisted of demolition

costs of $1.2 million and ii other shutdown costs of $0.6 million

We ceased production at this facility in the second quarter
of 2008

$13.3 million charge in our Specialty Chemicals segment
due to the

realignment of our BioPolymer alginates manufacturing operations

The charge consisted of accelerated depreciation on fixed assets to

be abandoned of $8.6 million ii severance and employee benefits

of $3.9 million and iii other shut down charges of $0.8 million

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K 23



PART II

ITEM Managements Diccussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

$7.5 million charge in our Specialty Chemicals segment
due to

our decision to close our Bayport butyllithium facility located in

Bayport Texas The charge consisted of accelerated depreciation

on fixed assets to be abandoned of $6.8 million and ii severance

and employee benefits of $0.7 million

$7.4 million charge in our Specialty Chemicals segment due to

our decision to close our Lithium metal production unit at our

Bromborough UK plant The charge consisted of accelerated

depreciation on fixed assets to be abandoned of $5.0 million

ii severance and employee benefits of $1.8 million and iii other

shut down charges of $0.6 million

$25.8 million charge in our Industrial Chemicals
segment

due

to our decision to phase out operations
of our Barcelona Spain

facility The charge consisted of severance and employee benefits

of $10 million ii accelerated depreciation on fixed assets to

be abandoned of $15.2 million and iii other shut down costs of

$0.5 million

$6.7 million charge in our Industrial Chemicals
segment

due to

our decision to shut down our manufacturing operations at our

Peroxygens facility in Santa Clara Mexico The charge consisted

of accelerated depreciation on fixed assets to be abandoned of

$3.5 million ii severance and employee benefits of $1.5 million

and iii other shut down costs of $1.7 million

$12.4 million of severance costs due to other workforce restructurings

of which $11.0 million related to our Industrial Chemicals segment

and $1.4 million related to our Specialty Chemicals
segment

Other asset abandonment charges of $6.4 million of which $2.6 million

related to our Agricultural Products segment $2.7 million related

to our Industrial Chemicals segment and $1.1 million related to

our Specialty Chemicals
segment

Asset abandonment charges were

determined based
upon our decision and related analysis to abandon

these assets before the end of their previously estimated life

$0.2 million of other charges primarily representing adjustments

related to previously recoded restructuring reserves

Other charges income net

$2.3 million net gain as result of exiting our leases at our Princeton

facility

gain of $1.0 million as result of the sale of our sodium sulfate

co-generation facility
in cur Industrial Chemicals segment

charge of $21.0 million related to the resolution of regulatory

matter in our Industrial Chemicals segment

charge of $3.3 million related to the settlement of legal matter

in our Industrial Chemicals segment

$5.6 million of charges representing settlements with state authorities

for
property

claims

Corporate charges of $20.2 million relating to environmental

remediation at operating sites

Charges of $2.0 million related to our Agricultural Products segment

acquiring
further rights under collaboration and license

agreement

with third-party company

$2.5 million of other charges primarily representing the accrual of

interest associated with the European Commission fine

The activity of the restructuring charges listed above are included

within Note to our consolidated financial statements included in

this Form 10-K We believe the restructuring plans implemented are

on schedule and the benefits and savings either have been or will be

achieved

Purchase accounting inventoty fair value impact and other related inventory

adjustments for the
year

ended December31 2009 totaled $7.1 million

In purchase accounting inventory is stepped up
from its cost value

to estimated selling prices less costs to sell This line item represented

charges related to amortization of the inventory fair value step-up

associated with the third quarter 2008 acquisition in our Specialty

Chemicals
segment

and the first
quarter 2009 acquisition in our

Agricultural Products
segment Additionally the amount in 2009 includes

inventory adjustments related to the third
quarter

2008 acquisition in

our Specialty Chemicals
segment

and subsequent alginates business

restructuring On the consolidated statements of income these charges

are included in Costs of sales and services No such events occurred

in the year ended December 31 2010

Pension settlement charge represent settlement charge associated

with the acceleration of previously deferred pension actuarial losses

The acceleration was triggered by lump-sum payout to our former

Chairman and CEO On the consolidated statements of income these

charges are included in Selling general and administrative expenses

for the year ended December 31 2010 No such event occurred for

the
year

ended December 31 2009

Provisionfor income taxes

We recorded
provision

of $132.0 million in 2010 compared with

provision of $53.0 million in 2009 resulting in effective tax rates of

37.7 percent and 17.1 percent respectively The change in the effective

tax rate was primarily result of tax adjustments recorded in 2010 and

2009 as described below

2010 tax adjustments were unfavorable in the amount of $38.7 million

and are primarily
result of

recording $40 million valuation allowance

in our Spanish legal entity predominantly due to the Huelva
facility

shutdown for tax losses that are not expected to be fully recoverable

in future years from the earnings of the remaining businesses in that

entity 2010 tax adjustments were also impacted by $3.6 million

tax charge associated with the tax treatment of the Medicare Part

subsidy which was enacted as part
of the recent U.S health care

reform legislation
The unfavorable tax adjustments were partially

offset by reduction in our liability
for unrecognized tax benefits due

to settlements of audits and expiration of statute of limitations and

recognition
of various tax credits

2009 tax adjustments were favorable in the amount of $43.7 million and

were primarily result of reduction in our liability
for unrecognized

tax benefits due to favorable settlements of tax audits and the
expiration

of statutes of limitations as well as the reversal of certain domestic

related tax valuation allowances These domestic valuation allowances

were no longer necessary
because of our expectation that the related

deferred tax assets were likely to be realized

Excluding the impact of these tax adjustments our effective tax rate in

2010 was 26.6 percent versus 31.1 percent
in 2009 and the fluctuation

is primarily the result of the mix of domestic income compared to

income earned outside of the U.S Income we earn domestically is

typically taxed at rates higher than income earned outside the U.S
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Discontinued operations net of income tax

Our discontinued operations represent adjustments to retained liabilities

primarily related to operations discontinued between 1976 and 2001

The primary liabilities retained include environmental liabilities

other post-retirement benefit liabilities self-insurance and long-term

obligations related to legal proceedings

Discontinued operations net of income tax totaled loss of $33.6 million

in 2010 versus loss of$18.2 million in 2009 The 2010 loss is primarily

related to environmental charges associated with our Middlleport site

and operating
and maintenance activities partially offset by recoveries

The 2010 loss also includes charges for legal reserves and
expenses

related to discontinued operations The 2009 loss is primarily related to

environmental charges associated with our Front Royal and Middleport

sites and operating and maintenance activities
partially

offset by recoveries

related to our Front Royal site The 2009 loss also includes charges for

legal reserves and
expenses

related to discontinued operations

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders decreased to $172.5 million

in 2010 compared with $228.5 million in 2009 The decrease was

primarily due to higher restructuring
and other charges income

and increased corporate expenses interest expense
income taxes and

environmental charges Partially offsetting these decreases were higher

profits across all segments

Year Ended December 31 2009

compared to December 31 2008

In the following discussion year refers to the year
ended

December 31 2009 and prior year refers to the year ended

December 31 2008 Additionally in the discussion below please

refer to our chart on page 20 under Overview All
comparisons are

between the periods unless otherwise noted

Segment Results

Agricultural Products

Year Ended December 31 IncreaselDecrease

2008in Millions 2009

Rtnde $1016 $10587 $71 1%
Operating Profit 289.0 245.2 43.8 18

Revenue of $1051.6 million was one percent
lower than the prior year

period as sales gains in North America Latin America which is primarily

Brazil and
non-crop

markets and generally higher pricing across the

entire business were more than
fully

offset by lower sales in Europe and

Asia which also included unfavorable
currency impacts in these two

regions North American revenues of $218.7 million increased three

percent on new product introductions price increases and sales from

the GB Professional Products line acquisition Revenues in Europe

Middle East and Africa of $146.4 million declined 11
percent

due to

weaker markets and unfavorable currency impacts In Latin America

revenues increased two percent to $506.8 million primarily due to

improved second half market conditions in Brazil partially offset by

unfavorable currency impacts In Asia revenues declined two percent

to $166.6 million due mainly to unfavorable weather conditions weak

pest pressures
and unfavorable

currency impacts

Segment operating profit of $289.0 million was 18 percent higher

than the prior year driven by growth from new products particuatly

in North America and Brazil better second half market conditions in

Brazil higher selling prices in most regions
continued global supply

chain productivity improvements the benefit of indirect tax recoveries

in Brazil lower raw material costs and lower selling and administrative

expenses

Specialty
Chemicals

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

2009 2008in Millions

Rvenue $753 $764 $I 1%
Operating Profit 159.6 152.0 7.6

Specialty Chemicals revenue of $753.1 million decreased one percent

versus the prior year period The decrease was driven primarily by

lower volumes across the Lithium business mostly offset by higher

selling prices and full year of revenue related to the acquisitions
in

the mid-third quarter of 2008 in BioPolymer

BioPolymer revenues increased to $579.2 million which is eight percent

higher than prior year This change was due to the benefit of full
year

of revenue related to the acquisitions in the mid-third
quarter

of 2008

which increased revenue by ten percent Improved pricing
and mix

increased revenue by an additional five percent These benefits were

partially offset by volume declines of approximately three percent and

the impact of weaker euro

Lithium revenues of$173.9 million declined 24 percent from the prior

year primarily due to weak demand across the business

Segment operating profit of $159.6 million was five
percent higher

than the prior year as favorable commercial performance in BioPolymer

the benefits of acquisitions in Biopolymer productivity initiatives and

recovery of export taxes in Argentina were partially offset by lower

lithium volumes temporary plant curtailments to reduce inventories

and unfavorable currency translation

Industrial Chemicals

Year Ended December 31 Increase/Decrease

2009in Millions 2008

Revenue $1 0267 $1 2969 $270 21%
OperatingProfit 89.7 201.4 111.7 55

Industrial Chemicals revenue of $1026.7 million decreased 21 percent

versus the prior year period due primarily to volume declines across

the segment These volume declines reduced
segment revenues by

approximately 15 percent while pricing remained flat despite

significant year-over-year
reduction in pricing for phosphates The

remaining decline of approximately six percent was driven primarily

by unfavorable currency impacts and reduced freight billings in line

with the volume declines noted above Soda ash revenues were down

on lower volumes with
pricing improvements partially offsetting these

unfavorable impacts Foret revenues were down on lower volumes and

pricing particularly for phosphates
and an unfavorable euro Finally

North American Peroxygens revenue decreased primarily due to volume

declines partially offset by pricing improvements

Segment operating profit of $89.7 million was 55 percent
lower than

the prior period driven by lower volumes across the
segment
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Other Results of Operations

Corporate expenses

We recorded charges of $44.1 million in 2009 compared to $49.8 million

in 2008 The decrease was primarily due to reduced incentive

compensation expense
and reductions in discretionary spending

compared to the prior year

Other income expense net

Other
expense was $27.5 niillion in 2009 compared to $8.6 million

in 2008 The increase was tlue primarily to higher charges related to

our LIFO inventory reserves higher pension expense
and an increase

to the mark ro market impact of our deferred compensation liability

Interest expense net

The 2009 net interest
expense

decreased to $27.0 million compared

to $31.9 million in 2008 piimarily due to lower interest rates on the

borrowings under our credit agreements as compared to the prior period

Corporate special income charges

Restructuring and other charges income were $132.8 million in 2009

compared to $49.6 million in 2008 Refer to page 23 for list of the

charges in this category
for the

year
ended December 31 2009 The

restructuring and other charges income of $49.6 million recorded

in 2008 were result of the following

Restructuring charges aad asset impairments

$31.5 million charge in our Agricultural Products segment due

to our decision in 2007 to phase-out operations at our Baltimore

Maryland agricultural
chemicals facility These charges consisted

of accelerated depreciation on fixed assets of $27.0 million

ii severance and employee benefits of $1.4 million and iii other

shutdown charges of $3.1 million

$5.6 million charge in our Agricultural Products
segment

due to

our decision in 2008 to phase-out operations at our Jacksonville

Florida
facility

The charge consisted of accelerated depreciation

on fixed assets of $3.8 million ii severance and employee benefits

of $1.0 million and iii other shutdown charges of $0.8 million

Severance costs due to workforce restructurings
of $8.1 million of which

$3.2 million related to our Agricultural Products segment $0.7 million

related to our Specialty Chemicals
segment

and $4.2 million related

to our Industrial Chemicals
segment

Asset abandonment charges of $7.0 million of which $2.2 million

related to our Agricultural Products
segment $1.5 million related

to our Industrial Chemicals
segment

and $3.3 million related to our

Specialty Chemicals segment

Other charges income net

gain on the sale of the Princeton property of $29.0 million completed

on March 18 2008

gain on the sale of Forets sodium sulfate assets of $3.6 million

Foret is part of our Indusirial Chemicals segment

$10.0 million charge related to an agreement
in principle to settle

class action alleging violations of antitrust law involving our hydrogen

peroxide product in our Industrial Chemicals
segment

$16.2 million of charges relating to environmental remediation at

operating
sites as Corporate charge

$1.0 million charge related to our Agricultural
Products

segment

extending their rights associated with the collaboration and license

agreement
discussed below

$2.8 million of other charges primarily representing the accrual of

interest associated with the European Commission fine

Impairment of Pero rsa joint venture represents $1.4 million charge

related to the impairment
of our Perorsa joint venture in our Industrial

Chemicals segment On the consolidated statements of income this

charge is included in Equity in earnings loss of affiliates for the year

ended December 31 2008 There is no such comparable charge in 2009

Purchase accounting inventory fair value impact and other related
inventory

adjustments for the
year

ended December 31 2009 totaled $7.1 million

Refer to page
24 for description of this charge for the

year
ended

December 31 2009 For the year
ended December 31 2008 the

charges of $2.3 million represented the amortization of the inventory

fair value
step-up resulting from the application of purchase accounting

associated with the third
quarter

2008 acquisition in our Specialty

Chemicals segment

Provision for income taxes

We recorded provision of $53.0 million in 2009 compared with

provision of $125.4 million in 2008 resulting in effective tax rates of

17.1 percent
and 26.6 percent respectively The effective tax rates were

impacted by tax adjustments recorded during 2009 and 2008 These

tax adjustments are described below

2009 tax adjustments were favorable in the amount of $43.7 million and

were primarily result of reduction in our liability
for unrecognized

tax benefits due to favorable settlements of tax audits and the
expiration

of statutes of limitations as well as the reversal of certain domestic

related tax valuation allowances These domestic valuation allowances

were no longer necessary
because of our expectation that the related

deferred tax assets were likely to be realized

2008 tax adjustments were favorable in the amount of $8.7 million and

primarily result from benefit to adjust our reserve for unrecognized tax

benefits due to favorable settlements of tax audits Partially offsetting

this benefit are charges associated with adjustments for prior years

tax matters

Excluding the impact of these tax adjustments our effective tax rate in

2009 was 31.1 percent versus 28.4
percent

in 2008 This change was

related to the 2009 resolution of regulatory matter in our Industrial

Chemicals
segment

that was non-deductible for tax purposes

Discontinued operations net of income tax

Discontinued operations net of income tax totaled loss of$18.2 million

in 2009 versus loss of $24.9 million in 2008 The 2009 loss is primarily

related to environmental charges associated with our Front Royal and

Middleport sites and operating and maintenance activities partially

offset by recoveries related to our Front Royal site The 2009 loss also

includes charges
for

legal
reserves and

expenses
related to discontinued

operations The 2008 loss is primarily related to environmental charges

associated with our Front Royal and Middleport sites and charges
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for legal reserves and
expenses

related to discontinued operations

Discontinued environmental charges include environmental remediation

costs at sites of discontinued businesses for which we are responsible

for environmental compliance

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders decreased to $228.5 million

in 2009 compared with $304.6 million in 2008 The decrease was

primarily due to lower Industrial Chemicals segment operating profit

and significantly higher restructuring and other charges income

Partially offsetting these decreases were higher profits
in our Agricultural

Products segment
and to lesser extent our Specialty Chemicals

segment

Liquidity and
Capital

Resources

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 2010 and 2009 were

$161.5 million and $76.6 million respectively We had total debt

of $637.9 million and $643.9 million at December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively This included $503.0 million and $588.0 million

of long-term debt excluding current portions of $116.4 million

and $22.5 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Short-term debt which consists of foreign borrowings
decreased to

$18.5 million at December 31 2010 compared to $33.4 million at

December 31 2009

2009 Senior Notes Offering

On November 30 2009 we issued $300 million aggregate principal

amount of 5.20% Senior Notes due 2019 The net proceeds from

the offering were used to pay
down

existing
indebtedness under our

revolving credit agreements
and for general corporate purposes

Domestic Credit AgTeement

On August 28 2007 we executed credit agreement the Domestic

Credit Agreement which provided for five-year $600 million

revolving credit facility
The proceeds from this

facility are available for

general corporate purposes including issuing
letters of credit

up to

$300 million sub-limit The Domestic Credit Agreement also contains

an option under which subject to certain conditions we may request

an increase in the facility to $1 billion

Loans under the facility bear interest at floating rate either base

rate as defined or the applicable euro currency rate for the relevant

term plus an applicable margin The margin is 0.3 percent per year

subject to adjustment based on the credit rating assigned to our senior

unsecured debt At December 31 2010 the applicable borrowing rate

under our Domestic Credit Agreement was 0.6 percent per annum

We had no borrowings under our Domestic Credit Agreement at

December 31 2010 and December 312009 Letters of credit outstanding

under the Domestic Credit Agreement totaled $130.4 million and

$153.2 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Available

funds under the Domestic Credit Agreement were $469.6 million and

$446.8 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

European Credit Agreement

On December 16 2005 FMC Finance B.V our Dutch finance

subsidiary executed credit agreement the European Credit

Agreement which provides for an unsecured revolving
credit

facility

in the amount of 220 million Borrowings may be denominated in

euros or U.S dollars FMC and our Dutch finance subsidiarys direct

parent provide guarantees of amounts due under the European Credit

Agreement On August 13 2010 we amended this agreement to extend

its maturity to August 2012

Loans under the European Credit Agreement bear interest at euro

currency base rate which for loans denominated in euros is the Euro

InterBank Offered Rate and for loans denominated in dollars is London

Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR in each case plus margin
The

applicable margin
under our European Credit Agreement is subject to

adjustment based on the rating assigned to FMC by each of Moodys

and SP At December 31 2010 the applicable margin was 1.8

percent and the applicable borrowing rate under the European Credit

Agreement was 2.5 percent per annum

At December 31 2010 and 2009 we had no borrowings in revolving

credit
facility borrowings under the European Credit Agreement resulting

in available funds of $289.1 million and $315.4 million respectively

Among other restrictions the Domestic Credit Agreement and the

European Credit Agreement contain financial covenants applicable to

FMC and its consolidated subsidiaries related to leverage measured as

the ratio of debt to adjusted earnings and interest coverage measured

as the ratio of adjusted earnings to interest expense Our actual leverage

for the four consecutive
quarters

ended December 31 2010 was 1.2

which is below the maximum leverage of 3.5 Our actual interest

coverage
for the four consecutive

quarters
ended December 31 2010

was 14.9 which is above the minimum interest
coverage

of 3.5 We

were in compliance with all covenants at December 31 2010

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash provided by operating activities for 2010

was $399.7 million

Income from continuing operations of $218.5 million reflected

restructuring and other charges of $151.9 million of which $81.1 million

was for non-cash asset write-downs related to the exit of various facilities

announced in 2010 and $46.1 million of other facilities exit costs to be

settled in cash mainly for severance costs and lease obligations
Cash

spending on restructuring
and other charges in 2010 was $53.4 million

Also included in income from
continuing operations was $14.2 million

for environmental and remediation at our operating sites which will

be
spent

in
years beyond 2010 Net cash spending on environmental

remediation at our operating sites in 2010 was $8.9 million which

was recorded against pre-existing reserves Income from continuing

operations is also adjusted
for other non-cash items which include stock-

based compensation expense and excess tax benefits from share-based

compensation There was significant increase in excess tax benefits

from share-based compensation because we utilized our remaining U.S

federal net operating losses in 2010 See Note 14 to our consolidated

financial statements included in this Form 10-K for further discussion

on these excess tax benefits

Receivables were use of cash of$109.9 million due to revenue increases

in our businesses particularly for Agricultural Products sales in Brazil

where terms are significantly longer than in the rest of our businesses

Partially offsetting the higher receivables were accrued customer rebates

which increased by $33.2 million due to increased sales primarily in

our Agricultural Products segment These rebates are primarily in

North America and Brazil and generally settle in the fourth quarter of

each year however have increased from the prior year
due to higher
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revenues in these areas Accounts payables also increased as result of

higher focus on payables management

Accrued pension
and other

post
retirement benefits were use of cash

of$105.2 million which inciuded voluntary contribution to our U.S

defined benefit plan of $80 million as well as lump-sum payout
of

approximately $15 million from our nonqualified pension plan

Cash provided by operating activities for 2009

was $343.5 million

Income from continuing operations of $257.0 million reflected

restructuring and other charges of$132.8 million of which $46.3 million

was for non-cash asset write-downs on exit of various facilities during the

year and $35.2 million of other facilities exit costs to be settled in cash

mainly for severance costs Cash spending on restructuring and other

charges during 2009 was $37.4 million Also included in restructuring

and other income and charges was $20.2 million for environmental

remediation at our operating sites which will be spent in years beyond

2009 Cash spending on environmental remediation at our operating

sites in 2009 was $7.4 million against pre-existing reserves

Receivables in 2009 were use of cash of $59.3 million as lower

receivables in Industrial Chemicals due to the revenue decline was more

than offset by increased receivables in Agricultural Products in Brazil

where sales have
grown

and terms are significantly longer Inventories

were source of cash of $35.4 million due to lower inventory costs in

Industrial Chemicals particularly for phosphate rock Accounts Payable

were use of cash of $71.5 million as the higher cost phosphate rock

in payables at the end of 2008 was replaced with lower cost phosphate

rock at the end of 2009

Accrued pension and other
post retirement benefits was use of cash

of $93.4 million which included voluntary contribution to our U.S

defined benefit plan of $75 million

Cash provided by operating activities for 2008

was $357.4 million

Income from continuing operations of $346.5 million reflected

restructuring
and other charges of $49.6 million of which $37.5 million

was for non-cash asset write-downs on exit of various facilities during the

year and $14.7 million of other facilities exit costs to be settled in cash

mainly for severance costs Cash spending on restructuring
and other

charges during 2008 was $21.3 millionAlso included in restructuring

and other income and charges was $16.2 million for environmental

remediation at our operating sites which will be
spent

in
years beyond

2008 Cash spending on environmental remediation at our operating

sites in 2008 was $13.6 million against pre-existing reserves

Receivables in 2008 were use of cash of $99.0 million due to the

higher revenue in all of our businesses particularly in Agricultural

Products in Brazil where terms are significantly longer than in rest of our

businesses Inventories were use of cash of $83.7 million as inventories

were built to support
the

stronger trading levels experienced in 2008

prior to the global economic turndown Additionally inventories in

Industrial Chemicals increated due to the
rising cost of phosphate rock

during 2008 Accounts Payable were source of cash of $52.0 million

reflecting the higher inventory levels and phosphate rock in our accounts

payable at year end 2008

Accrued pension
and other

post
retirement benefits were use of cash

of $46.8 million which included voluntary contribution to our US

defined benefit plan of $30 million

Cash required by operating activities ofdiscontinued

operations was $45.2 million $42.0 million

and $49.8 million for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

The change in 2010 compared to 2009 was due to higher spending

on legal proceedings associated with discontinued operations partially

offset by lower net environmental spending in 2010 The change in

2009 compared to 2008 was due to lower net environmental spending

for discontinued sites in 2009 Discontinued environmental spending

was $17.1 million in 2010 compared to $22.1 million in 2009 and

$32.2 million in 2008 The remaining discontinued cash outflows

primarily represents spending against reserves for legal proceedings

associated with discontinued operations

Cash required by investing activities was $154.0 million

$200.7 million and $191.7 million for 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

The decrease in cash required in 2010 was driven primarily by

reduction in acquisitions
and capital expenditures The increase in

cash required in 2009 was driven primarily by significant reduction

of proceeds from the sale of the properties
and assets during 2009 as

compared to 2008 partially offset by reduced spending on acquisitions

in 2009 Additionally capital expenditures in 2009 were approximately

$14 million less than the prior year period

Cash required by financing activities was $116.6 million

$77.8 million and $137.5 million in 2010 2009 and2008

respectively

The change in 2010 compared to 2009 was due primarily to the

repurchases of common stock and lower proceeds from borrowings

of long term debt partially offset by lower repayments under our

committed credit facilities and the inclusion of excess tax benefits from

share-based compensation
The change in 2009 compared to 2008

was due primarily to the proceeds from our borrowings of long-term

debt reduction in repurchases of common stock and reduction

in repayments
of long-term debt partially offset by higher repayments

under our committed credit facilities

Other
potential liquidity needs

Our cash needs for 2011 include operating cash requirements capital

expenditures scheduled mandatory payments
of long-term debt

dividend payments contributions to our pension plans environmental

spending and restructuring We plan to meet our liquidity needs through

available cash cash generated from operations and borrowings under

our committed revolving credit facilities We continually evaluate

our options for divesting real estate holdings and
property plant and

equipment that are no longer integral to any
of our operating

businesses

Projected 2011 capital expenditures are expected to be approximately

15 percent higher than 2010 levels primarily to increase capacity in

BioPolymer lithium and soda ash
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Projected 2011 spending includes approximately $35.0 million of net

environmental remediation spending This spending does not include

expected spending of approximately $6.6 million in 2011 on capital

projects relating to environmental control facilities Also we expect

to spend approximately $23.9 million in 2011 for environmental

compliance costs which we will include as component of costs of

sales and services in our consolidated statements of income since these

amounts are not covered by established reserves Capital spending to

expand maintain or replace equipment at our production facilities

may trigger requirements for upgrading our environmental controls

which may increase our spending for environmental controls above

the foregoing projections

In regard to our U.S qualified defined benefit
pension plan U.S Plan

the markets rebounded significantly in 2009 and 2010 exemplified by

the SP 500 index in the U.S increasing 26 percent in 2009 and 15

percent in 2010 As result of higher returns and contributions our

U.S Plan assets increased from $708.4 million at December 31 2009

to $842.4 million at December 31 2010 Our U.S Plan assets comprise

approximately 93 percent
of our total plan assets with the difference

representing plan assets related to foreign pension plans We are

maintaining the 8.5 percent assumption
for the long-term rate of return

on plan assets used in 2010 for 2011 In developing the
assumption

for the long-term rate of return on plan assets for our U.S Plan

we take into consideration the technical analysis performed by our

outside actuaries including historical market returns information

on the assumption for long-term real returns by asset class inflation

assumptions
and

expectations
for standard deviation related to these

best estimates We also consider the historical performance of our

own plans trust which earned 15 percent in 2010 and has earned

compound annual rate of return of approximately 11 percent over

the last 20 years which is in excess of comparable market indices for

the same period as well as other factors Given an actively managed

investment portfolio the expected annual rate of return by asset class

for our portfolio using geometric averaging and after being adjusted

for an estimated inflation rate of approximately 2.5 percent
is between

8.6 percent
and 10.3 percent

for
equities

and between 4.2
percent

and 6.3 percent for fixed-income investments which
generates

total

expected portfolio return that is in line with our assumptions for the

rate of return on assets In order to reduce future funding volatility

we intend to contribute $55.0 million in 2011 which is in excess of

the minimum requirements versus contributions of $80.0 million in

2010 and $75.0 million in 2009 We do not believe that the additional

contribution will have significant negative impact on our current

and future liquidity needs However continuation of the volatility

of interest rates and negative equity returns under current market

conditions may require greater
contributions to the Plan in the future

On October 24 2008 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase

of
up to $250 million of our common stock At December 31 2010

$54.8 million remained unused of the 2008 authorization On

February 18 2011 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to

an additional $250 million of our common stock for total of

$304.8 million The repurchase program does not include specific

timetable or price targets
and may be suspended or terminated at any time

Shares may be purchased through open
market or privately negotiated

transactions at the discretion of management based on its evaluation

of market conditions and other factors During
the twelve months

ended December 31 2010 we repurchased 1874519 shares under

the publicly announced repurchase program
for $135.0 million We

also reacquire shares from time to time from employees in connection

with the vesting exercise and forfeiture of awards under our equity

compensation plans

On July21 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act was signed into law Title VII of the Act contains

significant changes in the
ways

derivatives are regulated Several U.S

government regulatory agencies and departments are charged with

developing largely within 360 days of
passage

the many regulations

required under the new law While the exact effects on FMC cannot be

known until final regulations are promulgated we believe the liquidity

requirements will be adequately met by the sources available to us

Commitments

We provide guarantees to financial institutions on behalf of certain

Agricultural
Products customers principally in Brazil for their

seasonal borrowing
The total of these

guarantees was $24.1 million

and $49.5 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

and are recorded on the consolidated balance sheets for each date as

Guarantees of vendor financing The higher level of guarantees at

December 31 2009 compared with December 31 2010 arose from

greater borrowing need of our Brazilian
sugar cane customers in 2009

We guarantee repayment of some of the borrowings of certain

foreign affiliates accounted for
using

the
equity

method As of

December 31 2010 and 2009 these guarantees had maximum

potential payments
of $6.2 million and $5.8 million respectively

Short-term debt consisted of foreign credit lines at December 31 2010

and 2009 We provide parent-company guarantees to lending institutions

providing credit to our foreign subsidiaries

In connection with our property
and asset sales and divestitures we

have agreed to indemniI the buyer for certain liabilities including

environmental contamination and taxes that occurred prior to the

date of sale Our indemnification obligations with
respect to these

liabilities may be indefinite as to duration and may or may not be

subject to deductible minimum claim amount or cap
As such it is

not possible for us to predict the likelihood that claim will be made

or to make reasonable estimate of the maximumpotential loss or

range
of loss If triggered we may be able to recover certain of the

indemnity payments
from third parties We have not recorded any

specific liabilities for these
guarantees
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Our total significant committed contracts that we believe will affect cash over the next four years and beyond are as follows

Expected Cash Payments by Year
Contractual Commitments

inMillions 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 beyond Total

Debtmaturities $134.9 $21.6 $6.5 $32.7 $443.3 $639.0

Contractual interest 33.2 26.6 25.2 24.6 239.5 349.1

Leaseobligations 25.7 22.6 21.9 19.5 48.8 138.5

Certain long_term liabilities 2.1 2.1 2.1 2.1 23.0 31.4

Forward
energy

and foreign exchange

contracts 6.8

Purchase obligations 49.2 22.4 21.9 1.5 0.8 95.8

TOTAL $251.9 $953 $77.6 $80.4 $755.4 $1206.6

Excluding
discounts

Contractual interest is the interest we are contracted to pay on our long-term
debt

obligations
We had $23.0 million of long-term debt subject to variable interest rates at

December31 2010 The rate assumed for the variable interest component of the contractual interest obligation was the rate in effect at December31 2010 Variable rates are market

determined and willfluctuate over time

Before
sub-lease rental income

Payments associated with our Ewing research and development facility

At December31 2010 the net value of these contracts results in liability position

Purchase obligations consist of agreements to purchase goods and services that are enforceable and legally binding on us and spec35i all significant terms including fixed or minimum

quantities to be purchased pricprovisions
and

timing of the transaction We have entered into number
ofpurchase obligations for the sourcing of materials and

energy
where take-or-pay

arrangements apply Since the
majority of the minimum obligations under these contracts are take-or-pay commitments over the lf of the contract as opposed to year by year take-or-pay

the obligations in the table related to these
types of contracts are presented in the earliest period in which the minimum obligation could be payable under these types of contracts

As ofDecem her 31 2010 the
iability for

uncertain tax positions
was $17.3 million and this liability is excluded from the table above Due to the high degree of uncertainty regarding

the

timing ofpotentialfltture
cash

flows
associated with these liabilities we are urutble to make reasonably

reliable estimate of the amount and periods in which these liabilities might
be paid

Contingencies

On January 282005 we and our wholly owned subsidiary Foret received

Statement of Objections from the European Commission concerning

alleged violations of competition law in the hydrogen peroxide business in

Europe during
the period 1994 to 2001 All of the significant European

hydrogen peroxide producers
also received the Statement of Objections We

and Foret responded to the Statement of Objections in April2005 and

hearing on the matter was held at the end of June 2005 On May 2006

we received notice from the European Commission indicating
that

the European Commission .ad imposed fine on us and Foret in the

aggregate amount of 25.0 million as result of alleged violations during

the period 1997-1999 In connection with this fine we recorded an

expense
of $30.0 million reflecting then-prevailing exchange rates in our

consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31 2006

This
expense was included as component of Restructuring and other

charges income Both we md Foret have appealed the decision of the

European Commission The Foret appeal was argued before the Court

of First Instance on March 2010 but no decision has been rendered

The FMC appeal was argued in May of 2010 During the appeal process

interest accrues on the fine which as of December 31 2010 was at

rate of 4.0
percent per annum We have provided bank letter of credit

in favor of the European Commission to guarantee our payment of the

fine and accrued interest At December 31 2010 the amount of the

letter of credit was 30.5 million U.S $41.2 million

In February 2005 putative direct and indirect purchaser
class action

complaints were filed against six U.S hydrogen peroxide producers

and certain of their foreign affiliates in various federal courts alleging

violations of antitrust laws Related cases were also filed in various state

courts In January 2009 FMC reached an agreement to settle with the

direct purchaser class for $10 million with pro rata credit for
opt outs

The $10 million figure was included as component of Restructuring

and other charges income in our consolidated statements of income

for the year ended December 31 2008 Ten companies predominantly

paper producers opted out of this class settlement FMC settled with two

of the ten companies for an amount within the
opt out credit described

above The remaining eight opt outs filed suit against FMC and in some

cases Foret These cases were assigned to the same judge as the class action

FMCs motion to dismiss the opt out claims to the extent they were based

on foreign purchases was granted on April 2010 FMC has settled the

remaining claims of these eight opt outs for an aggregate of $1.7 million

which is net of $0.3 million
opt out credit Another individual opt out

case was dismissed following the bankrupt opt
outs decision to participate

in the class settlement FMC settled the indirect purchaser class claims for

$0.25 million The settlement has been
finally approved by the Court

and all remaining state court cases have been dismissed with prejudice

We recorded the $2.0 million as component
of Restructuring and

other charges income in our consolidated statements of income for

the year ended December 31 2010 As result all U.S litigation against

FMC regarding alleged price fixing in the hydrogen peroxide industry

is now concluded We still face putative class actions against
FMC and

five other
major hydrogen peroxide producers in provincial courts in

Ontario Quebec and British Columbia under the laws of Canada Four

of the defendants have settled these claims for total of approximately

$20.5 million On September 28 2009 the Ontario Superior Court

of Justice certified class of direct and indirect purchasers of hydrogen

peroxide FMC moved for leave to appeal the class certification decision

which was denied in June 2010 The Company intends to defend these

cases Since the proceedings are in the preliminary stages
with respect to

the merits we believe an exposure
of loss cannot be reasonably estimated

Like hundreds of other industrial companies we have been named as one

of many defendants in asbestos-related personal injury litigation Most

of these cases allege personal injury or death resulting from exposure

to asbestos in premises
of FMC or to asbestos-containing components

installed in machinery or equipment
manufactured or sold by discontinued

operations
We intend to continue managing these cases in accordance with

our historical experience We have established reserve for this
litigation

within our discontinued operations and believe that any exposure
of

loss in excess of the established reserve cannot be reasonably estimated
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In late June 2004 we were served in lawsuit captioned Lewis et al

FMC Corporation which was filed in United States District Court

for the Western District of New York The suit was brought by thirteen

residents of Middleport New York who allege that we violated certain state

and federal environmental laws and seeks injunctive relief and monetary

damages for personal injuries and property damage in connection with

such alleged violations motion for summary was filed by the Company

in 2007 and is expected to be decided in 2011 We believe this suit is

without merit and therefore have not established reserve for it

We have certain other contingent liabilities arising from litigation

claims performance guarantees and other commitments incident to the

ordinary course of business Based on information currently available and

established reserves the ultimate resolution of our known contingencies

including
the matters described in Note 18 to our consolidated financial

statements included in this Form 10-K is not expected to have material

adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or liquidity However

there can be no assurance that the outcome of these contingencies will

be favorable and adverse results in certain of these contingencies could

have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position

results of operations or liquidity

Climate Change

We have been following legislative
and regulatory developments regarding

climate change because the regulation of greenhouse gases depending on

their nature and
scope

could subject some of our manufacturing operations

to additional costs or limits on operations On December 29 2009

EPAs Mandatory Reporting of Greenhouse Gases Rule became effective

This rule requires FMC to collect information regarding greenhouse gas

emissions from our large sources and
report

them beginning in 2011 Our

Alkali Chemicals Division mines and
processes trona ore into soda ash

and related products at our facilities near Green River Wyoming This

activity constitutes most of FMCs greenhouse gas
emissions globally

We will
report to the EPA under the Greenhouse Gas reporting rule

approximately 1.6 million metric tons of direct emissions from these

operations
for 2010 In addition two plants in our BioPolymer business

will also be required to report emissions above the EPAs reporting

threshold but each plants emissions are substantially less than at our

Green River facilities in total less than 0.1 million metric tons

significant
source of greenhouse gas

emissions at Green River are process

emissions That is significant portion of the greenhouse gases
released

during the mining and processing
of soda ash occurs naturally in the

trona ore feedstock Unlike the situation with
energy efficiency where

efficiencies may result in reduction of greenhouse gases the amount

of greenhouse gases present in the trona ore cannot be reduced All of

the companies producing natural soda ash have such process emissions

Yet the lower energy intensity
of natural soda ash provides favorable

carbon intensity compared with synthetic soda ash produced throughout

the rest of the world

Energy use is major cost component
of our Alkali Chemicals business

leading to significant focus on reducing all forms of
energy

The Alkali

division has continued to make investments to lower energy intensity e.g

co-generation
solution mining As one of the divisions key performance

indicators we measure and review monthly the amount of BTUs/ton

of soda ash produced In 2010 the soda ash business engaged third

party
consultant to assist in identifying new methods to reduce

energy

usage
This effort has

proven
successful as we have lowered the

energy

needed per ton of output over the last months and have management

system in place to sustain and build on the methodologies put in place

The Alkali Chemicals Division currently sells products soda ash sodium

bicarbonate ground trona used in environmental scrubbing applications

Federal regulations require
utilities and industrial plants to reduce emissions

particularly at coal fired
power plants where FMCs products are sold

Stiffer regulations are expected to be implemented in the near future

Clean Air Interstate Rule Maximum Achievable Control Technology

and National Ambient Air Quality Standards that will increase the need

for these products The uncertainty of final climate change legislation
will

likely lead to existing
coal fired

utility plants remaining in existence for

longer period of time sustaining
demand for these products

In addition soda ash is an essential raw material in the production of

glass
of all kinds Climate change energy intensity and alternative forms

of
energy

will drive increased production of new forms of
glass lower

emissivity glass solar panel glass etc and will increase the need for this

essential raw material from FMC The soda ash industry has an interest

in assuring that climate change legislation or regulation recognizes
the

benefits of soda ash particularly
natural soda ash and the challenges

facing this industry in controlling its greenhouse gas
emissions

It is not possible at this time to predict whether or when Congress may

enact climate change legislation in the United States or what provisions

might be included in the final legislation In the absence of federal

climate change legislation the EPA has moved forward with finding

of endangerment and promulgated tailoring rule to apply the

Prevention of Significant Deterioration PSD provisions of the Clean

Air Act to greenhouse gas
emissions This rule is being challenged in

court and there may be bills introduced in Congress to withdraw EPAs

authority to regulate greenhouse gases under the Clean Air Act while

Congress considers enactment of federal legislation

Because of the many variables it is premature to make
any

estimate of

the costs of complying with un-enacted federal climate change legislation

or as yet un-implemented federal regulations in the United States

At this
point our U.S facilities are not subject to any state or regional

greenhouse gas regulation that limits or imposes fees on current emissions

and our foreign operations outside of Europe and Canada are not subject

to national or local greenhouse gas regulation Although some of our

European
and Canadian operations may be subject to greenhouse gas

regulation the cost to these facilities has not been and is not expected to

be significant and effect of European Union and Canadian greenhouse

gas regulation has not been and is not expected to be material to FMC

We have considered the potential physical risks to FMC facilities and

operations
and the indirect consequences of regulation or business

trends as result of potential future climate change Because of the many

variables not only with
respect to the science but also with respect to

the nature and effect of future global climate change regulation itself it

is impossible to predict in any meaningful way what type of property

damage or disruptions to our operations or indirect consequences might

result from future climate change

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting

Pronouncements and Regulatory Items

See Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles
The

preparation
of

these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments

that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and

expenses We have described our accounting policies in Note to our

consolidated financial statemsnts included in this Form 10-K We have

reviewed these accounting policies identifying those that we believe to

be critical to the
preparation

and understanding of our consolidated

financial statements We have reviewed with the Audit Committee

those accounting policies that we have deemed critical These policies

are central to our presentation of results of operations and financial

condition and require management to make estimates and judgments

on certain matters We base our estimates and judgments on historical

experience current conditions and other reasonable factors

Environmental obligatitrns

We provide for environmental-related obligations when they are

probable and amounts can be reasonably estimated Where the available

information is sufficient to estimate the amount of
liability

that estimate

has been used Where the information is only sufficient to establish

range
of probable liability

and no point
within the

range
is more likely

than any other the lower end of the
range

has been used

Estimated obligations to remediate sites that involve oversight by the

United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA or similar

government agencies are generally accrued no later than when Record

of Decision ROD or equivalent is issued or upon completion
of

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study RI/FS or equivalent that

is submitted by us to the appropriate government agency or agencies

Estimates are reviewed quarterly by our environmental remediation

management as well as by financial and legal management and if

necessary adjusted as additional information becomes available The

estimates can change substantially as additional information becomes

available regarding the nature or extent of site contamination required

remediation methods and other actions by or against governmental

agencies or private parties

Our environmental liabilities ror
continuing

and discontinued operations

are principally for costs associated with the remediation and/or study

of sites at which we are alleged to have released hazardous substances

into the environment Such costs principally include among other

items R1/FS site remediation costs of operation and maintenance

of the remediation plan
fees to outside law firms and consultants for

work related to the environmental effort and future
monitoring costs

Estimated site liabilities are determined based upon existing
remediation

laws and technologies specific
site consultants engineering studies or by

extrapolating experience
with environmental issues at comparable sites

Included in the environmental reserve balance other assets balance and

disclosure of reasonably possible loss contingencies are amounts from

third party insurance policies which we believe are probable of
recovery

Provisions for environmental costs are reflected in income net of

probable and estimable recoveries from named Potentially Responsible

Parties PRPs or other third parties Such provisions incorporate

inflation and are not discourited to their present values

In calculating and evaluating the adequacy of our environmental reserves

we have taken into account the joint and several
liability imposed by

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability

Act CERCLA and the analogous state laws on all PRPs and have

considered the identity and financial condition of the other PRPs at

each site to the extent possible We have also considered the identity

and financial condition of other third parties from whom recovery

is anticipated as well as the status of our claims against such parties

Although we are unable to forecast the ultimate contributions of PRPs

and other third parties with absolute certainty the degree of uncertainty

with
respect to each party is taken into account when determining the

environmental reserve by adjusting the reserve to reflect the facts and

circumstances on site-by-site basis Our
liability

includes our best

estimate of the costs expected to be paid before the consideration of

any potential recoveries from third parties We believe that
any

recorded

recoveries related to PRPs are realizable in all material respects Recoveries

are recorded as either an offset in Environmental liabilities continuing

and discontinued or as Other Assets in our consolidated balance

sheets in accordance with U.S accounting literature

See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for changes in estimates associated with our environmental

obligations

Impairments and valuation of long-lived assets

Our long-lived assets include property plant and equipment
and

long-term investments goodwill and intangible assets We test for

impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the net

book value of these assets may not be recoverable from the estimated

undiscounted expected future cash flows expected to result from their

use and eventual disposition In cases where the estimated undiscounted

expected future cash flows are less than net book value an impairment

loss is recognized equal to the amount by which the net book value

exceeds the estimated fair value of assets which is based on discounted

cash flows at the lowest level determinable The estimated cash flows

reflect our assumptions about selling prices volumes costs and market

conditions over reasonable period of time

We perform an annual impairment test of goodwill in the third quarter

The assumptions
used to estimate fair value include our best estimate

of future growth rates discount rates and market conditions over

reasonable period We performed
this test in 2010 and determined

that no impairment charge was required

See Note to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for charges associated with long-lived asset disposal costs

and the activity associated with the restructuring reserves

Pensions and other
postretirement benefits

We provide qualified and nonqualified defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans as well as postretirement
health care

and life insurance benefit plans to our employees and retirees The

costs benefits and obligations related to these benefits reflect key

assumptions related to general economic conditions including interest

discount rates healthcare cost trend rates expected rates of return

on plan assets and the rates of compensation increases for employees

The costs benefits and obligations for these benefit programs are also

affected by other assumptions such as average
retirement age mortality

employee turnover and plan participation To the extent our plans

actual experience as influenced by changing economic and financial

market conditions or by changes to our own plans demographics

differs from these assumptions the costs and obligations
for providing

these benefits as well as the plans funding requirements could increase

or decrease When actual results differ from our assumptions the
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difference is typically recognized over future periods In addition the

unrealized gains and losses related to our pension and postretirement

benefit obligations may also affect periodic benefit costs benefits in

future periods

We use certain calculated values of assets under methods both to estimate

the expected rate of return on assets component
of pension cost and

to calculate our plans funding requirements The expected rate of

return on plan assets is based on market-related value of assets that

recognizes investment gains
and losses over five-year period We use an

actuarial value of assets to determine our plans handing requirements

The actuarial value of assets must be within certain range high or

low of the actual market value of assets and is adjusted accordingly

We select the discount rate used to calculate pension and other

postretirement obligations based on review of available yields on

high-quality corporate bonds including Moodys Investors Service Inc

Moodys Aa-rated Corporate and Industrial bond indices In

selecting
the discount rate for 2010 we placed particular emphasis on

yield-curve approach designed by our actuary to derive an appropriate

discount rate for computing the
present

value of the future cash flows

associated with our pension
and other postretirement obligations taking

into consideration both the
timing

and amount of the cash flows The

specific interest rates supporting
the yield curve were derived from

calculated returns yields from portfolio
of high-quality Aa-graded

or higher bond investments constructed by our actuary

In developing the assumption for the long-term rate of return on assets

for our U.S Plan we take into consideration the technical analysis

performed by our outside actuaries including historical market returns

information on the assumption for long-term
real returns by asset class

inflation assumptions and expectations for standard deviation related

to these best estimates We also consider the historical performance

of our own plans trust which has earned compound annual rate of

return of approximately 10.61 percent over the last 20 years which

is in excess of comparable market indices for the same period as well

as other factors which are discussed in Note 13 to our consolidated

financial statements in this Form 10-K For the
sensitivity

of our pension

costs to incremental changes in assumptions see our discussion below

Sensitivity analysis related to key pension

and
postreti

rement benefit assumptions

one-half
percent

increase in the assumed discount rate would have

decreased pension
and other postretirement benefit obligations by

$60.7 million and $54.7 million at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively and decreased pension
and other postretirement benefit

costs by $6.4 million $3.1 million and $0.5 million for 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively one-half percent decrease in the assumed discount

rate would have increased pension and other postretirement benefit

obligations by $66.6 million and $59.9 million at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively and increased pension and other postretirement

benefit net periodic benefit cost by $6.5 million $4.5 million and

$0.5 million for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

one-half percent increase in the assumed expected long-term rate of

return on plan assets would have decreased pension costs by $4.5 million

$4.2 million and $4.2 million for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

one-half
percent

decrease in the assumed long-term rate of return

on plan assets would have increased pension costs by $4.5 million

$4.2 million and $4.2 million for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Further details on our pension
and other postretirement benefit

obligations
and net periodic benefit costs benefits are found in

Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements in this Form 10-K

Income taxes

We have recorded valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets

to the amount that we believe is more likely than not to be realized

In assessing
the need for this allowance we have considered number

of factors including future taxable income the jurisdictions in which

such income is earned and our ongoing tax planning strategies In

the event that we determine that we would not be able to realize all

or part
of our net deferred tax assets in the future an adjustment to

the deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the period such

determination was made Similarly should we conclude that we would

be able to realize certain deferred tax assets in the future in excess of

the net recorded amount an adjustment to the deferred tax assets

would increase income in the period such determination was made

Additionally we file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction

and various state and foreign jurisdictions The income tax returns for

FMC entities taxable in the U.S and significant foreign jurisdictions

are open
for examination and adjustment We assess our income tax

positions and record
liability

for all
years open

to examination based

upon our evaluation of the facts circumstances and information

available at the reporting date For those tax positions where it is more

likely than not that tax benefit will be sustained we have recorded

the largest amount of tax benefit with greater than 50% likelihood of

being realized upon
ultimate settlement with taxing authority that has

full knowledge of all relevant information We adjust these liabilities

if
necessary upon the completion of tax audits or changes in tax law

See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for additional discussion surrounding income taxes

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have
any

off-balance sheet arrangements
that have or are

reasonably likely to have current or future effect on our financial

condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses
results

of operations liquidity capital expenditures or capital resources that

is material to investors

Dividends

On January 20 2011 we paid dividends aggregating $9.0 million to our

shareholders of record as of December 31 2010 This amount is included

in Accrued and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets as

of December 31 2010 For the years
ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 we paid $36.4 million $36.3 million and $34.4 million in

dividends respectively

Fair Value Measurements

See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements included in

this Form 10-K for additional discussion surrounding our fair value

measurements
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ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures

About Market Risk

Our earnings cash flows and financial position are exposed to market

risks relating to fluctuations in commodity prices interest rates and

foreign currency exchange rates Our policy is to minimize exposure

to our cash flow over time caused by changes in commodity interest

and
currency exchange rates To accomplish this we have implemented

controlled
program

of risk management consisting of appropriate

derivative contracts entered into with
major

financial institutions

See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K for additional discussion surrounding the accounting

treatment of our financial instruments

Commodity Price Risk

The analysis below presents the sensitivity of the market value of our

financial instruments to selected changes in market rates and prices

The range
of

changes
chosen reflects our view of changes that are

reasonably possible over one-year period
Market-value estimates are

based on the present value of projected future cash flows considering

the market rates and prices chosen

At December 31 2010 our net financial instrument position was

net liability
of $6.8 million compared to net asset of $0.3 million at

December 31 2009 The change in the net financial instrument position

was primarily due to higher unrealized losses in our commodity and

foreign exchange portfolios

Energy costs are approximately percent
of our costs of sales and services

and are diversified among coal electricity
and natural

gas
We

attempt to

mitigate our exposure to increasing energy costs by hedging the cost of

future deliveries of natural gas and by entering into fixed-price contracts

for the purchase of coal and fuel oil To analyze the effect of changing

energy prices we have perfurmed sensitivity analysis in which we

assume an instantaneous 10
percent change in

energy
market prices

from their levels at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 with

all other variables including interest rates held constant 10 percent

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

increase in
energy

market prices would result in decrease of the net

liability position of $3.4 million at December 31 2010 compared to

$5.1 million increase in the net asset position at December 31 2009

10 percent decrease in energy
market prices would result in an increase

of $3.4 million in the net liability position at December 31 2010

compared to decrease of $7.0 million in the net asset position at

December 31 2009 As result at December 31 2009 the net asset

position
would have become net liability position

The primary currencies for which we have exchange rate exposure are

the U.S dollar versus the euro the U.S dollar versus the Chinese yuan

and the U.S dollar versus the Brazilian real Foreign currency debt and

foreign exchange forward contracts are used in countries where we do

business thereby reducing our net asset exposure Foreign exchange

forward contracts are also used to hedge firm and highly anticipated

foreign currency
cash flows

To analyze the effects of cii anging foreign currency rates we have

performed sensitivity analysis in which we assume an instantaneous 10

percent change in the foreign currency exchange rates from their levels

at December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 with all other variables

Interest Rate Risk

including interest rates held constant 10 percent strengthening

of hedged currencies versus our functional currencies would have

resulted in an increase of $33.3 million in the net liability position at

December 31 2010 compared to an increase of$17.5 million in the

net liability position at December 31 2009 10
percent weakening

of hedged currencies versus our functional currencies would have

resulted in decrease of $31.1 million in the net liability position

at December 31 2009 compared to decrease of $17.8 million

in the net liability position at December 31 2009 As result at

December 31 2010 and 2009 the net liability position would have

become net asset position

One of the strategies that can use to manage interest rate exposure

is to enter into interest rate swap agreements
In these

agreements we

agree to exchange at specified intervals the difference between fixed

and variable interest amoun calculated on an agreed-upon
notional

principal amount As of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

we had no interest rate swaç agreements

Our debt portfolio at December 31 2010 is composed of 93 percent

fixed-rate debt and percent
variable-rate debt The variable-rate

component of our debt portfolio principally consists of borrowings

under our Domestic and European Credit Agreements variable-rate

industrial and pollution
control revenue bonds and amounts outstanding

under foreign subsidiary credit lines Changes in interest rates affect

different portions of our variable-rate debt portfolio in different
ways

Based on the variable-rate debt in our debt portfolio at

December 31 2010 one percentage point increase in interest rates

then in effect would have increased gross interest expense for 2010

by $0.4 million and one percentage point decrease in interest rates

then in effect would have decreased
gross

interest
expense

for 2010

by $0.3 million
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ITEM Financial Statements and SupplementaryData

The following are included herein

Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years
Report

of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended December 31

in Millions Fxcept
Per Share Data 201 2009 200

REVENUE $3116.3 $2826.2 $3115.3

Costs and expenses

Costs of sales and services
2.065.6 1.93.6 2134.4

Selling general and administrative expenses
411 322.3 336.8

Research and development expenses
100.5 92.8 93.8

Restructuring and other charges income 151.9 132.S 49.6

TOTAL COSTS AND EXPENSES 2729.2 2491.5 2614.6

Income from continuing operations before equity in earnings loss of affiliates

interest income and expense
and income taxes

387.1 334.7 500.7

Equity in earnings loss of affiliates 2.7 2.3 3.1

Interest income 0.2 0.2 1.0

Interest expense
39.5 27.2 32.9

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 350.5 310.0 471.9

Provision for inconhe taacs
132.0 53.0 125.4

Income from continuing operations
218.5 25.0 346.5

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 33.6 l18 24.9

Net income 184.9 238.8 321.6

I.ess Net income attributable to noncontrolliog interests 12.4 10.3 17.0

Net income attributable to FMC stockholders $172.5 $228.5 $304.6

AMOUNTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS

Continuing operations net of income taxes
$206.1 S246.7 329.5

Discontinued operations net of income taxes 33.6 18.2 24.9

Net income $172.5 $228.5 %304.6

BASIC EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC

STOCKHOLDERS

Continuing operations
$2.84 3.40 $4.44

Discontinued operations
0.46 0.25l 0.34l

Net income $2.38 S3.IS S4.10

DILUTED EARNINGS LOSS PER COMMON SHARE PJTRIBUTABLE TO

FMC STOCKHOLDERS

Continuing operations
$2.82 $3.37 $4.35

Discontinued operations
0.46 0.25 0.33

Net income
$2.36 $3.12 $4.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidatedfinancial statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

in Mi/finn Escepr Share and Par afue Datal 2010 2009

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 161 .S 76.6

ride recei.abIe net ol allovanre ol S2 in 2010 and 18.2 in 200- 852.9

Inveniories 317.8 370.3

Prepaid md other curt-en asets 753 38.0

Deterred income razes 108.7 173.0

Iota current assets 1646.2 1487.7

Ins estments 14 22.4

Properis plant and equip wnr net 8.5 96-1.5

Goodvill 191.4 209.5

Othe asseN 123 211.-s

Deterred income taxes 14
TOTAL ASSETS $3319.9 $3136.2

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

short-term debt 518.5 S33A

Current
portion

of longterm debt 16.s 22.5

Accounts pavabk trade md other 389.3 290.5

Accrued and other liabilities 223.0 80.S

Accrued payroll 66.3 52.2

Accrued customer rebates 100.9 67.3

Guarantees of vendor financing 24.1 49.5

Accrued
pension

and other pus ret ernenr benets current 9.5

Income taxes 15.4 3.6

lotal current liabilities 963.4 709.2

1.ong-term debt less curreur portion 503.0 588.0

Accrued pension and other pe suetiremem 1enefiis longterm 307.5 364.8

Fir ironmental liabilities con inuing and discontinued 209.9 167.0

Resers.e fur discoririnued
operirtons

38AT

Other long-term liabilities 108.3 132.4

Commitmcnrs md contingen liabilit es Norc 18

Equity

Preferred stock no par vakic .attthorized 5000000 shares no shares issued or outstanding

in 2110 and 2009

Gommon stock 50.10
par saluc authorized 130.000000 shares in 2010 and 2009 92991.896

issued in 2010 and 2009 9.3 13

Capital in escess ofpar value of common stock 443.6 388.6

Retained earnings 1853.0 1716.9

Accumulated other comprel ensive income loss 279.2

Ireasurv stock common .11 cost 21506.052 shares in 2010 and 20173016 shares in 2009 862 59.2

Iota FM srorkholders equily 1111.5 1076.4

Noncontrolling interests 577 56.7

Total equity 1189.2 1133.1

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $3319.9 $3136.2

siil/17iy11i 1Ot ii ill 1flt/il//ii o/il OfliOlid/et/fOlltCl.Il id/I IIIG/1S
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

in lhllions
1010 2009 2008

Cash provided required by operating activities of continuing operations

Net income
$184.9 S238.S 5321.6

Discontinued operations
33.6 18.2 2.9

Income from continuing operations
5218.5 c257.0 8346.5

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to cash provided required

by operating activities of continuing operations

Depreciation and arnorti/atlon
133.6 1.2 124.2

Equity in karnings ioss of affiliates
77 2.3 3.1

Restructuring and other charges income 151.9 132.8 49.6

Deferred inwme taxes
32.1 49.9 96.9

Pension and other postret
irernent benefits

39.4 i.3 6.9

Share-based compensation
1.7 11.2 10.6

Excess tax benefits from sharebased compensarion
56.3

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effect of acquisitions and divestitures

iacle receivables net 109.9 c9.3 99.0

Guaranrccs of vLndor financing
25.4 29.2 9.4

Insenrorics
79 35 83.7

Other current assets and other assets
31.6 25.9 43.0

Accounts payable
106.6 71.5 5.O

Accrued and other current liabilitks and other liabilities
2.6 3.6 8.9

Accrued
payroll

142 6.4 0.7

ccrued customer rebates
33.2 13.7 1.8

Income taxes
59.4 21.0 0.6

Accrued pension
and other postretirement benefits net 105.2 93.4 46.8

Environtssental spendin continuing net ofrecoseries 8.9 17.4 13.6

Restructuring and other spending
53.4 37.4 21.3

Cash provided tequired operating activities
3997 343.5 357

Cash provided required by operating activities of discontinued operations

Lnvironmental spending diswntinued net of recox cries 17.1 22.1 32.2

Pasnsents of other discontinued reserves
28.1 19.9 17.6

Cash provided required h1 operating activities of discontinued operations 45.2 2.0 -i9.8

Cash provided required by investing activities

Capital expenditures
142.3 161.2 174.8

Proceeds from disposal ofproperty plant anti equipment
26 19 5.7

Proceeds from sale of Princeton propettv
59._I

Proceeds from sale of sodium sulfate assets
31 16.7

\cquisitions net of cash acquired
17.5 .3 90.6

Other investing activities
6.81 13.0 8.fl

Cash provided requireth insesting activities
154.0 200.7 111.7

Cash provided required by financing activities

Net hortossings repayments under committed credit facilities
369.2 191.8

Increase decrease in other short-term debt 14.9

Proceeds from horrossings of long-term debt 35.0 .r9.1

Financing
fees

R6

Repayments of long_term debt 26.0 3.5 90.9

Distributions to noncontrolling interests
11.0 13.41 12.5

Di idends psid
36.4 36.3 34

Issuances of common stock net
18.1 10.2 13.1

Lx ess tax benefIts from sharebased compensation
56.3

Repurchase of common stock 137.7 36.6 186.9

Other financing activities
104

Cash pros ided required by financing activities
116.61 77.8 137.5

Ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
1.0 1.2 1.5

Increase dc.rease in cash and cash equivalents
84.9 4.2 23.1

Cash and cash eqttivalems beginning of period
76.6 52.4 75.5

Cash and cash equivalents end of period
516L5 S76.c 52.4

Tb
..ceompa.n

u.sar.n iirralpzrr of
4.. cwoo/u/arc./JIndieiNI sOil meilis

Cash paid for interest was 545.9 million $28.1 million and 537.8 million and income taxes paid net of refunds was 841.5 million 5.1 million

and 524.0 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectivel\ See Note 15 regarding quarterly cash dix idend
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

FMC Stockholders

Common Stock

$0.10 ParValue

Capital Accumulated

In Excess Retained Other Comprehensive Treasury

of Par Earnings Income Loss Stock

Non-

controlling

Interest

Total

Equityin Mi/lions cepr Per Share Data

Balance December 31 2007 $9.3 $407.5 $1255.8 $9.9 $598.4 $58.4 $1122.7

Net income 304.6 17.0 321.6

Stock compensation plans 12.0 35.8 23.8

Shares for benefit plan trust 1.0 1.0

Reclasification adjustments for losses gains

included in net income net olincome tax

expense of 1.7 0.9 0.9

Net unrealized pension and other benefit actuarial

gainsRlosses and prior service costs credits

net of income tax benefit of1 16.6 190.9 190.9

Net deferral of hedging gains losses and other

net of income tax benefit of$ 17.8 31.7 31.7

Foreign currency
translation adjustments 44.5 0.6 43.9

Dividends 0.48 per share 35.7

Repurchases of common stock 186.9 186.9

Distributions to noncontrolliitg interests 112.5 115
Balance December 31 2008 $9.3 $395.5 $1524.7 $276.1 $750.5 $63.5 $966.4

Net income 228.5 10.3 238.8

Stock compensation plans 7.3 28.5 21.2

Shares for benefit plan trust 0.6 0.6

Reclassification adjustments for losses gains

included in net income Oct oincotne taa

expense oKl6.2 25.4 25.4

Net unrcali7ed pension and other benefit actuarial

gains/lJosscsl and prior service costs credits

net of income tax benefit of $18.6 53.5 535
Net deferral of hedging gains losses and other

net of itscome tax expense of3.0 7.6 7.6

Acquisition of noncontrollirig interest 0.4 3.2 2.8

Foreign cctrrencv translation aijustments 17.4 0.5 16.9

Dividends 0.50 per share 36.3 36.3

Repurchases of cotn mon stocl 36.6 36.6

Distributions to noncontrollirginretests 13.4 13.4

Balance December 31 2009 $9.3 $388.6 $1716.9 279.2 $759.2 $56.7 $1133.1

Net income 172.5 12.4 184.9

Stock compensatiots plans 1.3 34.1 32.8

Excess tax benefits from share- based

compensation 56.3 56.3

Shares for benefit plan trust 0.1 0.1

Reclassification adjustments icr losses gains

included in net income net ol income tax

expense of$13.7 22.4 22.4

Net unrealized pension and other benefit actuarial

gains/losses and
prior

sers ice costs credits

net of income tax benefit of 6.3 23.4 23.4

Net defrral of hedging gains lloses atsd other

net of income tax benefit of $3.6 5.9 5.9

Foreign currency translation adjustments 25.6 0.4 26.0

Dividends $0.50 per share 36.4 36.4

Repurchases of common stock 137.7 137.7

Distribtttions to noncontrollieg interests 1.0 11.0

Balance December31 2010 $9.3 $443.6 $1853.0 $311.7 $862.7 $57.7 $1189.2

TJe acrompnn3ing no/er ao an in/rrd/ part oJ thee consolidatedfinancial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31

in iljllion
2010 2009 2008

Net income
$184.9 $238.8 $321.6

Rcdassifica.t ion adjustments for losses gains included in net income net of income tax expense

of 16.2 and S1.7 for tile years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively
22.4 5t 0.9

Foreign currency translation adjustment
26.0 16.9 3.9

Net deferral ol hedging gains losses and other 5.9 .6 31.7

Net unrealized pension and other benefit actuarial gainsfOosccsj and prior service costsl credits 23.4 53.5 l90.9

Comprehensise income
152.0 235.2 56.0

Less Comprehensive income attributable to the noncontrolling interest
12.0 9.8 17.6

Comprehensive income attributable so FMC stockholders $140.0 25.4 S3S.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated
financial

statements

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE Principal accounting policies and related financial information

Nature of operations

We are diversified chemical company serving agricultural consumer

and industrial markets globally with innovative solutions applications

and market-leading products We operate in three distinct business

segments Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals Our Agricultural
Products

segment develops
markets and

sells all three major classes of crop protection
chemicals insecticides

herbicides and fungicides with particular strength in insecticides

and herbicides These products are used in agriculture to enhance

crop yield and quality by controlling broad spectrum
of insects

weeds and disease as well as pest
control in non-agricultural

markets

Specialty Chemicals consists of our BioPolymer and lithium businesses

and focuses on food ingredients
that are used to enhance texture

structure and physical stability pharmaceutical additives for binding

encapsulation and disintegrant applications ultrapure biopolymers

for medical devices and lithium for energy storage specialty polymers

and pharmaceutical synthesis Our Industrial Chemicals segment

manufactures wide range
of inorganic materials including soda

ash hydrogen peroxide specialty peroxygens
zeolites and silicates

Through December 31 2010 our Industrial Chemicals segment
also

held niche position in phosphorous
chemicals products however in

November 2010 we made the decision to exit the phosphate business

via the shutdown of our Huelva
facility

in Spain See Note

Basis of consolidation and basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of FMC Corporation

and its subsidiaries were prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America Our

consolidated financial statements include the accounts of FMC and all

entities that we directly or indirectly control All
significant intercompany

accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation

Estimates and assumptions

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP we are required to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue

and
expenses during the reporting period Actual results are likely to

differ from those estimates but we do not believe such differences will

materially affect our financial position
results of operations or cash flows

Cash equivalents

We consider investments in all liquid
debt instruments with original

maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Trade receivable net of allowance

Trade receivables consist of amounts owed to us from customer sales and

are recorded when revenue is recognized The allowance for trade receivables

represents our best estimate of the probable
losses associated with potential

customer defaults In developing our allowance for trade receivable we

utilize two stage process
which includes calculating general formula to

develop an allowance to appropriately address the uncertainty surrounding

collection risk of our entire portfolio and specific
allowances for customers

where the risk of collection has been reasonably identified either due to

liquidity constraints or disputes over contractual terms and conditions

Our method of calculating the general formula consists of estimating

the recoverability of trade receivables based on historical experience

current collection trends and external business factors such as economic

factors including regional bankruptcy rates and political factors Our

analysis of trade receivable collection risk is performed quarterly
and
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the allowance is adjusted accordingly The allowance for trade receivable

is $21.7 million and $18.2 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009

The provision to the allowance for trade receivables charged against

continuing operations was $4.3 million $5.8 million and $3.1 million

for the
years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Investments

Investments in companies in which our ownership interest is 50 percent

or less and in which we exercise significant influence over operating and

financial policies are accounted for
using the equity method Under the

equity method original investments are recorded at cost and adjusted

by our share of undistributed earnings and losses of these investments

Majority owned investments in which our control is restricted are also

accounted for
using

the
equity

method All other investments are carried

at their fair values or at cost as appropriate We are parry to several joint

venture investments througho Jr the world which individually and in the

aggregate are nor significant to our financial results

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value Inventory costs

include those costs directly attibutable to products before sale including

all manufacturing overhead but
excluding distribution costs All domestic

inventories excluding materiais and supplies are determined on last-in

first-out LIFO basis and our remaining inventories are recorded on

first-in first-out FIFO basis See Note

Property plant and equipment

We record
property plant and equipment including capitalized interest

at cost Depreciation is provided principally on the
straight-line

basis over

the estimated useful lives of the assets land improvements 20
years

buildings 20 to 40
years

and machinery and equipment to 18

years Gains and losses are reFlected in income upon
sale or retirement

of assets Expenditures that exend the usefril lives of
property plant and

equipment or increase productivity are capitalized Ordinary repairs
and

maintenance are expensed as incurred through operating expense

Impairments of long-lived assets

We review the
recovery

of the net book value of long-lived assets whenever

events and circumstances indicate that the net book value of an asset may

not be recoverable from the estimated undiscounred future cash flows

expected to result from its use and eventual disposition In cases where

undiscounted expected future ash flows are less than the net book value

we recognize an impairment loss equal to an amount by which the net book

value exceeds the fair value of tie asset Long-lived assets to be disposed of

are reported at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell

Asset retirement obligations

We record asset retirement obligations at fair value at the time the
liability

is incurred if we can reasonably estimate the settlement date The associated

asset retirement obligations AROs are capitalized as part of the carrying

amount of related long-lived assets In future periods the
liability

is accreted

to its present value and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful

life of the related asset We also adjust the
liability

for changes resulting

from the
passage

of time and/or revisions to the timing or the amount of

the original estimate Upon retirement of the long-lived asset we either

settle the obligation for its recorded amount or incur gain or loss See

Note for further discussion on our AROs

Restructuring and other charges

We continually perform strategic reviews and assess the return on our

businesses This sometimes results in plan to restructure the operations

of business We record an accrual for severance and other exit costs under

the provisions of the relevant accounting guidance

Additionally as part of these restructuring plans write-downs of long-lived

assets may occur Two types of assets are impacted assets to be disposed

of by sale and assets to be abandoned Assets to be disposed of by sale are

measured at the lower of carrying amount or estimated net proceeds from

the sale Assets to be abandoned with no remaining future service potential

are written down to amounts expected to be recovered The useful life of

assets to be abandoned that have remainingfuture service potential are

adjusted and accelerated depreciation is recorded over the adjusted useful life

Capitalized interest

We capitalized interest costs of $7.5 million in 2010 $3.8 million in

2009 and $5.7 million in 2008 These costs were associated with the

construction of certain long-lived assets and have been capitalized as

part of the cost of those assets We amortize capitalized interest over

the assets estimated useful lives

Other assets

Unamortized capitalized software costs totaling $18.5 million and

$13.8 million at December 312010 and 2009 respectively
are components

of other assets which also include debt financing fees advances to contract

manufacturers recoveries related to environmental obligations see Note 10

intangibles assets other than goodwill see Note fair value of deferred

compensation arrangement see Note 17 and other deferred charges We

capitalize
the costs of internal use software in accordance with accounting

literature which generally requires the
capitalization

of certain costs incurred

to develop or obtain internal use software We assess the recoverability of

capitalized software costs on an ongoing basis and record write-downs to

fair value as necessary We amortize capitalized software costs over expected

useful lives ranging from three to ten years

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets intangibles are

nor subject to amortization Instead they are subject to at least an annual

assessment for impairment by applying fair value-based test

We test goodwill for impairment annually using the criteria prescribed

by U.S GAAP accounting guidance for goodwill and other intangible

assets We did not record any goodwill impairments in 2010 2009 and

2008 Based upon our annual impairment test conducted in 2010 we

believe that the fair value of our reporting units with goodwill substantially

exceeds their
carrying value

Definite life intangible assets consist primarily of patents access rights

customer relationships registration rights industry licenses developed

formulations and other intangibles and are being amortized over periods

of to 20 years See Note for additional information on goodwill and

intangible assets
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Revenue recognition

We recognize revenue when the earnings process is complete which is

generally upon transfer of title This transfer typically occurs either
upon

shipment to the customer or upon receipt by the customer In all cases

we apply
the following criteria in recognizing revenue persuasive evidence

of an arrangement exists delivery has occurred the selling price is fixed or

determinable and collection is reasonably assured Rebates due to customers

are accrued as reduction of revenue in the same period that the related

sales are recorded based on the contract terms

We record amounts billed for shipping and handling fees as revenue Costs

incurred for shipping and handling are recorded as costs of sales and services

Income and other taxes

We provide current income taxes on income reported
for financial statement

purposes adjusted for transactions that do not enter into the computation

of income taxes payable and recognize
deferred tax liabilities and assets for

the expected future tax consequences
of

temporary
differences between

the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities We do not

provide income taxes on the equity in undistributed earnings of foreign

subsidiaries or affiliates when it is our intention that such earnings will

remain invested in those companies
Investment tax credits or grants

which were immaterial to us in all years presented are accounted for in

the period
earned the flow-through method

We record on net basis all taxes collected from customers to be remitted

to governmental
authorities in our consolidated statements of income

Foreign currency translation

We translate the assets and liabilities of our foreign operations at exchange

rates in effect at the balance sheet date The foreign operations income

statements are translated at the monthly exchange rates for the period

For operations where the local currency is the functional currency we

record translation gains and losses as component
of accumulated other

comprehensive
income or loss in stockholders equity until the foreign

entity is sold or liquidated We did not have significant operations in any

highly inflationary countries during 2010 2009 and 2008 In countries

where the local currency is not the functional currency except
for

property

plant and equipment and other non-current assets which are converted to

functional currencies at historical exchange rates all gains or losses from

conversion are included in net income Net income loss for 20102009

and 2008 included aggregate
transactional foreign currency gains and

losses We recorded net gain loss of $15.5 million $7.5 million and

$0.4 million for the
years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively Other comprehensive income or loss for 20102009 and 2008

included translation gains losses of $25.6 million $17.4 million and

$44.5 million respectively

The value of the U.S dollar and other currencies in which we operate

continually fluctuate Results of operations
and financial position

for all the
years presented have been affected by such fluctuations

We enter into certain foreign exchange contracts to mitigate
the

financial risk associated with this fluctuation as discussed in Note 17

These contracts typically qualifr for hedge accounting See Derivative

financial instruments below and Note 17

Derivative financial instruments

We mitigate certain financial exposures including currency risk interest

rate risk and
energy purchase exposures through controlled program

of

risk management
that includes the use of derivative financial instruments

We enter into foreign exchange contracts including forward and purchased

option contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign currency

exchange rates

We recognize
all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value On the

date the derivative instrument is entered into we generally designate
the

derivative as either hedge of the variability
of cash flows to be received

or paid
related to forecasted transaction cash flow hedge or hedge

of the fair value of recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized

firm commitment fair value hedge We record in accumulated other

comprehensive income or loss changes in the fair value of derivatives that

are designated as and meet all the required criteria for cash flow hedge

We then
reclassifr

these amounts into earnings as the underlying hedged

item affects earnings We record inunediately in earnings changes in the

fair value of derivatives that are not designated as cash flow hedges

We formally document all relationships between hedging
instruments

and hedged items as well as the risk management objective and strategy

for undertaking various hedge transactions This
process

includes relating

derivatives that are designated as fur value or cash flow hedges to specific

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to
specific

firm commitments

or forecasted transactions We also formally assess both at the inception

of the hedge
and throughout its term whether each derivative is highly

effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged

item If we determine that derivative is not highly effective as hedge or

if derivative ceases to be highly
effective hedge we discontinue hedge

accounting
with

respect to that derivative prospectively We had gain

loss of $0.3 million $0.7 million and $0.2 million related to hedge

ineffectiveness for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

Treasury stock

We record shares of common stock repurchased at cost as treasury stock

resulting in reduction of stockholders equity
in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets When the
treasury

shares are contributed under our employee benefit

plans we use first-in first-out FIFO method for determining cost

The difference between the cost of the shares and the market price at the

time of contribution to an employee
benefit plan is added to or deducted

from capital in excess of
par

value of common stock

Segment information

We determined our reportable segments
based on our strategic

business units

the commonalities among the products
and services within each segment

and the manner in which we review and evaluate operating performance

We have identified Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals as our reportable segments Segment disclosures are included

in Note 19 Segment operating profit is defined as segment revenue less

segment operating expenses segment operating expenses
consist of costs of

sales and services selling general and administrative expenses
and research

and development expenses We have exduded the following items from

segment operating profit corporate
staff

expense
interest income and

expense
associated with corporate

debt facilities and investments income

taxes gains or losses on divestitures of businesses restructuring and other

charges income investment gains and losses loss on extinguishment
of

debt asset impairments
LIFO inventory adjustments amortization of
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inventory step-up from business acquisitions and other related inventory

adjustments pension settlement charges and other income and
expense

items Information about how restructuring and other charges income

relate to our businesses at the
segment level is discussed in Note

Segment assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that are recorded

and reported by segment operations Segment operating capital employed

represents segment assets less segment liabilities Segment assets exclude

corporate and other assets which are principally cash equivalents the LIFO

reserve on inventory deferred income taxes eliminations of intercompany

receivables and
property

and equipment not attributable to specific

segment Segment liabilities exclude substantially all debt income taxes

pension and other
postretirement benefit liabilities environmental reserves

restructuring reserves deferred gains on sale and leaseback of equipment

fair value of currency contrans intercompany eliminations and reserves

for discontinued operations

Geographic segment revenue is based on the location of our customers

Geographic segment long-lived assets include investments net property

plant and equipment and other non-current assets Geographic segment

data is included in Note 19

Stock compensation plans

We recognize compensation eapense in the financial statements for all share

options and other equity-based arrangements
Share-based compensation

cost is measured at the date of
grant

based on the fair value of the award

and is recognized over the employees requisite
service period See Note 14

for further discussion on our share-based compensation

Environmental obligations

We provide for environmentai.-related obligations when they are probable

and amounts can be reasonably estimated Where the available information

is sufficient to estimate the amount of
liability

that estimate has been used

Where the information is only sufficient to establish
range

of probable

liability
and no point within the

range is more likely than any other the

lower end of the range has been used

Estimated obligations to remediate sites that involve oversight by the

United States Environmental Protection Agency EPA or similar

government agencies are generally accrued no later than when Record

of Decision ROD or equivalent is issued or upon completion of

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study RIIFS or equivalent that

is submitted by us and the appropriate government agency or agencies

Estimates are reviewed quarterly and if necessary adjusted as additional

information becomes available The estimates can change substantially as

additional information becomes available regarding the nature or extent

of site contamination required remediation methods and other actions

by or against governmental agencies or private parties

Included in the environmental reserve balance other assets balance and

disclosure of reasonably possible loss contingencies are amounts from

third party insurance
policies

which we believe are probable of
recovery

Our environmental liabilities for continuing and discontinued operations

are principally for costs associated with the remediation and/or study of

sites at which we are alleged to have released hazardous substances into the

environment Such costs principally include among
other items RI/FS site

remediation costs of operation and maintenance of the remediation plan

attorney
fees and consultants fbr work related to the environmental effort

and future monitoring costs Estimated site liabilities are determined based

upon existing remediation laws and technologies specific
site consultants

engineering studies or by extrapolating experience with environmental

issues at comparable sites

Provisions for environmental costs are reflected in income net of probable

and estimable recoveries from named Potentially Responsible Parties

PRPs or other third parties Such provisions incorporate inflation and

are not discounted to their present values

In calculating and evaluating the adequacy of our environmental reserves

we have taken into account the joint and several
liability imposed by

Comprehensive Environmental Remediation Compensation and
Liability

Act CERCLA and the analogous state laws on all PRPs and have

considered the identity and financial condition of the other PRPs at each

site to the extent possible We have also considered the identity and financial

condition of other third
parties

from whom recovery is anticipated as well

as the status of our claims against such parties Although we are unable to

forecast the ultimate contributions of PRPs and other third parties with

absolute certainty the degree of uncertainty with respect to each party

is taken into account when determining the environmental reserve on

site-by-site
basis Our

liability
includes our best estimate of the costs

expected to be paid before the consideration of
any potential recoveries

from third parties We believe that
any

recorded recoveries related to PRPs

are realizable in all material
respects Recoveries are recorded as either an

offset in Environmental liabilities continuing and discontinued or as

Other Assets in our consolidated balance sheets in accordance with U.S

accounting literature

Pension and other postretirement benefits

We provide qualified and nonqualified defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans as well as postretirement health care and life

insurance benefit plans to our employees and retirees Effective July 2007

all of our newly hired and rehired salaried and nonunion hourly employees

are no longer eligible
for our defined benefit pension plans The costs or

benefits and obligations related to these benefits reflect key assumptions

related to general economic conditions including interest discount rates

healthcare cost trend rates expected rates of return on plan assets and the

rates of compensation increases for employees The costs or benefits and

obligations for these benefit programs are also affected by other assumptions

such as average
retirement

age mortality employee turnover and plan

participation
To the extent our plans actual

experience as influenced

by changing economic and financial market conditions or by changes to

our own plans demographics differs from these assumptions the costs

and obligations for providing these benefits as well as the plans funding

requirements could increase or decrease When actual results differ from

our assumptions the difference is typically recognized over future periods

In addition the unrealized gains and losses related to our pension and

postretirement benefit obligations may also affect periodic benefit costs

or benefits in future periods See Note 13 for additional information

relating to pension and other postretirement benefits

Reclassffications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current

years presentation
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NOTE Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements and Regulatory Items

New accounting guidance and regulatory items

Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements

In October 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
amended its guidance regarding the criteria for when to evaluate individual

delivered items in multiple deliverable arrangement
and how to allocate

consideration received We are required to adopt this guidance starting

on January 2011 We are in the
process

of evaluating
this guidance

however do not believe it will have material effect on our consolidated

financial statements upon adoption

Accounting guidance and regulatory items

adopted in 2010

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

On March 23 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act

was signed into law The new legislation makes extensive changes to the

current system
of health care insurance and benefits The Reconciliation

Act of 2010 makes certain changes to the law The reconciliation bill

was passed on March 25 2010

provision
of the new law relates to the elimination of the deduction

for the Medicare Part subsidy We provide qualifying prescription

drug coverage to Medicare-eligible retirees and as result we receive

nontaxable subsidy from the U.S government As result of the new

health care legislation income tax deductions for the cost of providing

prescription drug coverage
will be reduced by the amount of any subsidy

received Under U.S accounting literature the effect of changes in tax

laws or rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is reflected in the period

that includes the enactment date even though the changes may not be

effective until future periods Please see Note 11 for the impact of this

tax law change on our deferred tax assets

We believe the effect of these acts on our U.S postretirement
health

care benefit plans obligation and cost are immaterial However we will

continue to monitor and assess the effect of the Acts as the regulatory

requirements are finalized

NOTE Acquisitions ______________

Disclosures about Credit Losses

In July 2010 the FASB amended its guidance regarding the disclosure

of an entitys allowance for credit losses and the credit quality of its

financing
receivables The amendments enhance disclosures about the

credit quality
of financing receivables and the allowance for credit losses

by providing greater
level of disaggregated information We adopted

this guidance for our annual reporting period ended December 31 2010

Except for additional disclosure in Note there was no impact to our

financial statements upon adoption

Milestone Method of Revenue Recognition

In March 2010 the FASB reached consensus on the accounting

treatment of revenue recognition based on the milestone method This

new guidance defines milestone payment and clarifies whether

vendor may recognize revenue from the achievement of milestone in

its entirety in the period in which the milestone is achieved We adopted

this guidance on July 2010 There was no impact to our financial

statements upon adoption

Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009 the FASB amended its guidance regarding the consolidation

of variable interest entities by altering how company
determines when

an entity that is insufficiently capitalized or not controlled through voting

should be consolidated company has to determine whether it should

consolidate an entity based upon the entitys purpose
and design and

the parent companys ability to direct the entitys actions We adopted

this guidance on January 2010 There was no impact to our financial

statements upon adoption

Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets

In June 2009 the FASB amended its guidance on accounting for transfers

of financial assets This amended literature requires entities to provide

more information about sales of securitized financial assets and similar

transactions particularly
if the seller retains some risk to the assets This

guidance eliminates the
concept

of qualifying special-purpose entity

changes the requirements
for the de-recognition

of financial assets and

requires
sellers of the assets to make additional disclosures We adopted

this guidance on January 2010 There was no impact to our financial

statements upon adoption

2010 Acquisitions

In June 2010 we acquired global registration rights
to an herbicide with

unique
weed control features in our Agricultural

Products
segment

As part of this acquisition we also acquired certain rights relating to

separate herbicide compound still under development The combined

purchase price
for both of the rights was approximately $7.5 million

See Note and Note for more information

Pro forma revenue net income and earnings per
share information

related to this acquisition is not presented because its impact on these

measures in our consolidated statements of income is not significant
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2009 Acquisitions

In February 2009 we acquired the GB Professional Products line of insect

control products from Waterbury Companies Inc and in June 2009

we acquired the
proprietary fungicide Benalaxyl from Isagro S.p.A

Both of these
acquisitions have been integrated into our Agricultural

Products Group and fit our strategic goal of offering an expanded

product portfolio in focus markets and geographic segments
The GB

Professional Products line provides comprehensive set of solutions to

pest management professionals primarily in the United States Benalaxyl

is highly effective
systematic fungicide and is registered in more than

50 countries with the majority of sales expected in the European Union

and Latin America The combined purchase price for both acquisitions

was approximately $34 million The results of operations of the above

acquisitions have been included in the Agricultural Products
segment

since their acquisition dater of February and June 2009 respectively

The GB acquisition included intangible assets of$ 12.1 million primarily

customer relationships and trade names and inventory of$1.7 million

Approximately $1.0 million of the purchase price was accrued as

contingent consideration The Benalaxyl acquisition totaled $20.0 million

and consisted of registration rights and trademarks

The acquired intangible assets from these acquisitions that are subject to

amortization primarily customer relationships registration rights and

developed formulations hae useful lives ranging from to 20 years

Pro forma revenue net income and
earnings per

share information

related to these acquisitions are not presented because its impact on these

measures in our consolidated statements of income is not significant

As of the
acquisition dates we began to assess and formulate plans to

restructure the acquired entities These activities were accounted for

in accordance with the theis applicable accounting guidance related

to recognition of liabilities in connection with purchase business

combination The estimated costs have been recognized as liabilities in

the purchase price allocatior.s above Refer to Note for roilforward

of the restructuring activities related to the Alginates operations

The acquired intangible assets that are subject to amortization primarily

customer relationships have weighted average useful life of 20 years

The $31.1 million of goodwill most of which is deductible for income

tax
purposes

is included in our Specialty Chemicals
segment

2008 Acquisitions

During the third quarter of 2008 we acquired the two businesses

described below for approximately $97 million We paid $89.7 million

in cash for these two businesses which
represents

the purchase price

of approximately $97 million less cash acquired The businesses were

integrated into our Specialty Chemicals segments BioPolymer Division

In August 2008 we acquired the hydrocolloids ingredients business

of International Specialty Products Inc ISP based in Girvan

Scotland This acquisition strengthened our position in hydrocolloids

and enhanced service to global customers in food pharmaceutical and

specialty industries Under the
agreement we acquired ISPs alginates

and food blends business other than ISPs Germinal blending business

based in Brazil including ISPs Girvan Scotland manufacturing facility

and employees The results of
operations

of the ISP business have been

included in the Specialty Chemicals segment since the acquisition date

of August 18 2008

In September 2008 we acquired shares and assets comprising the food

ingredients business of the CoLiving Group The acquisition enhanced

our position in supplying specialty hydrocolloid products and services

to the rapidly growing food ingredients market in China The results of

operations of the CoLiving business have been included in the Specialty

Chemicals
segment since the acquisition date of September 29 2008

The following table
presents the final purchase price allocation of our

Specialty Chemical segment acquisitions described above During

the year ended December 31 2009 we finalized the purchase price

allocation of these acquisitions which resulted in an adjustment of

$8.4 million to goodwill See Note

Pro forma revenue had the acquisitions of ISP and CoLiving occurred

on January 2008 would have been $3177.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 This information is based on historical

results of operations and in our opinion is not necessarily indicative

of the results that would have been achieved had we operated the

entities acquired since such dates Pro forma net income and
earnings

per share information related to these acquisitions are not presented

because the impact of these
acquisitions on these measures in our

consolidated statements of income is not significant

in MiIlions

current Assets primarily invcnrory $45.4

Propcrry Plant Lquipmcni 16.2

Intangible Assets primarily isromer relationships 7.4

Goodvill 31.1

Deferred Tix Assets 12.2

Total Assets Acquired SI 22.3

Gurrent Liabilities 22.2

Long-Term Liabilities primaily deferred tax liability 3.0

Net Assets $97.1
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NOTE Property Plant and Equipment

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by
business

segment
for the years

ended December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 are

presented in the table below

in Alit/ions
Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals Industrial Chemicals Total

Balance December 31 2008 $2.7 $193.7 $0.6 $197.0

Acquisitions
0.1

lurchase Price Allocation Adjustments See Note
8.4 8.4

Foreign Currency Adjustments
4.0 4.0

Balance December 31 2009 $2.8 $206.1 $0.6 $209.5

Foreign Currency Adjustments
15.1 5.1

Balance December 31 2010 $2.8 $191.0 $0.6 194.4

Acquisitions for the year
ended December 31 2009 related to the lroducts $18.5 million in Specialty Chemicals and $0.9 million in

GB Professional Products acquisition
which is described in Note Industrial Chemicals Definite life intangible assets consist primarily of

patents customer relationships access and registration rights industry

Our indefinite life intangible assets totaled $2.4 million at
licenses developed

formulations and other intangibles
and are included

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The indefinite life intangible
in Other assets in the consolidated balance sheets The decrease in

assets consist of trade names in our Agricultural Products segment definite life intangibles during the
year

ended December 31 2010

This amount is included within other assets in the consolidated

balance sheets

was primarily due to foreign currency
translation partially offset by

the acquisition
of registration rights for herbicide in our Agricultural

Our net definite life intangible assets totaled $51.6 million and Products segment Amortization was not significant in the periods

$55.1 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively At presented The estimated amortization expense
for each of the five

years

December 31 2010 these definite life intangibles were allocated ended December 31 2011 to 2015 is also not significant

among our business segments as follows $32.2 million in Agricultural

NOTE Inventories

The current replacement cost of inventories exceeded their recorded of 2010 purchases Approximately 38 percent
of inventories in 2010

values by $154.9 million at December 31 2010 and $165.3 million at and approximately 36 percent
of inventories in 2009 are recorded on

December 31 2009 resulting in LIFO gain recorded in Cost of sales the LIFO basis In 2010 and 2009 approximately 62 percent
and 64

and services within the consolidated statements of income During percent respectively of inventories are determined on FIFO basis

2010 inventory balances were reduced in the U.S due to liquidation
Inventories consisted of the following

of
inventory quantities

carried at lower costs as compared with the cost

December 31

NOTE Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment consisted of the following

December 31

in fiji/lions
2010 2009

Land and land improvements
$142.7 $140.9

Mineral
rights

31.4 31.4

Buildings
366.0 349.9

Machinery and equipment
2.1535 2132.9

ConstruLtion in progress
83.6 94.7

foial cost
2777.2 2.79.8

Accumulated depreciation
1858.7 1785.3

Propcrti plant and equipment net
$918.5 $964.5

Depreciation expense was $109.4 million $108.4 million and $106.1 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively
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The decrease in the net pro Jerry plant and equipment balance during the
year

ended December 31 2010 was primarily due to the shutdown

of the Huelva
facility

See Note for related information on the Huelva shutdown

NOTE Restructuring and Other Charges Income

Our restructuring and othet charges income are comprised of restructuring asset disposals and other charges income as noted below

Year Ended December 31

in .1111/ions 2010 2009 2008

Restructuring charges and Asset Disposals 27.2 $81.5 52.2

Other Charges Income Net 24.T 51.3 2.6

TOTAL RESTRUCTU1UNC AND OTHER CHARGES 5151.9 $132.8 $49.6

RLSTRVCTURING CHARGES AND ASSET DISPOSALS

in Millions Total

Alginates Restructuring $0.6 51.6 6.2

Bavport Butslhthiurn Shurdovn 0.2 0.9 1.1

Huelva Shutdown 37.0 69.4 4.0 10.4

Barcelona Fad is Sh utdov 0.2 3.0

Santa Clara Shutdown 1.0 1.0

Other Items 5.5 0.7 .8

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010 $41.5 $81 .1 $4.6 $127.2

Baltimore Phase Out Si .8 51.8

Alginates Restructuring 3.9 8.6 0.8 13.3

Ba port Burvllithium Sht tdosn 0.7 6.8

Bromhorough lithium Metal Production Shutdown 1.8 5.0 0.6

Barcelona Facility Shutdovn 10.1 5.2 0.5 25.8

Santa clara Shutdown 1.5 3.5 1.7 6.7

Other Items 12.4 6.s 0.2 19.0

YFAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009 $30.4 $45.5 $5.6 $81.5

Baltimore Phase Out Si 52.0 S3 531.5

Jackon ilk Phase Our 1.0 3.8 0.8 5.6

Other Items 8.1 .0 15.1

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008 $10.5 $37.8 $3.9 552.2

Represents severance and
employee benefits charges Income represents adjustments cv previously recorded severance and employee benefit accruals

Asset
Disposal Charges primarily represent

accelerated
depreciation

and impairment tharges on plant and equipment which were or are to be abandoned Asset disposal charges also

included the acceleration effect of re-estimating
settlement dates associated with asset retirement obligations

due to facility shutdowns see Note

Other Charges primarily represent costs associated accrued lease payments contract terminations and other miscellaneous exit costs Other Income primarily rep resents favorable

development on previously reccrded exit costs as well as recoveries associated with
restructurings

The restructuring charges artd asset disposals noted above were the result of the following

Agricultural Products

Baltimore Phase Out

In June 2007 we made the decision to phase out operations of our

Baltimore Maryland facility Our decision was consistent with our

strategy to maintain globally cost-competitive manufacturing positions

by sourcing raw materials intermediates and finished products in lower-

cost manufacturing locations We ceased production at this
facility in

the second
quarter

of 2008

Jacksonville Phase Out

In May 2008 we made the decision to phase out operations of our

Jacksonville Florida
facility by the third

quarter
of 2008 Our decision

was consistent with our strategy to maintain globally cost-competitive

manufacturing positions

Specialty Chemicals

Alginates Restructuring

In January 2009 we announced plans to realign our BioPolymer

alginates manufacturing operations in Norway and the United Kingdom

as we continued integration of the ISP alginates business acquired in

August 2008 portion of the restructuring charges associated with

this realignment were recognized as liabilities in the purchase price

allocation described in Note

Severance and

Employee Benefits

Asset Disposal

Charges

Other Charges

Income
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Bayport Butyllithium Shutdown

In March 2009 we made the decision to close our Bayport butyllithium

facility
located in Bayport Texas The Bayport butyllithium facility

is part of our Lithium division Our decision is consistent with our

ongoing strategy to be globally competitive and focus on products

consistent with market demands

Bromborough Lithium Metal Production Shutdown

In September 2009 we made the decision to close our Lithium metal

production unit at our Bromborough UK plant
The

facility
is included

in our Specialty Chemicals segment

Industrial Chemicals

Huelva Shutdown

In November 2010 we made the decision to cease operations at our

Huelva Spain facility
and exit the phosphate business in Europe The

facility was part
of our subsidiary FMC Foret S.A Foret which is

included in our Industrial Chemicals segment The closure of the
facility

was initiated as consequence
of the Spanish judicial ruling which

effective January 2011 prohibited us from storing phosphogypsum

on site adjacent to our production facility
The phosphogypsum is

byproduct of the
process

of manufacturing phosphoric acid which is

used in the manufacturing of our phosphate products
After receipt of

the unfavorable Spanish judicial ruling we attempted to pursue strategic

alternatives for our Foret phosphorus business With no reasonable

economic alternatives the judicial ruling
inhibited our ability to cost

effectively produce our phosphate product and therefore rendered it

uneconomical for FMC to continue operations at the facility We ceased

production at this facility as of December 31 2010

Roilforward of Restructuring Reserves

Barcelona Facility Shutdown

In June 2009 we made the decision to phase out operations of our

Barcelona Spain which was completed in 2010 The
facility

is part of

Foret High costs at the Barcelona
facility coupled

with reduced demand

for product
manufactured at that site had made it uneconomical for

FMC to continue operations at the Barcelona facility

Santa Clara Shutdown

In March 2009 we made the decision to shut down our manufacturing

operations at our Peroxygens facility in Santa Clara Mexico The

decision to shut down the Santa Clara operations was made in an effort

to maximize cost savings
and improve efficiencies

Other Items

In addition to the restructurings described above we engaged

in certain other restructuring activities during the
years

ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 which resulted in severance and

asset disposal costs We expect
these restructuring charges to improve

our global competitiveness through improved cost efficiencies

For the year ended December 31 2010 we recorded $4.8 million of

charges of which $0.6 million $0.2 million and $4.0 million were

related to Agricultural Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial

Chemicals respectively For the
year

ended December 31 2009 we

recorded $19.0 million of charges of which $2.6 million $2.5 million

and $13.9 million were related to Agricultural Products Specialty

Chemicals and Industrial Chemicals respectively For the year
ended

December 31 2008 we recorded $15.1 million of charges of which

$5.4 million $4.0 million and $5.7 million were related to Agricultural

Products Specialty Chemicals and Industrial Chemicals
segments

respectively

The following table shows rollforward of restructuring reserves that will result in cash spending
These amounts exclude asset retirement

obligations which are discussed in Note

Balance at Change in Cash Balance at Change in Cash Balance at

in Millions 12/31/08 reserves payments 12/31/09 reserves payments Other 12/31/10

Baltimore and Jacksonville

Facility Shutdowns $3.4 $1.0 $t4.4

Alginates Restructuring 3.0 8.2 2.7 8.5 5.6 10.0 0.2

Bayport Butyllithium Facility

Shutdown 0.7 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.2

Bromborough l.ithium Metal

Production Shutdown 1.9 0.1 1.8 1.8

Huelva Restructuring
41.0 0.2 0.8 40.0

Barcelona Facility
Shutdown 10.1 10.1 0.9 8.8 0.7 1.5

Santa Clara Iacility
Shutdown 3.2 2.1 1.1 1.1

Other Workforce Related and

Facility Shutdowns 2.1 13.1 14.4 0.8 5.7 6.3 0.8 1.0

TOTAL $8.5 $38.2 $24.1 $22.6 $52.0 $27.3 $0.5 $46.8

Primarily severance costs related to workfsrce
redu tioni and fhczlity shuidowni deicribed in the Other Items actions above

Primarily severance costs and in the Alginates Restructuring row in 2010 the accrual of costs associated with leasedpropercies
which we have ceased

using
The asset disposal charges

noted above impacted our property plant and equipment
balances and are not included in the above tabks

Included in 4ccrued and other liabilitiesand Other long-term
liabilities on the consolidsted balance sheets

Primarily includes foreign currency
translation adjustments
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OTHER CHARGES INCOME NET

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2010 2009 2008

Princeton Property Sale $2.3 $29

Sodium Sulfate Assets Sale 1.0 3.6

Legal Matters 1.5 29 10.0

Environmental Charges Net at Operating Sites see No 10 142 20.2 16.2

Other net 9.0 4.5 3.8

OTHER CHARGES INCOME NET $24.7 $51.3 $2.6

Princeton Property SaLe

On March 18 2008 we completed the sale of our 158-acre Princeton

research center to the Princeton HealthCare System Gross proceeds from

the sale were $62.5 million and net proceeds after offsets commissions

and fees totaled approximately $60 million The gain on sale was

$29 million and is included in Restructuring and other charges

income in the consolidated statements of income for the
year

ended

December 31 2008 The
gain on sale was reduced by the sale-leaseback

deferral described below

As part
of the sale we entered into sale-leaseback under which certain

of the buildings sold to the Princeton HealthCare System were leased

back to us for maximumperiod up to approximately three
years

The leaseback was accounted for as an operating lease and the
present

value of the lease payments was deferred as part of the gain on sale

At the time of the sale we recorded deferred gain in the amount of

$6.7 million This amount was being recognized as reduction of rent

expense over the term of the lease During the third
quarter

of 2009 we

moved into our new research and development facility
and as result

we exited our leases with the Princeton HealthCare System The event

resulted in net gain of $2.3 million since the amounts we deferred as

part of the gain on sale assumed longer lease period

Sodium Sulfate Assets Sale

In February 2008 we completed the sale of Forets non-cogeneration

sodium sulfate assets We recognized gain on sale of these assets of

$3.6 million which is included in Restructuring and other charges

income in the consolidated statements of income for the year

ended December 31 2008 Net proceeds from the transaction were

$16.7 million

We did not complete the sale of the sodium sulfate
co-generation

facility at the time we sold the other sodium sulfate assets noted above

We completed the sale of this asset in the third quarter of 2009 for

gain of$1.0 million

Legal Matters

During the
year

ended December 31 2010 we recorded $1.5 million

of net charges primarily related to legal
settlement associated with the

U.S hydrogen peroxide matter in our Industrial Chemicals segment

During the year ended December 31 2009 we recorded an approximate

charge of $21.0 million in co mection with the resolution of regulatory

matter in our Industrial Chemicals Segment We also recorded

charge of $3.3 million related to the settlement of legal matter in

our Industrial Chemicals segment and $5.6 million of other
charges

primarily representing settlements with state authorities for property

claims and adjustments

During the year ended December 31 2008 we reached an agreement

in principle to settle federal class action lawsuit alleging violations of

antitrust laws involving our hydrogen peroxide product in our Industrial

Chemicals
segment

in the amount of $10.0 million

See Note 18 for further details

Environmental Charges Net at Operating Sites

During the
years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 we

recorded $14.2 million $20.2 million and $16.2 million of net charges

respectively related to environmental remediation at continuing

operating sites See Note 10 for additional details

Other Net

In the second quarter of 2010 our Agricultural Products segment

acquired certain rights relating to an herbicide compound still under

development We expensed $5.7 million for these rights

In 2006 our Agricultural Products
segment

entered into development

agreement
with third-party company whereby we were given the

right to develop further one of the third party companys products in

certain geographic markets This development agreement representing

fungicide project was terminated by the Company in 2008 In 2007

our Agricultural Products
segment

entered into collaboration and

license
agreement

with another third-party company for the
purpose

of obtaining certain technology and intellectual
property rights In

2007 we acquired further rights under the development agreement

and in 2009 we extended our rights under the collaboration and license

agreement We have recorded charges of $0.5 million $2.0 million

and $1.0 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively under these

agreements representing payments to acquire and extend our rights

under these
agreements

Remaining
other charges for 2010 2009 and 2008 primarily represents

the accrual of interest associated with the European Commission fine

recorded during the year ended December 31 2006 See Note 18
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NOTE Asset Retirement Obligations

We have mining operations in Green River Wyoming for our soda ash value of these obligations was immaterial at December 31 2010 and

business as well as mining operations in our lithium operations We 2009 We have also determined that the
liability

for certain other AROs

have
legal

reclamation obligations related to these facilities
upon

closure cannot currently be calculated as the settlement dates are not reasonably

of the mines Additionally we have obligations at the majority of our estimable We will
recognize

the
liability

for these AROs when sufficient

manufacturing facilities in the event of
permanent plant shutdown information exists to estimate range

of potential settlement dates

Certain of these obligations are recorded in our environmental reserves
The changes in the carrying amounts of AROs for the years ended

described in Note 10 For certain AROs not already accrued we have
December 31 2010 and 2009 are as follows

calculated the fair value of these AROs and concluded that the present

in Mi/lion

Balance at December 31 2008 $7.7

Acclcration due to acilitv shutdowns 11 .7

Additional ARO liability
1.0

Accretion expense
0.i

Paxmcnts 5.7

Balance at December 31 2009 515.1

Acceleration due to hcilit3
shutdowns 8.8

Adjutmeni to previously recorded ARO liability 0.9

kccreuon expense
0.3

Payments 8.7

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31 2010 $34.6

This increase in 2009 was primarily
associ ated with our decision to phase out operations at our Barcelona Bromborough and Bayport Texas facilities and in 2010 the Huelva facility

As result of these decisions the estimated settlement dites associated with asset retirement obligations at the
facilities were accelerated resulting in an increase to the liability and an

increase to
cap

italized asset retirement costs The capitalized asset retirement costs were depreciated on an accelerated basis over the remaining period that we operated the facilities See

Note
7forfiirther

details on the phase outs and restructuring initiatives

The additions to the ARO liability primarily related to the
acquisitions in our Specialty

Chemicals segment Refer to Note

NOTE Discontinued Operations

Our discontinued operations represent adjustments to retained liabilities primarily related to operations discontinued between 1976 and 2001

The primary liabilities retained include environmental liabilities other post-retirement
benefit liabilities self-insurance and long-term obligations

related to legal proceedings

Our discontinued operations comprised the following

For the year ended December 31 2010 we recorded $63.7 million

$39.5 million after-tax charge to discontinued operations
related

primarily to environmental issues and legal reserves and
expenses

Environmental charges of $38.7 million $24.0 million after-tax

relate primarily to provision increase for environmental issues at our

Middleport sites as well as for operating and maintenance activities

partially offset by recoveries See the table showing our environmental

reserves in Note 10 We also recorded increases to legal reserves and

expenses
in the amount of $25.0 million $15.5 million after-tax

For the year ended December 31 2009 we recorded $30.1 million

$18.7 million after-tax charge to discontinued operations related

primarily to environmental issues and legal reserves and
expenses

Environmental charges of $7.1 million $4.4 million after-tax relate

primarily to provision increase for environmental issues at our Front

Royal and Middleport sites as well as for operating and maintenance

activities partially offset by recoveries We also recorded increases to
legal

reserves and expenses in the amount of $23.0 million $14.3 million

after-tax

Provision for environmental liabilities and legal reserves and
expenses

related to previously discontinued

operations net of income tax benefit of $24.2 million $11.4 million and $15.2 million in 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

Year Ended December 31

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS NET OF

Year Ended December 31 2010 Year Ended December 31 2009
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Year Ended December 31 2008

For the year ended December 31 2008 we recorded $40.2 million

$25.0 million after-tax charge to discontinued operations related

primarily to environmental issues and legal reserves and
expenses

Environmental charges of $21.0 million $13.0 million after-tax

relate primarily to provision to increase reserves for environmental

issues at our Front Royal and Middleport sites as well as operating and

maintenance activity We also recorded increases to legal reserves and

expenses
in the amount of $19.2 million $12.0 million after-tax

Reserve for Discontinued Operations at

December 31 2010 and 2009

The reserve for discontinued operations totaled $38.6 million and

$41.7 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The

liability at December 31 2010 was comprised of $6.0 million for

workers compensation and product liability
$10.8 million for other

postretirement
medical and life insurance benefits provided to former

employees
of discontinued businesses and $21.8 million of reserves

for legal proceedings
associated with discontinued operations The

discontinued postretirement
medical and life insurance benefits

liability

equals the accumulated posretirement benefit obligation Associated

with this liability is net prnax
actuarial gain and prior service credit of

$14.0 million $9.1 million after-tax and $15.4 million $10.3 million

after-tax at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The estimated

NOTE 10 Environmental

net actuarial gain
and prior service credit that will be amortized from

accumulated other comprehensive income into discontinued operations

during 2011 are $1.7 million and $0.1 million respectively

The liability at December 31 2009 was comprised of $7.3 million for

workers compensation and product liability $11.8 million for other

postretirement medical and life insurance benefits provided to former

employees of discontinued businesses and $22.6 million of reserves for

legal proceedings associated with discontinued operations

We use actuarial methods to the extent practicable to monitor

the adequacy of product liability workers compensation
and other

postretirement
benefit reserves on an ongoing basis While the amounts

required to settle our liabilities for discontinued operations could

ultimately differ materially from the estimates used as basis for

recording these liabilities we believe that changes in estimates or

required expenditures for
any

individual cost component
will not have

material adverse effect on our liquidity or financial condition in any

single year and that in any event such costs will be satisfied over the

course of several years

Spending in 2010 2009 and 2008 was $0.7 million $1.1 million

and $0.6 million respectively for workers compensation product

liability
and other claims $1.6 million $1.2 million and $1.5 million

respectively for other postretirement benefits and $25.8 million

$17.6 million and $15.5 million respectively related to reserves for

legal proceedings
associated with discontinued operations

We are subject to various federal state local and foreign environmental

laws and regulations that govern emissions of air pollutants discharges

of water pollutants and the manufacture storage handling and

disposal of hazardous substances hazardous wastes and other toxic

materials and remediation of contaminated sites We are also subject to

liabilities arising under the Comprehensive Environmental Response

Compensation and Liability Act CERCLA and similar state laws

that impose responsibility on persons
who arranged for the disposal

of hazardous substances and on current and previous owners and

operators of facility
for the clean-up of hazardous substances released

from the facility into the environment We are also subject to liabilities

under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act RCRA and

analogous state laws that require owners and operators
of facilities

that have treated stored or disposed of hazardous waste pursuant to

the RCRA permit to follow certain waste management practices
and

to clean up releases of hazardous substances into the environment

associated with past or present practices
In addition when deemed

appropriate we enter certain sites with potential liability
into voluntary

remediation compliance programs
which are also subject to guidelines

that require owners and operators current and previous to clean up

releases of hazardous substances into the environment associated with

past or present practices

We have been named Potentially Responsible Party PRP at 30

sites on the federal governments National Priorities List NPL at

which our potential liability has not yet
been settled In addition we

received notice from the EPA or other regulatory agencies that we

may be PRP or PRP equivalent at other sites including 36 sites at

which we have determined that it is reasonably possible that we have

an environmental liability
In cooperation with appropriate government

agencies we are currently participating in or have participated in

Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study RIIFS or equivalent at

most of the identified sites with the status of each investigation varying

from site to site At certain sites RI/FS has only recently begun

providing limited information if any relating to cost estimates timing

or the involvement of other PRPs whereas at other sites the studies

are complete
remedial action plans have been chosen or Record of

Decision ROD has been issued

Environmental liabilities consist of obligations relating to waste handling

and the remediation and/or study of sites at which we are alleged to

have released or disposed of hazardous substances These sites include

current operations previously operated sites and sites associated with

discontinued operations We have provided reserves for potential

environmental obligations that we consider probable and for which

reasonable estimate of the obligation can be made Accordingly total

reserves of $241.8 million and $204.2 million respectively before

recoveries were recorded at December 31 2010 and 2009 The long-

term portion
of these reserves is included in Environmental liabilities

continuing and discontinued on the consolidated balance sheets net

of recoveries and amounted to $209.9 million and $167 million at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The short-term portion

of our continuing operations obligations is recorded in Accrued and

other liabilities In addition we have estimated that reasonably possible

environmental loss contingencies net of expected recoveries may exceed

amounts accrued by approximately $110 million at December 31 2010

To ensure we are held responsible only for our equitable share of site

remediation costs we have initiated and will continue to initiate legal

proceedings for contributions from other PRPs We have recorded

recoveries representing probable realization of claims against insurance

companies U.S government agencies
and other third parties of
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$68.6 million and $57.2 million at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively The recoveries at December 31 2010 and 2009 are recorded

as either an offset to the Environmental liabilities continuing and

discontinued totaling $16.9 million and $20.1 million or as Other

assets totaling $51.7 million and $37.1 million in the consolidated

balance sheets respectively Cash recoveries for the
years 2010 2009 and

2008 were $14.6 million $13.7 million and $5.6 million respectively

The table below is rollforward of our total environmental reserves continuing and discontinued from December 31 2007 to December 31 2010

in Millions

Operating and

Discontinued Sites Total

Our total environmental reserves before recoveries include

$230.8 million and $186.8 million for remediation activities and

$11.0 million and $17.4 million for RIIFS costs at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively For the
years 2010 2009 and 2008 we charged

$35.6 million $33.1 million and $39.5 million respectively against

established reserves for remediation spending and $4.9 million

$7.5 million and $10.1 million respectively against reserves for spending

on RTIFS We anticipate that the remediation and RI/FS expenditures

for current operating previously operated and other sites will continue

to be significant for the foreseeable future

In 2010 2009 and 2008 we recorded net environmental provisions

totaling $52.3 million $27.3 million and $37.2 million respectively The

environmental provisions recorded in 2010 2009 and 2008 included

$76.1 million $47.5 million and $48.7 million recorded as an increase

to our environmental reserves and $23.8 million $17.6 million and

$9.6 million recorded as recovery in Other assets on our consolidated

balance sheets respectively For the year ended December 31 2010

there were no recoveries recorded directly to Discontinued operations

net of income taxes on our consolidated statements of income while

$2.6 million and $1.9 million of recoveries were recorded directly

to this line item for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively These provisions related to costs for the continued cleanup

of both operating sites and for certain discontinued manufacturing

operations
from

previous years

Front Royal

On October 21 1999 the Federal District Court for the Western

District of Virginia approved Consent Decree signed by FMC the

EPA Region III and the Department of Justice DOJ regarding

past response costs and future clean-up work at the discontinued fiber-

manufacturing site in Front Royal Virginia In January2010 the EPA

issued ROD for Operable Unit OU-7 primarily addressing waste

basins and ground water which is the last remaining operable unit to

be remediated at the site The current reserve includes provision for

OU-7 and previously approved work for other operable units under

the Consent Decree As part
of prior settlement government agencies

have reimbursed us for approximately one-third of the clean-up costs

due to the governments
role at the site and we expect

reimbursement

to continue in the future The amount of the reserve for this site was

$28.5 million and $31.1 million at December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively

Pocatello

We have successfully decommissioned our Pocatello plant completed

closure of the RCRA ponds and formally requested that EPA acknowledge

completion of work under June 1999 RCRA Consent Decree Future

remediation costs include completion of one of the CERCLA remedies

identified in the Supplemental Feasibility Study SFS that addresses

ground water contamination and existing waste disposal areas on the

Pocatello plant portion of the Eastern Michaud Flats Superfund Site

In April 2010 the EPA presented their recommended alternative from

2008

Ims isbn 48.7

Spending net of retoverics 45.8

Ncr Change 2.9

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVES NET OF RECOVERIES AT DECEMBER 31 2008 $172.7

2009

Provbion 47.5

Spending net of recoveries 36.1

Net Change
1.4

Total environmental reserves net of recoveries at Deccmber 31 2009 $184.1

Ens ironmental reserses current net of recoveries Si 7.1

Environmental reserves long-term continuing and discontinued net of recoveries 6.O

TOTAL ENViRONMENTAL RESERVES NET OF RECOVERIES AT DECEMBER 31 2009 $184.1

2010

Pros ision 76.1

Spending net of recoveries 135.31

Net Change 40.8

Total environmental reserves net of recoveries at December 31 2010 $224.9

Environ ienral resers es current net of recoveries 5.0

Fnsironmental reserves long-term continuing and discontinued net of recoveries

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVES NET OF RECOVERIES AT DECEMBER 31 2010 $224.9

Current includes only those reserves related to continuing operations
These amounts are included within 74ccrued and other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets
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the SFS to the National Remedy Review Board NRRB The NRRB

has endorsed the selection of this alternative and the EPA has drafted

proposed plan recommending
this remedy As result of this event we

adjusted our estimated
liability

for clean up at this site Additionally we

continue to conduct work pursuant to CERCLA unilateral administrative

orders to address the potential for air emissions from beneath the cap

of several of the closed RC RA ponds The amount of the reserve for

this site was $71.0 million and $46.1 million at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively

Middlleport

At our facility in Middleport New York we have constructed an

engineered cover closed the RCRA regulated surface water impoundments

and are collecting and treating both surface water runoff and ground

water draft corrective measures study CMS has been prepared for

two off-site areas and is under review by the EPA and New York State

Departments of the Environment and Health collectively referred to

as the Agencies This draft CMS was submitted in the second
quarter

of 2010 As result of the CMS submission we adjusted our estimated

liability
for clean

up at this site In the third quarter of 2010 we received

comments on the draft CMS from the Agencies We are in the
process

of reviewing the comments and are in discussions with the Agencies

regarding revisions to the draft CMS Additional costs may result in

the event additional remediation is required by the Agencies during the

review and approval of the current CMS The amount of the reserve

for this site is $46.2 million and $27.9 million at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively

Other

Although potential environmental remediation expenditures in excess

of the reserves and estimated loss contingencies could be significant

the impact on our future consolidated financial results is not subject to

reasonable estimation due to numerous uncertainties concerning the

nature and
scope

of possible contamination at many sites identification

of remediation alternatives under constantly changing requirements

selection of new and diverse clean-up technologies to meet compliance

standards the
timing

of potential expenditures and the allocation of

costs among PRPs as well as other third parties

The liabilities arising from potential environmental obligations that have

not been reserved for at this time may be material to any one quarter or

years results of operations in the future However we believe
any

such

liability arising from potential environmental obligations is not likely

to have material adverse effect on our liquidity or financial condition

and may be satisfied over the next 20 years or longer

Regarding current operating sites we spent $8.4 million $11.6 million

and $16.4 million for the
years 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively on

capital projects relating to environmental control facilities Additionally

in 2010 2009 and 2008 we spent $25.9 million $24.9 million and

$26.4 million respectively for environmental compliance costs which

are operating costs not covered by established reserves

NOTE 11 Income Taxes

Domestic and foreign corn noncnts of income from continuing operations before incomc taxes are shos 11 below

Year Ended December 31

in %Iiiion 2010 2009 2008

Domestic $303.2 $275.9 S.331.8

Foreign 47.3 3i.1 140.1

TOTAL $350.5 $310.0 $471.9

The provision benefit for income taxes attributable to income from continuing operations consisted of

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2010 2009 2008

Gm-rent

Federal 73.4 51.2

Foreign
26.0 3.1 29

State 0.5 --

Total current 99.9 3.1 28.5

Deferred

Federal 20.2 44.6 91.9

Foreign
4.3

State
7.6 5.3 5.0

Iota1 deferred 32.1 49.9 96.9

TOTAL $132.0 $53.0 $125.4
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Year Ended December 31
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NOTE 11 Income Taxes

in Millions
2010 2009 2008

Continuing operations $132.0 S53.0 5125.4

Discontinued operations 28.9 11.2 15.0

Items charged directly to equity 62.5 9.4 132.7

TOTAL $40.6 $32.4 $22.3

Significant components of the deferred income tax provision benefit attributable to income from continuing operations
before income taxes

are as follows

We have recognized that it is more likely than not that certain future

tax benefits may not be realized as result of current and future

income During the
year

ended December 31 2010 the valuation

allowance was increased by $39.2 million The increase in the valuation

allowance during 2010 was due to recognition
of valuation allowance

in our Spanish legal entity predominantly due to the Huelva facility

Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities were attributable to

Year Ended December 31

At December 31 2010 we had net operating loss and tax credit

carryforwards as follows U.S state net operating loss carryforwards

of $823.5 million expiring in various amounts and years through

2029 foreign net operating loss carryforwards of $271.8 million

expiring in various years U.S foreign tax credit carryforwards of

$32.0 million expiring in various amounts and years through 2019

and alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $54.1 million

with no expiration date

shutdown for tax losses that are not expected to be fully recoverable

in future
years

from the earnings of the remaining businesses in that

entity During the
year

ended December 31 2009 we reduced the

valuation allowance related to domestic operations by $18.2 million

because of our expectation that the related deferred tax assets were

likely to be realized

December 31

tax assets

in Millions 2010 2009

Resen for discontinued operations environmental and
restrtlcturing

102.8 Si .9

Accrued pension and other
postretirerneist

benefits 81.0 89.0

Other reserves
53.8 58.4

Alternative minimum foreign tax and other credit carrvforwards 96.5 97.8

Net operating loss carryforwards
88.8 60.9

Deferred expenditures capitalized for tax 71.9 28.0

Other 61.4 68.0

Deferre $556.2 $515.0

Valuation allowance 76.3 37.1

Deferred tax assets net of valuation allowance $479.9 $477.9

lropert plant and equipment nct 56.5 64.2

Deferred tax liabilities $56.5 $64.2

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSETS $423.4 $413.7

We believe that it is more likely
than not that future earnings will generate sufficient taxable income to utilize the net deferred tax assets recorded

as of December 31 2010
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The effective income tax rate applicable to income from continuing operations before income taxes was different from the statutory U.S federal

income tax rate due to the factors listed in the following table

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Statutory U.S tax rate
35% 35% 35%

Net difference

Percentage depletion

State and local income taxes less federal income tax benefit

Foreign earnings subject to different tax rates

Manufacturers production deduction and miscellaneous tax credits

Loss of Medicare Part tax benefit See Note

Tax on intercompany dividends and deemed dividend for tax purposes

Notideductible expenses

Changes to unrecognized tax benefits

Change in valuation allowance 12

Other

Total difference 18

Effective tax rate
38% 17% 27%

As of December 31 2010 our federal income tax returns for years We file income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction
and various

through 2006 have been examined by the Internal Revenue Service states and foreign jurisdictions The income tax returns for FMC

IRS and all issues have been settled We believe that adequate entities taxable in the U.S and significant foreign jurisdictions are

provision
for both federal and foreign income taxes has been made for

open
for examination and adjustment As of December 31 2010

the open years 2003 and afrer Income taxes have not been provided for the United States Federal and State income tax returns are open
for

the equity in undistributed earnings of foreign consolidated subsidiaries examination and adjustment for years 2006-2010 Our significant

of $710.6 million or for foreign unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates foreign jurisdictions
which total 15 are open for examination and

of$13.4 million at December 31 2010 Restrictions on the distribution adjustment during varying periods from 2003-2010

of these earnings are not significant It is not practical to estimate the
The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2010

amount of taxes that might be payable upon the remittance of such
that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate is $17.3 million

earnings Foreign earnings
taxable as dividends were $12.2 million

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized
$6.2 million and $5.1 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

tax benefits as component of income tax expense in the consolidated

financial statements Included in the $17.3 million liability for

Uncertain Income Tax Positions unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2010 is $0.3 million

associated with interest and penalties

U.S GAAP accounting guidance
for uncertainty in income taxes

prescribes model for the recognition and measurement of tax position

We do not expect any
reductions in the

liability
for unrecognized tax

taken or expected to be taken in tax return and provides guidance
benefits within the next 12 months on account of settlements and the

on derecognition classificadon interest and penalties disclosure and
expirations of statutes of limitations See the reconciliation of the total

transition We adopted this guidance on January 2007
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits below

in Millions

Balance January 2008 $49.4

Additions for tax positions of the current year
2.7

Additions for tax positions of prior years
1.0

Reductions for tax positions Df
prior years

for

Settlements during the period
10.7

Balance January 2009 $42.4

Additions for vax positions othe current year
59

Reductions for tax positions of prior years for

Adjustments
1.2

Settlements during the period 32.7

Balance December31 2009 $14.4

Additions for tax positions
the current year

6.1

Reductions for tax positions of prior years
for

Adjustments
0.6

Settlements during the period
2.6

Balance December 31 2010 $17.3
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On November 30 2009 we issued $300 million aggregate principal

amount of 5.2% Senior Notes due 2019 The net proceeds from the

offering were used to pay
down existing indebtedness under our revolving

credit agreements
and for general corporate purposes

At December 31 2010 and 2009 we had no borrowings in revolving

credit facility borrowings under the European Credit Agreement resulting

in available funds of $289.1 million and $315.4 million respectively

We had no borrowings
under our Domestic Credit Agreement at

December 31 2010 and 2009 Letters of credit outstanding under the

Domestic Credit Agreement totaled $130.4 million and $153.2 million

at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Therefore available

funds under the Domestic Credit Agreement were $469.6 million

and $446.8 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Maturities of long-term debt

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding excluding discounts at

December 31 2010 are $116.4 million in 2011 $21.6 million in

2012 $6.5 million in 2013 $32.7 million in 2014 $0.2 million in

2015 and $443.1 million thereafter

Covenants

Among other restrictions the Domestic Credit Agreement and the

European Credit Agreement contain financial covenants applicable to

FMC and its consolidated subsidiaries related to leverage measured as

the ratio of debt to adjusted earnings and interest coverage measured

as the ratio of adjusted earnings to interest expense Our actual leverage

for the four consecutive quarters
ended December 31 2010 was 1.2

which is below the maximum leverage of 3.5 Our actual interest

coverage for the four consecutive quarters
ended December 31 2010

was 14.9 which is above the minimum interest coverage
of 3.5 We

were in compliance with all covenants at December 31 2010

Compensating Balance Agreements

We maintain informal credit arrangements
in many foreign countries

Foreign lines of credit which include overdraft facilities typically

do not require the maintenance of compensating balances as credit

extension is not guaranteed but is subject to the availability of funds

December 31

Debt Maturing Within One Year

Debt maturing within one year consists of the following

in Millions
2010 2009

Short-term debt c18.5 S33.4

Current portion of long-term debt 116.4 22.5

TOTAL DEBT MATURING WITHIN ONE YEAR $134.9 $55.9

Waighted average interest rates for short-term debt outstanding at year-end 5.0o 10 1u

Short-term debt consisted of foreign credit lines at December 31 2010 and 2009 We often provide parent-company guarantees to lending

institutions providing credit to our foreign
subsidiaries

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following

December 31 2010 December 31

Interest Rate Maturity

in Million.c
Percentage Date 2010 2009

Pollution control and industrial revenue bonds less unamortized discounts of 0.2 million

and $0.3 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 0.26.5% 201 l-035 5182.0 5198.4

Debentures less unamortiLcd discount of zero and $0.1 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 2011 45.5 45

Senior notes less unamortized discount of $0.9 million and $1.0 million at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively
5.2o 2019 299.1 299.0

European credit agreement
2.5o 12

Domestic credit agreement
0.5-3.3% 2012

Foreign debt 0-11.3% 203 92.8 67.7

iota long-term debt 619.4 610.5

Tess current portion of long-term debt 116.4 22.5

TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT PORTION $503.0 $588.0
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NOTE 13 Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits

The funded status of our U.S qualificd and nonqualified
defined benefit We are required to recognize in our consolidated balance sheets the

pension plans our United Kingdom Ireland and Norway defined overfunded and underfunded status of our defined benefit
postretirement

benefit pension plans plus our U.S other postretirement healthcare plans The overfunded or underfunded status is defined as the difference

and life insurance benefit ans for continuing operations together between the fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation

with the associated balances and net periodic benefit cost recognized We are also required to recognize as component
of other comprehensive

in our consolidated financial statements as of December 31 are shown income the actuarial gains and losses and the
prior

service costs and

in the tables below credits that arise during the period

The following table summari tcs the weighted-average assumptions
used and

components
of our defined benefit postretirement plans The following

tables also reflect measurement date of December 31

December 31

Pensions Other Benefits

in Mi/lions 2010 uu 2009

Following are the weighted avrage assumptions used

to determine the benefit obligations at December 31

Discount Rate 5.40% 5.90% 5.40% 5.90%

Ratc of compensation increase 4.20% 4.20%

Accumulated benefit obligation

Plans with unfunded accumulated benefit obligation $1106.5 $1046.7

Change in projected benefit ligation

Projected benefit obligation at January $1098.6 $944.0 $42.3 $40.0

Service cost 18.2 16.7 0.2 0.2

Interest cost 63.2 64.2 2.5 2.6

Actuarial loss gain 66.5 128.7 2.9

Amendments 5.7 0.7

Foreign currency exchange rite changes 3.9 7.0

Plan participants contributions 0.2 0.2 6.4 5.5

Settlements 15.61 3.0

Other 0.1

Curtailments 0.5 1.7

Benefits paid 56.9 58.2 9.0 10.1

Projected benefit obligation at December31 1175.5 1098.6 45.4 42.3

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January 766.7 607.9

Actual rewrn on plan assets 111.7 124.8

Foreign currency exchange rate changes 2.9 5.7

Company contributions 102.6 88.8 2.6 4.6

Plan participants contributions 0.2 0.2 6.4 5.5

Settlements 15.6 2.5

Benefits paid 56.91 58.2 9.0 10.1

Fair value of plan assets at December31 905.8 766.7

funded status of the plan liability $269.7 S331 .9 S45.4 S42.3

Amount recogri7ed in the consolidated balance sheets

Iension other asset $1.9

Accrued benefit liability 271.6 331.9 45.4 42.3

TOTAL $269.7 $331.9 $45.4 $42.3

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income loss

that has not yet
been recognized as components of net periodic

benefit cost at December 31 1010 and 2009 are as fhilows

Net transition asset $0.1 SO

Prior servke cosrl credit 9.5 5.2 0.3 04

Net actuarial loss gain 480.0 481.1 3.1 64

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss pretax $l489.4 5486.21 53.4 $6.8

Accumulated other eomprehensRe income loss net of t.c $1306.5 53059 $4.1 558
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The estimated net actuarial loss prior service cost and net transition

asset for our pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated

other comprehensive income loss into our net annual benefit cost

income during 2011 are $36.9 million $1.8 million and $0.1 million

respectively The estimated net actuarial gain
and prior service credit

for our other benefits that will be amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive income loss into net annual benefit cost during

2011 will be $0.3 million income and $0.2 million income

respectively

Net annual benefit cost from continuing operations

Our U.S qualified defined benefit pension plan U.S Plan holds

the
majority

of our pension plan assets The expected long-term rate

of return on these plan assets was 8.50 percent 8.50 percent and

8.75 percent
for 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively In developing

the assumption for the long-term rate of return on assets for our U.S

Plan we take into consideration the technical analysis performed by

our outside actuaries including historical market returns information

on the assumption for long-term real returns by asset class inflation

assumptions and expectations
for standard deviation related to these

best estimates We also consider the historical performance of our own

plans trust which has earned compound annual rate of return of

approximately 10.61 percent over the last 20 years which is in excess

of comparable market indices for the same period as well as other

factors Given an actively managed investment portfolio
the expected

annual rates of return by asset class for our portfolio using geometric

averaging and after being adjusted for an estimated inflation rate

of approximately 2.50 percent is between 8.60
percent

and 10.30

percent
for

equities
and between 4.20 percent and 6.30 percent

for

fixed-income investments which
generates

total expected portfolio

return that is in line with our assumption for the rate of return on

assets The target asset allocation for 2010 by asset category is 75-85

percent equity securities 15-25 percent
fixed income investments and

0-5 percent cash and other short-term investments

Our U.S qualified pension plans investment strategy consists of

total return investment management approach using portfolio mix

of equities and fixed income investments to maximize the long-term

return of plan assets for an appropriate level of risk The goal of this

strategy is to minimize plan expenses by matching asset growth to the

plans liabilities over the long run Furthermore equity investments are

weighted towards value equities and diversified across U.S and non-U.S

stocks Derivatives and hedging instruments may be used effectively

to manage and balance risks associated with the plans investments

Investment performance
and related risks are measured and monitored

on an ongoing basis through annual liability measurements periodic

asset and liability studies and quarterly investment portfolio reviews

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations
for continuing operations recognized in other comprehensive loss income for the years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 are as follows

Year ended December31

Pensions Other Benefits

in Mil1ion 2010 2009 2010 2009

Current year net actuarial loss gain $33.8 $77.7 $2.9 $4.1

Current year prior serice cor credit 5.5 0.7

Amortization of net actuarial loss gain 34.1 8.9 0.4 0.9

AmortiLauon of prior service cost credit 1.2 0.9 0.1 1.0

Amortization of transition obligation
0.3

Foreign cutrenv exchange rare changes on the above line items 0.8 2.3

Iota1 recogni7ed in other comprehensive 0nconie loss before taxes c3.2 $71.2 S3.4 $6.0

Total recogniced in other comprehensive income loss after taxes $0.6 45.5 $1.7 $5.3

.1 Rfer to \Tj for info mtion on our di ontinuedpotreureneit injirplins

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions
used for and the components of net annual benefit cost income for the years

ended December 31

Year Ended December31

Pensions Other Benefits

U1U 2UU tUUi 2U1 ZUU

Discount rate 5.90% 7.00% 6.S04o 5.90% 7.00% 6.50%

Expected return on plan assets 8.50o 8.50% 8.75/o

Rate of compensation increase 4.20% 4.20% 4.20%

Components of net annual beneht cost in millionc

Servicecost $18.2 S16 J8.2 $0.2 $0.2 $0.2

Interest cost
63.2 64.2 61.8 2.5 2.6 2.7

Expected return on plan assets 79.0 74.8 78.0

Arnotti7ation of transition asset 0.1 0.1

Amortization of prior sen ice cost 1.2 0.8 1.1 0.1 1.0 1.3

Amortization of net actuarial and other gain loss 26.5 5.8 3.1 0.4 0.9 0.8

Recognized loss due to settlement and curtailments 7.1 0.8

______________________________________
$37.2 13.4 6.1 $2.2 $0.9 $0.8
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The following tables
present our fair value hierarchy for our major categories of pension plan assets by asset class as of December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively See Note 17 for the definition of fair value and the descriptions of Level and in the fair value hierarchy

Significant Other Significant

Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

in Millions 12/31/2010 Level Level

rash and Short-term 1nvestmnts $46.6 $46.6

Equity Securities

Common stock 457.4 4574

Preferred stock 1.3 .3

Mutual funds 205.3 134.5 70.8 ii

Fixed Income Tmcstment

Investment contracts 185.4 185.4

Mutual funds 6.9 6.9

Governnsent debt 2.1 2.1

Other 1n estmcnts

Real estate/property 0.6 0.6

Private equity funds 0.1 0.1

Other 0.1 1.1

$905.8TOTAL ASSETS $648.8 $256.2 $0.8

Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

Markets for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

in Millions 12/31/2009 Level Level Level

cathasidShott-term Investments $315 $315

Equity Securities

Common stock 35.3 359.3

Preferred stock 2.8 2.8

Mutual Funds 1830 117.6 65.4

Fixed Income Investments

Investment contracts 1814 181.4

Mutual funds 5.5 5.5

Corporate debt inattuteents 02 0.2

Government debt 2.3 2.3

Other Investments

Foreign currency contracts 0.1 0.1

Real estate/property 0.6 0.6

Private equity funds 0.1 0.1

Other 0.1 0.1

TOTAL ASSETS $766.7 $519.2 $246.7 $0.8

Ai of December31 2010 and 2009 we have $70.8 million and $65.4 million respectively ofinvesonents in certain mutualfunds where the net asset value reported by the underlying

funds approximates
the

fair
value These investments are redeemable with the fund at net asset value under the original terms of the partnership agreements

and/or subscription

agreements
and

operations of the
underlying funds However it is

possible
that these

redemption rights may be restricted or eliminated by the funds in the future in accordance with

the underlying fund agreements
Due to the nature ofthe investments held by the funds changes in market conditions and the economic environment may sigflcantly impact the net

asset value of the funds and consequently
the

fair
value of the interests in the funds Furthermore changes to the liquidiiy provisions ofthe funds may signflcancly impact the

fair

value of the interest in the funds

There was no change in the value of plan assets using significant unobservable inputs level from December 31 2009 to December 31 2010

There were no changes to the other level investments during 2009

We made the following contiibutions to our pension and other postretirement benefit plans during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Year Ended December 31

in Millions 2010 2009

U.S qualified pension plan $80.0 $75.0

Nonqualified pension plan 18.0 6.5

Non-U.S plans 4.6 73

Other postrctircment benefits net of participant contributions 2.6

TOTAL $105.2 $93.4

We expect our voluntary cah contributions to our U.S qualified pension plan to be $55.0 million in 2011

Quoted Prices in Active

Markets for Identical Assets
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The following table reflects the estimated future benefit payments
for our pension and other postretirement

benefit plans
These amounts are

reflected net of the annual Medicare Part subsidy see below of approximately $0.9 million
per year These estimates take into consideration

expected future service as appropriate

Estimated Net Future Benefit Payments

in Millions

2011

2012
71.4

2013

2014
773

2015

2016-2020
438.0

Assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the other FMC Corporation Savings and Investment Plan

postretirement
benefit obligations and net periodic other postretirement

benefit costs reported for the health care portion of the other
The FMC Corporation Savings and Investment Plan is qualified

postretirement plan one-percentage point change in the assumed salary-reduction plan under Section 401k of the Internal Revenue

health care cost trend rates would be immaterial to our net periodic other
Code in which substantially all of our U.S employees may participate

postretirement benefit costs for the
year

ended December 31 2010 by contributing portion of their compensation For eligible employees

and our other postretirement
benefit obligation at December 31 2010 participating in the Plan except for those employees covered by certain

collective bargaining agreements
the Company makes matching

The United Kingdom Ireland and Norway pension plans are included
contributions of 80% of the portion of those contributions up to 5%

in our disclosures for all
years presented In the second quarter of 2009 of the employees compensation Additionally effective July 2007

we settled our obligations associated with our Canadian defined benefit
all newly hired and rehired salaried and nonunion employees receive

pension plan through the purchase of an insurance annuity This event an employer contribution of five
percent

of the employees eligible

resulted in settlement charge of $0.5 million The financial impact of
compensation This change was instituted for these employees effective

compliance with U.S GAAP pension accounting literature for other
July 2007 since newly hired and rehired salaried and nonunion hourly

non-U.S pension plans is not substantially different from the locally
employees are no longer eligible

for our defined benefit plan Charges

reported pension expense
The cost of providing pension benefits for

against income for both of these contributions were $7.8 million in

foreign employees covered by other non-U.S plans was $3.7 million 2010 $7.1 million in 2009 and $6.7 million in 2008

in 2010 $2.0 million in 2009 and $4.0 million in 2008

NOTE 14 Share-Based Compensation

Stock Compensation Plans

We have share-based compensation plan which has been approved

by the stockholders for certain employees officers and directors

This plan is described below

FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock

Plan

The FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation
and Stock Plan the

Plan provides
for the

grant
of variety of cash and equity

awards

to officers directors employees and consultants including stock

options
restricted stock performance units including restricted

stock units stock appreciation rights and multi-year management

incentive awards payable partly in cash and partly in common stock

The Compensation and Organization
Committee of the Board of

Directors the Committee subject to the
provisions

of the Plan

approves
financial

targets
award

grants
and the times and conditions for

payment of awards to employees The FMC Corporation Non-Employee

Directors Compensation Policy formerly the FMC Corporation

Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors administered by

the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board

of Directors sets forth the compensation to be paid to the directors

including
awards currently restricted stock units only to be made to

directors under the Plan

Stock options granted
under the Plan may be incentive or nonqualified

stock options The exercise price
for stock options may not be less than

the fair market value of the stock at the date of
grant

Awards granted

under the Plan vest or become exercisable or payable at the time

designated by the Committee which has generally
been three

years

from the date of
grant

Incentive and nonqualified options granted

under the Plan
expire not later than 10 years from the grant

date 15

years for grants prior to 1996

Under the Plan awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units

may be made to selected employees The awards vest over periods

designated by the Committee which has generally been three years

with payment
conditional

upon
continued employment Compensation

cost is recognized over the vesting periods based on the market value

of the stock on the date of the award Restricted stock units granted

to directors under the Plan vest immediately if granted as part of or

in lieu of the annual retainer other restricted stock units granted to

directors vest at the Annual Meeting of Shareholders in the calendar

year following the May annual
grant

date

The total number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance

under the Plan is 14.4 million which is in addition to the shares

available from predecessor plans Cancellations through expiration

forfeiture or otherwise of outstanding awards increase the shares

available for future awards or grants As of December 31 2010 we

had total of approximately 3.6 million shares available for future

grants of share-based awards

FMC CORPORATION 2010 Form 10-K 59



PART II

NOTE 14 Share-Based Compensation

At December 31 2010 and 2009 there were restricted stock units

representing an aggregate
of 1374 shares and 35828 shares of common

stock respectively credited to the directors accounts

Stock Compensation

We recognized total of.14.7 million $9.1 million after-tax

$11.2 million $6.9 million after-tax and $10.6 million $6.6 million

after-tax in share-based compensation expense during the
years

ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively This
expense is

classified as selling general and administrative in our consolidated

statements of income

We received $18.1 million $10.2 million and $13.1 million in cash related

to stock option exercises for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively The shares used for the exercise of stock options

occurring during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

came from treasury shares

For tax purposes share-based compensation expense is deductible in

the
year

of exercise or vesting based on the intrinsic value of the award

on the date of exercise or vesting
For financial

reporting purposes

share-based compensation expense is based upon grant-date
fair value

and amortized over the vesting period Excess tax benefits represent the

difference between the share-based compensation expense
for financial

reporting purposes
and the deduction taken for tax purposes

These

excess tax benefits cannot be reported in our financial statements

while net operating loss exists From the adoption of share-based

compensation accounting 2006 through March 31 2010 we did

not recognize any excess tax benefits in our consolidated balance sheets

from the exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted awards

due to our U.S net operating
loss carryforward position

During the second and third
quarter

of 2010 we utilized the remaining

U.S financial net operating losses as we generated U.S income during

2010 sufficient to absorb the remaining unrecognized excess tax

benefits As result we recognized all of the excess tax benefits from

the exercise of stock options and the vesting of restricted stock awards

from 2006 through 2009 as well as the excess tax benefits generated

during the period from January 12010 through December 31 2010

As of December 31 2010 we recognized $56.3 million of excess tax

benefits of which $44 million related to years 2006 through 2009 on

our consolidated balance sheet as component of equity This amount

is also included as financing activity in our consolidated statements

of cash flows for the
year

ended December 31 2010

Stock Options

The grant-date fair values of the stock
options we granted in the

years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 were estimated
using

the

Black-Scholes option valuation model the key assumptions for which

are listed in the table below The expected volatility assumption is based

on the actual historical experience of our common stock The expected

life represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to

be outstanding The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S Treasury

securities with terms equal to the expected timing of stock option

exercises as of the
grant

date The dividend yield assumption reflects our

announcement of the
payment

of dividend on our common stock

BLACK SCHOLES VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS FOR 2010 2009 AND 2008 STOCK OPTION GRANTS

2010 2009 2008

Expected dividend yield 087% 1.13%

Expected volatility 42.17% 41.90% 31.30%

Expected life in years 6.5 6.5

Risk-free interest rate 3.13% 2.82% 3.26%

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was $24.50 $18.17

and $19.53 per share respectively
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The following summary shows stock option activity for employees under the Plan for the three years ended December 31 2010

The number of stock options indicated in the above table as being

exercisable as of December 31 2010 had an intrinsic value of

$40.6 million weighted-average remaining
contractual term of 4.5

years
and weighted-average

exercise price of $27.65

We recognized $5.3 million $3.3 million after-tax $4.9 million

$3.0 million after-tax and $4.7 million $2.9 million after-tax in

compensation expense
related to stock options

for the
years

ended

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively We applied forfeiture

rate of two percent per
stock option grant in the calculation of such

expense
for the years prior to 2010 For

grants beginning in 2010 we

adjusted our forfeiture rate assumption and began applying rate of

four
percent per

stock option grant
in the calculation of such

expense

Restricted Awards

The grant-date fair value of restricted stock awards and stock units under

the Plan is based on the market price per
share of our common stock

on the date of
grant

and the related compensation cost is amortized

to expense on straight-line basis over the vesting period during which

the employees perform related services which is typically three years

except for those eligible
for retirement prior to the stated vesting period

The following table shows our employee
restricted award activity for the three years

ended December 31 2010

We recognized $9.4 million $5.8 million after-tax $6.3 million

$3.9 million after-tax and $5.9 million $3.7 million after-tax

in compensation expense
related to restricted awards for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively We applied

forfeiture rate assumption of one percent
of outstanding grants in

the calculation of such
expense

for the years prior to 2010 For grants

beginning in 2010 we adjusted our forfeiture rate assumption and began

applying rate of two percent
of outstanding grants

in the calculation

of such
expense

As of December 31 2010 we had total remaining

unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested restricted awards

of $10.9 million which will be amortized over the weighted-average

remaining requisite service period
of approximately 1.9 years

Weighted-Average

Number of Options Granted Remaining Contractual Life

But Not Exercised in Years

Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Per Share Aggregate Intrinsic Value

Granted 271 $57.33

Forfeited 16 $5L93

December 31 2010

i777 shares exercisable and

1576 shares expected to vest 1.585 6.4 $40.33 $62.8

As of December 31 2010 we had total remaining unrecognized

compensation cost related to unvested stock options
of $5.4 million

which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining requisite

service period of approximately 1.8 years

Number Weighted- Average Grant

Number ofAward in Thousand
of awards Date Fair Value

Nnv dxpDee4ber3I 2007
4S4 $3207

Granted
102 $58.05

Vest4 122 $24.10

Forfeited
$38.07

Ndnvt1attkcniber1 20O 429 $40A0

Granted
90 $44.52

Vesre4
131

Forfeited
$14.51

ws4r Decnber3120O9 38 $44.70

Granted
208 $61.57

Vested 131 $40O

Forfeited
$52.78

Nstedatkizsnber 312O19 436 453.71
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NOTE 15 Equity

Earnings loss per common share EPS is computed by dividing

net income loss by the weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding during
the period on basic and diluted basis

Our potentially dilutive securities include potential common shares related

to our stock options restricted stock and restricted stock units Diluted

earnings per share Diluted EPS considers the impact of potentially

dilutive securities except in periods in which there is loss because the

inclusion of the potential co.nmon shares would have an antidilutive

effect Diluted EPS excludes the
impact

of potential common shares

related to our stock
options in periods in which the option exercise

price is greater than the
average

market price of our common stock

for the period For the
year

ended December 31 2010 and 2008

there were no potential common shares excluded from Diluted EPS

For the year ended December 31 2009 there were 278173 potential

common shares excluded from Diluted EPS

Our non-vested restricted stock awards contain rights to receive non-

forfeitable dividends and thus are participating securities requiring the

two-class method of computing EPS The two-class method determines

EPS by dividing the sum of distributed earnings to common stockholders

and undistributed earnings allocated to common stockholders by the

weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for

the period In calculating the two-class method undistributed earnings

are allocated to both common shares and
participating securities based

on the weighted average shares outstanding during the period

The following is summary of our capital stock activity over the
past

three
years

Common

Number of Shares in Thousanat Stock Treasury Stock

December 31 2007 92992 17862

Stock options and awards 920

Repurchases of common stocI net 3540

December 31 2008 92992 20482

Stock options and awards 733

Repurchases of common stock net 724

December 31 2009 92992 20473

Stock options and awards 884

Repurchases of common stock net 1917

DECEMBER 31 2010 92992 21506

At December 31 2010 5.7 million shares of FMC common stock were reserved for stock options and awards

Accumulated other comprehensive gain loss consisted of the following

December 31

in Millions 2010 2009

Deferred loss gain on derivauve contracts $3.5 $0.1

Pension and other postretirement liability adjustment 293.3 289.8

Foreign currency translation adjustments 14.9 10.7

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE GAIN LOSS $311.7 $279.2

On January 20 2011 we paid dividends aggregating $9.0 million to our an additional $250 million of our common stock for total of

shareholders of record as of December 31 2010 This amount is included $304.8 million The repurchase program does not include specific

in Accrued and other liabiliiies on the consolidated balance sheets as timetable or price targets
and maybe suspended or terminated at any time

of December 31 2010 For r.ie years ended December 31 2010 2009 Shares may be purchased through open
market or privately negotiated

and 2008 we paid $36.4 mi lion $36.3 million and $34.4 million in transactions at the discretion of management based on its evaluation

dividends respectively of market conditions and other factors
During the twelve months

ended December 31 2010 we repurchased 1874519 shares under
On October 24 2008 the Beard of Directors authorized the repurchase

the publicly announced repurchase program for $135.0 million We
of up to $250 million of our common stock At December 31 2010

also reacquire shares from time to time from employees in connection
$54.8 million remained unused of the 2008 authorization On

with the vesting exercise and forfeiture of awards under our equity
February 18 2011 the Board authorized the repurchase of up to

compensation plans

NOTE 16 Earnings Per Share
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Earnings applicable to common stock and common stock shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share are as follows

Year Ended December 31

Our financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents
trade

receivables other current assets accounts payable and amounts

included in investments and accruals meeting the definition of

The estimated fair value of the financial instruments in the above

chart has been determined using
available market information and

appropriate
valuation methods Accordingly the estimates presented

may not be indicative of the amounts that we would realize in market

exchange at settlement date and do not represent potential gains or

losses on these agreements
The estimated fair values of foreign exchange

forward contracts and commodity forward and option contracts are

included in the below tables under the Accounting
for Derivative

Instruments and Hedging Activities section The estimated fair value

of debt is $648.8 million and $638.4 million and the carrying amount

is $637.9 million and $643.9 million as of December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively

Use of Derivative Financial Instruments

to Manage Risk

We mitigate certain financial exposures including currency risk interest

rate risk and commodity purchase exposures through program
of risk

management
that includes the use of derivative financial instruments

We enter into foreign exchange contracts including forward and

purchased option contracts to reduce the effects of fluctuating foreign

currency exchange rates

financial instruments The carrying
value of these financial instruments

approximates
their fair value Our other financial instruments include

the following

We formally document all relationships between hedging instruments

and hedged items as well as the risk management objective
and strategy

for undertaking various hedge transactions This process
includes

relating derivatives that are designated as fair value or cash flow hedges

to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm

commitments or forecasted transactions We also formally assess

both at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis whether

each derivative is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values

or cash flows of the hedged item If we determine that derivative is

not highly effective as hedge or if derivative ceases to be highly

effective hedge we discontinue hedge accounting with respect to that

derivative prospectively

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Management

We conduct business in many foreign countries exposing earnings cash

flows and our financial position to foreign currency
risks The majority

of these risks arise as result of foreign currency
transactions Our policy

is to minimize exposure to adverse changes in currency exchange rates

This is accomplished through controlled program
of risk management

that includes the use of foreign currency debt and forward foreign

exchange contracts We also use forward foreign exchange contracts

NOTE 17 Financial Instruments Risk Management and Fair Value Measurements

Financial Instrument
Valuation Method

Foreign Exchange Forsvard Contracts Fstimated amounts that would be received or paid to terminate the contracts

at the reporting date based on current market prices
for applicable currencies

Energy Forssard and Option Contracts Fsuinated amounts that would he received or paid to terminate the contracts

at the reporting date based on quoted market prices
for applkable commodities

Debt
Our estimates and information obtained from independent third

parties using market

data such as bid/ask spreads for the last business day of the reporting pcriod
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to hedge firm and highly anticipated foreign currency
cash flows with

an objective of balancing currency risk to provide adequate protection

from significant fluctuations in the
currency markets

The primary currency movements for which we have
exchange-rate

exposure are the U.S dollar versus the euro the U.S dollar versus the

Chinese yuan and the U.S dollar versus the Brazilian real

Hedge ineffectiveness related to our outstanding foreign currency

exchange cash flow hedges recorded to earnings during the years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was gain loss of $0.3 million

and $0.1 million respectively There was no such activity in 2008

We hold certain forward contracts that have not been designated as

hedging instruments Contracts used to hedge the
exposure to foreign

currency fluctuations associated with certain
monetary assets and

liabilities are not designated as hedging instruments and changes in

the fair value of these items are recorded in earnings The net pre-tax

gains losses recorded in earnings for contracts not designated as

hedging instruments in 201 2009 and 2008 were $3.0 million

$36.9 million and $18.5 million respectively

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to risks in
elergy costs due to fluctuations in energy

prices particularly natural
gas

We
attempt to mitigate our exposure

to increasing energy costs by hedging the cost of future deliveries of

natural
gas

and
entering into fixed-price contracts for the purchase of

coal and fuel oil

There was no hedge ineffectiveness related to our outstanding commodity

cash flow hedges for the year ended December 31 2010 Hedge

ineffectiveness related to our outstanding commodity cash flow

hedges recorded to earnings for the
years ended December 31 2009

and 2008 were losses of $0.6 million and $0.2 million respectively

The net pre-tax loss recorded in earnings for commodity contracts

not designated as hedging instruments in 2010 2009 and 2008 was

$0.8million $0.2 million and $0.5 million respectively

In the second quarter of 2010 our Agricultural Products
segment began

entering into contracts with certain customers in Brazil to exchange

our products for future physical delivery of soybeans To mitigate the

price risk associated with these barter contracts we enter into offsetting

derivatives to hedge our exposure As of December 31 2010 we had

no such contracts in place

Interest Rate Risk

We use various
strategies to manage our interest rate exposure including

entering into interest rate swap agreements to achieve
targeted mix

of fixed and variable-rate dtht In the
agreements we exchange at

specified intervals the difference between fixed and variable-interest

amounts calculated on an agreed-upon notional principal amount As

of December 31 2010 and 2009 we have no such swap agreements

in place

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our counterparties to derivative contracts are limited to major financial

institutions and organized exchanges We limit the dollar amount of

contracts entered into with
aay one financial institution and monitor

counterparties credit
ratings We also enter into master netting

agreements
with each financial institution where possible which

helps mitigate
the credit risk associated with our financial instruments

While we may be exposed to credit losses due to the nonperformance

of counterparties we consider this risk remote

Financial Guarantees and Letter-of-Credit

Commitments

We enter into various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk as

part
of the normal course of business These off-balance sheet instruments

include financial guarantees and contractual commitments to extend

financial guarantees under letters of credit and other assistance to

customers Notes and 18 Decisions to extend financial guarantees to

customers and the amount of collateral required under these
guarantees

is based on our evaluation of creditworthiness on case-by-case basis

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

and Hedging Activities

Cash Flow Hedges

We recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value On the

date the derivative instrument is entered into we generally designate

the derivative as hedge of the variability of cash flows to be received

or paid related to forecasted transaction cash flow hedge We record

in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss AOCI changes

in the fair value of derivatives that are designated as and meet all the

required criteria for cash flow hedge We then
reclassify

these amounts

into earnings as the underlying hedged item affects earnings We record

immediately in earnings changes in the fair value of derivatives that

are not designated as cash flow hedges

As of December 31 2010 we had
open foreign currency forward

contracts in AOCI in net gain position
of $0.4 million before-tax

designated as cash flow
hedges of underlying forecasted sales and

purchases Current open contracts hedge forecasted transactions

until December 2011 The net gain from the foreign currency hedges

included in AOCI at December 31 2010 was $0.2 million after-tax

At December 31 2010 the Company had open forward contracts with

various expiration dates to buy sell or exchange foreign currencies with

U.S dollar equivalent of approximately $625.0 million

As of December 31 2010 we had current open commodity contracts

in AOCI in net loss position of $5.9 million before-tax designated as

cash flow hedges of underlying forecasted purchases primarily natural

gas Current open commodity contracts hedge forecasted transactions

until December 2011 The net loss from the
open commodity contracts

included in AOCI at December 31 2010 was $3.7 million after-tax

At December 31 2010 we had 6.3 million mmBTUs millions of

British Thermal Units in
aggregate

notional volume of outstanding

natural
gas commodity forward contracts to hedge forecasted purchases

Of the $3.5 million of net losses after-tax representing both open foreign

currency exchange contracts and
open commodity contracts $3.5 million

of net losses would be realized in earnings during the twelve months

ending December 31 2011 if spot rates in the future are consistent with

forward rates as of December 31 2010 Immaterial amounts of net gains

would be realized at various times subsequent to December 31 2011

The actual effect on earnings will be dependent on actual
spot rates

when the forecasted transactions occur We recognize derivative gains

and losses in the Costs of sales and services line in the consolidated

statements of income
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Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

We hold certain forward contracts that have not been designated as

cash flow hedging instruments for accounting purposes
Contracts used

to hedge the exposure to foreign currency fluctuations associated with

certain monetary assets and liabilities are not designated as cash flow

hedging instruments and changes in the fair value of these items are

recorded in earnings We hold call options that are effective as economic

hedges of portion of our natural
gas exposure

and the change in fair

value of this instrument is also recorded in earnings
We periodically

hold soybean barter contracts which qualify as derivatives and we have

entered into offsetting commodity contracts to hedge our exposure

Both the change in fair value of the soybean barter contracts and the

offsetting commodity contracts are recorded in earnings

We had
open

forward contracts not designated as cash flow hedging

instruments for accounting purposes
with various expiration

dates to

buy sell or exchange foreign currencies with U.S dollar equivalent

of approximately $343.0 million at December 31 2010 We hold

natural
gas option instrument with notional amount of approximately

1.5 million mmBTUs at December 31 2010

The following table provides the fair value and balance sheet presentation
of our derivative instruments as of December 31 2010 and 2009

The following tables provide the impact
of derivative instruments and related hedged items on the consolidated statements of income for the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

DERIVATIVES IN CASH FLOW HEDGING RELATIONSHIPS

Amount of Garn or Loss

Recognized in OCI on Derivatives

net of tax Effective Portion

Year Ended Year Ended

Amount of Pre-tax Gain or Loss

Reclassified fromAOCI into Income

Effective Portion

Year Ended Year Ended

.t.-.. 21

Amount of Pre-tax Gain or Loss

Recognized in Income on Derivative

Ineffective Portion and Amount Excluded

from Effectiveness Testing

Year Ended Year Ended

DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

December 31 2010 December 31 2009

The information included in the above chart is also presented in our fair value table included below

Amounts are included in Cost of sales and services on the consolidated statements of income

Location of Gain or LossDTF
Amount of Pre-tax Gain or Loss

Recognized in Income on Derivatives

Year Ended Year Ended

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K 65



PART II

NOTE 17 Financial Instruments Risk Management and Fair Value Measurements

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer
liability

in an orderly transaction between market
participants

at the measurement date Market participants are defined as buyers or

sellers in the principle or most advantageous market for the asset or

liability
that are independent of the reporting entity knowledgeable

and able and willing to transact for the asset or liability

Fair Value Hierarchy

We have categorized our assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair

value based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique

into three-level fair value hierarchy The fair value hierarchy gives the

highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities Level and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs

Level If the
inputs used to measure the assets and liabilities fall

within different levels of the hierarchy the categorization is based on

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

of the instrument

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets

for Identical Assets

Level

Significant

Unobservable Inputs

Level

The following table
presents our fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis in our consolidated

balance sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009

Significant Other

Observable Inputs

LevelinMiltions 12/31/2010

ASSETS

Available-for-sale securities

Common Stock $0.1 $0.1

Derivatives Energy 0.2 0.2

Degivatsves Foreign Exchange 1.1 1.1

Other 22.1 22.1

TOTALASSETS $23.5 $22.2 $1.3

LIABILITIES

Derivatives Energy $6.0 $6.0

Derivatives Foreign Exchange 2.1 2.1

Othej 322 32.2

TOTAL LIABILITIES $40.3 $32.2 $8.1

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant

for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

in Millions 12/31/2009 Level Level Level

ASSETS

Available-for-sale securities

Common Stock $0.1 $0.1

Derivatives Energy 4.9 4.9

Derivatives Foreign Exch.mge 0.5 0.5

Other 21.9 21.9

TOTAL ASSETS $27.4 $22.0 $5.4

LIABILITIES

Derivatives Energy $3.2 $3.2

Derivatives Foreign Exchsnge 1.9 1.9

Othet 312 312

TOTAL LIABILITIES $36.3 $31.2 $5.1

Amounts included in Investments in the consolidated balance sheets

Amounts included in Prepaid and ocher current assets in the consolidated balance sheets

Consists of deferred compenso tion arrangement through which we hold various investment securities recognized on our balance sheet Both the asset and liabil ty are recorded at

air value Asset amounts incluled in Other assets in the consolidated balance sheets

Amounts included in .4ccrued isnd other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets

Consists of deferred compensation arrangement recognized on our balance sheet Boch the asset and liability are recorded at fair value
Liability amounts included in Ocher

long

term liabilities in the consolicLited balance sheets
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The following tables present our fair value hierarchy for those assets and liabilities measured at fair value on non-recurring
basis during the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

in Millions

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets

Year Ended for Identical Assets

12/31/2009 Level

Significant Other Signfficant

Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Level Level

Total Gains Losses

Year Ended

December 31 2009

Long-lived assets to be abandoned
s32.2

Assets acquired through

acquisitions 33.9 1.5
32.4

TOTALASSETS $33.9 $1.5 532.4 $32.2

LIABILIT1FS

Asset retirement obligations $1 2.2 112.2

Liabilities associated

with acquisitions
1.0

Liabilities associated

with exit activities
24.5 24.5 18.1

TOTAL LIABILITIES $37.7 $24.5 $13.2 $18.1

1V iiriaiea mulrsplefiiei/iry phaseouts durint i/ic twelve mont/is ended December 31 2009 primarily
the Barcelona fat liijs

the Santa Clara Jicilsts and the Baypo and

Bromboronqi Lithium fcilitses In Connection with thc
phase-ours we recorded charges to writ dun the value of the related long-lived assets to be abandoned to their fair

value of

zero as the long-lived assets have nofrrure use and are anticipated to be demolished The loss noted in the above table
represents

the accelerated depreciation of these assets recorded

during the period See Note 7for additional details of the charges incurred during the twelve months ended December31 2009

As part ofthe
acquisitions

in ourAgricultural
Products segmencas discussed in Note we are required

to recognize the assets acquired
liabilities assumed and conti ngent

consideration

at theirfair
values on the acquisition

date The level3 assets identified above represent various acquired intangible assets that were valued
using

various forms of the income valuation

approach The valuation inputs included an estimate offisture cash flows
and discount rates based on the internal rate of return and the weighted average rate of return The level

liabilities identfled above represent
the

fair
value of contingent

consideration incurred as part ofthe acquisition

In connection with the facility phase-outs during the twelve months ended December 31 2009 primarily
the Barcelona facility

the Santa Clara
facility

and the Bayport
and

Bromborough Lithium facilities we accelerated the estimated settlement dates associated with the asset retirement obligations
at these facilities

and as result recorded an increase to

these obligations in the amount of$12.2 million We estimated the fair
value of the asset retirement obligations

based on engineering
estimates provided by experienced engineers

who

have dealt with the retirement ofand
disposal of contaminated equipment instruments and hazardous chemicals The associated asset retirement obligations

are
cap

italized as part of

the
tartying

amount of related long-lived assets and this capitalized cost is depreciated on an accelerated basis over the remaining phase-out period ofthe
exp

ecred facility operation

In connection with the fati lity phase-outs
noted above we recorded liabilities in the amount of $24.5 million related to severance costs and contract termination fees

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets

for Identical Assets

.....i

Significant Other Significant Total Gains Losses

Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Year Ended

It

We recorded charges of $69.4 million related to Hue/va facility
shutdown and $2.2 million for the write-off ofcertain other assets in our Industrial Chemicals

segment during the
year

ended Dectm her 31 2010 We recorded charges to write down the value of these long-lsved assets to their
salvage

value of $60 million The
majority of the long-lsved assets have

fair value ofzero as they
have

noflture use and are antictyated to be demolished The loss noted in the above table
represents

the accelerated depreciation of these assets recorded during

the period See Note 7for additional details of the charges
incurred

for
the twelve months ended December31 2010

In connection with the Huelvafacilsty shutdown during the twelve months ended December31 2010 we accelerated the estimated settlement date associated with the asset retirement

obligations at this facility and as result recorded an increase to the oblsgation in the amount of $28.8 million We estimated the fair value of the asset retirement obligations
based

on engineering
estimates provided by exp

erienced engineers
who have dealt with the retirement ofand disp osal ofcontaminated equipment instruments and hazardous chemicals The

associated asset retirement obligations are cap
italszed as part ofthe carrying amount of related

long-lsved
assets and this capitalized cost is depreciated on an accelerated basis over the

remaining phase-out period of the expecredfacilsty operation

In connection with the Alginaces restructuring
discussed in Note we recorded liabilsties in the amount of $5.0 million during the

year
ended December 31 2010 related to the

accrual of costs associated with leasedproperties
which we have ceased using Also in connection with the

Huelvafacilsty
shutdown noted above we recorded liabilities in the amount

of $41.0 million mainly related to severance costs and contract termination fees
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NOTE 18 Comniitments Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

We lease office
space plants and facilities and various types

of

manufacturing data
processing and transportation equipment Leases

of real estate generally provide for our payment of property taxes

insurance and repairs Capital leases are not significant Rent
expense

under operating leases amounted to $18.8 million $18.9 million and

$15.8 million in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Rent expense is

net of credits received for the use of leased transportation assets of

$21.9 million $19.8 millicn and $24.3 million in 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

Minimum future rentals under noncancelable leases are estimated to

be payable as follows $25.7 million in 2011 $22.6 million in 2012

$21.9 million in 2013 $19.5 million in 2014 $21.8 million in 2015

and $27.0 million thereafter Minimum future rentals for transportation

assets included above aggregated approximately $95.6 million against

which we expect to continue to receive credits to substantially defray

our rental
expense

Our minimum commitments under our take-or-pay purchase obligations

associated with the
sourcing

of materials and energy total approximately

$95.8 million Since the majority of our minimum obligations under

these contracts are over the life of the contract as opposed to year-

by-year basis we are unable to determine the periods in which these

obligations could be payable under these contracts However we intend

to fulfill the obligations associated with these contracts through our

purchases associated with the normal course of business

The
following table provides the estimated undiscounted amount of

potential future payments for each major group
of

guarantees

in Millions December 31 2010

Guarantees

Guarantees of vendor flnancing $24.1

Foreign equity method invntrnent and other debt guarantees 6.2

TOTAL $30.3

Other Commitmenis

We provide guarantees to financial institutions on behalf of certain

Agricultural Products cuslomers principally in Brazil for their

seasonal borrowing The total of these
guarantees was $24.1 million

and $49.5 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

and are recorded on the corsolidated balance sheets for each date as

Guarantees of vendor financing The higher level of
guarantees at

December 31 2009 compared with December 31 2010 arose from

greater borrowing need of our Brazilian
sugar cane customers in 2009

We guarantee repayment of some of the borrowings of certain foreign

affiliates accounted for using the equity method for investments As of

December 31 2010 these
guarantees had maximum potential payments

of $6.2 million compared to $5.8 million at December 31 2009

In connection with our property and asset sales and divestitures we

have agreed to indemnify the buyer for certain liabilities including

environmental contamination and taxes that occurred prior to the date

of sale Our indemnification Dbligations with respect to these liabilities

may be indefinite as to duraLion and may or may not be subject to

deductible minimum claim amount or cap As such it is not possible

for us to predict the likelihood that claim will be made or to make

reasonable estimate of the maximum potential loss or range
of loss If

triggered we may be able to tecover certain of the indemnity payments

from third parties We have not recorded
any specific liabilities for

these
guarantees

Contingencies

On January 28 2005 we and our wholly owned subsidiary Foret

received Statement of Objections from the European Commission

concerning alleged violations of competition law in the hydrogen

peroxide business in Europe during the period 1994 to 2001 Al of

the significant European hydrogen peroxide producers also received the

Statement of Objections We and Foret responded to the Statement of

Objections in April 2005 and hearing on the matter was held at the end

ofJune 2005 On May 2006 we received notice from the European

Commission indicating that the European Commission had imposed

fine on us and Foret in the
aggregate amount of 25.0 million as

result of alleged violations during the period 1997-1999 In connection

with this fine we recorded an expense of $30.0 million reflecting then-

prevailing exchange rates in our consolidated statements of income

for the
year

ended December 31 2006 This
expense was included as

component
of Restructuring and other charges income Both we

and Foret have appealed the decision of the European Commission

The Foret appeal was argued before the Court of First Instance on

March 2010 but no decision has been rendered The FMC appeal

was argued in May of 2010 During the appeal process interest

accrues on the fine which as of December 31 2010 was at rate of

4.0
percent per annum We have provided bank letter of credit in

favor of the European Commission to guarantee our payment of the

fine and accrued interest At December 31 2010 the amount of the

letter of credit was 30.5 million U.S $41.2 million
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In February 2005 putative direct and indirect purchaser class action

complaints were filed against six U.S hydrogen peroxide producers

and certain of their foreign affiliates in various federal courts alleging

violations of antitrust laws Related cases were also filed in various

state courts In January 2009 FMC reached an agreement to settle

with the direct purchaser
class for $10 million with

pro rata credit

for opt outs The $10 million figure was included as component

of Restructuring and other charges income in our consolidated

statements of income for the
year

ended December 31 2008 Ten

companies predominantly paper producers opted out of this class

settlement FMC settled with two of the ten companies
for an amount

within the opt out credit described above The remaining eight opt

outs filed suit against FMC and in some cases Foret These cases were

assigned to the same judge as the class action FMCs motion to dismiss

the opt out claims to the extent they were based on foreign purchases

was granted on April 2010 FMC has settled the remaining claims

of these eight opt outs for an aggregate
of $1.7 million which is net

of $0.3 million opt out credit Another individual opt out case was

dismissed following the bankrupt opt
outs decision to participate

in

the class settlement FMC settled the indirect purchaser class claims for

$0.25 million The settlement has been finally approved by the Court

and all remaining state court cases have been dismissed with prejudice

We recorded the $2.0 million as component
of Restructuring and

other charges income in our consolidated statements of income

for the
year

ended December 31 2010 As result all U.S litigation

against FMC regarding alleged price fixing in the hydrogen peroxide

industry is now concluded We still face putative class actions against

FMC and five other major hydrogen peroxide producers in provincial

courts in Ontario Quebec and British Columbia under the laws

of Canada Four of the defendants have settled these claims for

total of approximately $20.5 million On September 28 2009 the

Ontario Superior Court of Justice certified class of direct and indirect

purchasers of hydrogen peroxide FMC moved for leave to appeal

the class certification decision which was denied in June 2010 The

Company intends to defend these cases Since the proceedings are in

the preliminary stages
with respect to the merits we believe an exposure

of loss cannot be reasonably estimated

Like hundreds of other industrial companies we have been named as

one of many defendants in asbestos-related personal injury litigation

Most of these cases allege personal injury or death resulting from

exposure
to asbestos in premises

of FMC or to asbestos-containing

components
installed in machinery or equipment

manufactured or sold

by discontinued operations
We intend to continue managing these

cases in accordance with our historical experience We have established

reserve for this litigation within our discontinued operations
and

believe that any exposure of loss in excess of the established reserve

cannot be reasonably estimated

In late June 2004 we were served in lawsuit captioned Lewis et

al FMC Corporation which was filed in United States District

Court for the Western District of New York The suit was brought by

thirteen residents of Middleport New York who allege
that we violated

certain state and federal environmental laws and seeks injunctive
relief

and monetary damages for personal injuries
and property damage in

connection with such alleged violations motion for summary was

filed by the Company in 2007 and is expected to be decided in 2011

We believe this suit is without merit and therefore have not established

reserve for it

We have certain other contingent
liabilities arising from litigation

claims performance guarantees
and other commitments incident

to the ordinary course of business Based on information currently

available and established reserves the ultimate resolution of our known

contingencies including the matters described in this Note 18 is not

expected to have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial

position or liquidity However there can be no assurance that the

outcome of these contingencies will be favorable and adverse results

in certain of these contingencies could have material adverse effect on

our consolidated financial position results of operations or liquidity
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NOTE 19 Business Segment and Geographic Data

Year Ended December 31

in Mi//join 201 20O 200S

Revenue

Agrkuhural Products SI .241.8 S10S 1.6 SI 058

Spccia1t Chemicals 824.5 53.1 64.5

lndmtrial Chemicals .054.8 .026 .296.9

Eliminations 4.8 5.2 4.8

TOIAL $3116.3 $2826.2 $3115.3

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

ricultural Products 309.5 289.0 215.2

pecialt1 Chemicah 185.0 159.6 52.0

IndmtraI Chemicak 122.9 89 201.4

Lliminatksns 0.2 0.1 0.1

Segment operating profit 617.6 538.2 598.5

Corporate 63.0 44.1 49.8

Other income expense net 18.0 27.5 8.6

Oper.ttiit profit before the items listcd bcIov 536.6 466.6 540.1

Interest expense net 39.3 27.0 31.9

Restructurine and other income charcs 151.9 132.8 49.6

Purchase accounting invcntor fir value
impact

and oilier related inventors adjustments 7.1 2.3

Pension settlement charge 7.3

Provision for income taxcs 132.0 53.0 125.4

DiscOntinued operations net of income taxes 33.6 18.2 24.9

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS $172.5 $228.5 $304.6

s/ian

Impairment of Perorsa
joint vonture

Business segment results are presented net of noncontrolling interests reflecting only of earnings The
corporate

line primarily includes staff expenses
while other income

and
expense

nec consists of all other
corporate items including

LIFO
inventory adjustments and pension income or

expense

Results for all
segments

are nec of nonconcrolling
interests in 2010 2009 and 2008 of $12.4 million $10.3 million and $170 million respectively the

majority of which
pertain to

our Industrial Chemicals segm mc

See Note Amouncs in 2010 related to Agricultural
Products $73 million Specialty

Chemicals $67 million Industrial Chemicals $124.6 million and Corporate

$13.3 million Amounts in 2009 related to Agricultural Products $61 million Specialiy
Chemicals $31.0 million Industrial Chemicals $71.8 million and Corporate

$23.9 million Amounts in 2008 related co Agricultural
Products $43.9 million Specialty Chemicals $4.4 million Industrial Chemicals $14.2 million and Corporate

$12.9 million-gain

$1.4 million charge related to the impairmenc of our Pero rsa joint venture On the consolidated statements ofincome this charge is included in Equity in earnings loss ofaffiliates

for the year ended December31 2008

Charges related to amortization of the
inventory fair value

step-up resulting from the
application ofpurchase accounting associated with the third

quarter
2008 acquisition in our

Specialty Chemicals segment aid the first quarter
2009

acquisition
in our Agricultural Products

oegznenc
In 2009 we also recorded

inventory adjustments
rela red to the third

quarter

2008 acquisition in our SpecisIty Chemicals
segment

and
subsequent alginaces business

restructuring
On the consolidated statements of income these charges are included in Costs

ofsales and servi cesfor the
yesrs

ended December31 2009 and 2008 No such event occurred
for

the
year

ended December31 2010

Amounts
rep resent settlement

charge
associated with the acceleration ofpreviously deferredpension actuarial losses The acceleration was triggered by lump-sum payout to ourformer

Chairman and CEO On the consolidated statements of income these
charges are included in Selling general and administrative expensesfor the

year
ended December31 2010

December 31

in Millions 2010 2009 2008

Operating capital employed

Agricultural Products $751.3 $729.7 $570.7

Specialty Chemicals 806.2 821.5 783.9

Industrial Chemicals 488.8 559.9 593.4

Elimination 0.2 0.4 0.4

Total operating capital employed 2046.1 2110.7 1947.6

Segmeot liabilities included in total operating capital employed 717.9 587.9 613.7

Corporate items 555.9 437.6 432.6

TOTAL ASSETS $3319.9 $3136.2 $2993.9

Segment assets

Agricultural Products $1090.9 $956.2 $764.0

Specialty Chemicals 892.5 910.0 867.7

Industrial Chemicals 780.8 832.8 930.0
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December 31

in Millions _________
2010 2009 2008

Elimination
0.2 0.4 0.4

2764.0 2698.6 2561.3

Corporate
items

555.9 437.6 432.6

TOT A$STS $3319.9 $3136.2 $2993.9

We view operating capital employed which consists of assets net ofliabilities reported by our
operations

and excluding corporate
items such as cash

equivalents
debt pension

liabilities

income taxes and LIFO reserves as our primary measure of segment capital

Segment assets are assets recorded and
reported by the

segments
and are equal

to segment operating capital employed plus segment
liabilities See Note

Year Ended December 31

Capital Expenditures Depreciation and Amortization Research and Development Expense

in Millions
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Agricultural Products $12.9 $28.6 $16.8 $21.7 $17.3 $12.4 $80.9 73.l $70.6

Specialty Chemicals 51.9 65.5 45.8 32.6 33.5 32.9 13.4 12.9 1-s.9

Industrial chemicals 68.4 65.8 105.6 73.3 70.7 67.6 6.2 6.8 8.3

Corporate 9.1 1.3 6.6 6.0 5.7 11.3

TOTAL $142.3 $161.2 $174.8 $133.6 $127.2 $124.2 $100.5 $92.8 $93.8

GEOGRAPHIC SEGMENT INFORMATION

Year Ended December 31

in Millions
2010 2009 2008

Revenue by location of customer

North America
$1148.2 04.9 1061.6

Europe/Middle East/Africa
677.6 716.4 887.0

Latin America1
821.8 697.8 741.7

Asia Pacific
468.7 367.1 422.0

TOTAL $3116.3 $2826.2 $3115.3

1n2010 countries with sales in excess of 10
percent of consolidated revenue consisted ofthe US and Bra-il Sales Jon/ic inel Brazil totaled $1078.9 million and $564.7 million

resp ectively for the
year

ended December31 2010 For the
years

ended December31 2009 and 2008 L..5 sales tota/ed.98s.3 million and $9962 million and Brazil sales totaled

$470.8 million and $478.1 million respectively

December 31

1t.ographic segment long-lived
assets exclude long-term deferred

income taxes on the consolidated balance sheets

The countries with long-lived assets in excess of 10
percent of consolidated long-lived

assets at December 31 2010 and 2009 are the US and Norway Long lived assets in the

US totaled $735.7 million and $734.5 million as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Norway long-lived assets totaled $223.3 million and $237.1 million as of

December31 2010 and 2009 respectively Norway assets included goodwill of $161 .2 million and $175.8 million as ofDecember31 2010 and 2009 respectively

$1407.8
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2010 2009

in Millions Except Share and Per Share Data 1Q 4Q
Revenue $756.5 $776.8 $772.5 $810.5 $690.5 $700.3 $713.3 $722.1

Gross Profit 267.0 264.6 254.7 264.4 236.6 223.0 203.3 219.7

Income loss from continuing operations before

equity in earnings loss of affiliates net interest

income and expense and income taxes 135.9 131.4 127.1 7.3 114.0 97.2 68.0 55.5

Income loss from continuing operations 86.1 88.2 86.2 42.0 75.3 76.9 35.5 69.3

Discontinued operations nei of income taxes 5.7 19.3 0.3 8.3 4.4 5.2 6.1 2.5

Net income loss 80.4 68.9 85.9 50.3 70.9 71.7 29.4 66.8

Less Net income attributable to noncontrolling

interests 3.0 3.2 3.0 3.2 1.8 2.4 1.4 4.7

NET INCOME LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO FMC STOCKHOLDERS $77.4 $65.7 $82.9 $53.5 $69.1 $69.3 $28.0 $62.1

Amounts attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuing operations net of income taxes $83.1 $85.0 $83.2 $45.2il 73.5 $74.5 34.1 $64.6

Discontinued operations nei of income taxes 5.7 19.3 0.3 8.3 4.4 5.2 6.1 2.5

NET INCOME LOSS $77.4 $65.7 $82.9 $53.5 $69.1 $69.3 $28.0 $62.1

Basic earnings loss per common share

attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuingoperations $1.14 $1.17 $1.14 $0.63 1.01 $1.02 0.47 $0.89

Discontinued operations 0.08 0.27 0.00 0.11 0.06 0.07 0.08 0.03

BASIC NET INCOME LOSS PER

COMMON SHARE $1.06 $0.90 $1.14 $0.74 $0.95 $0.95 $0.39 $0.86

Diluted earnings loss per common share

attributable to FMC stockholders

Continuingoperations $1.14 $1.16 $1.14 $ffl.63.1 $1.00 %1.01 S0.46 $0.88

Discontinued operations 0.08 026 0.01 0.11 0.06 0.07 0.08 0.03

DILUTED NET INCOME LOSS
PER COMMON SHARE $1.06 $0.90 $1.13 $0.74 $0.94 $0.94 $0.38 $0.85

Weighted average shares outs anding

Basic 72.3 72.5 72.3 71.8 72.3 72.2 72.1 72.1

Diluted 73.3 73.4 73.1 71.8 73.4 73.4 73.1 73.2

In the fourth quarter of2010 our result were unfavorably impacted by $116.2 million $80.7 million
after-tax of resiructurin and other char8ss income anda $39.2 million

valuation allowance recorded
against defened tax assets in Spain which arose principally from the Hue/va shutdown In the

feurib quarter of 2009 our re u/is were
unfavorably

impacted by $47.9 million $30.6 million after-tax of restructuring
and other

charges income See Note

The sum ofquarterly earnings per common ihare may dffŁrfrom the fell-year amount
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders

FMC Corporation

We have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of

FMC Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and

2009 and the related consolidated statements of income changes in

equity
cash flows and comprehensive

income for each of the years in

the three-year period ended December 31 2010 In connection with

our audits of the consolidated financial statements we have also audited

the related financial statement schedule These consolidated financial

statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the financial

statement schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act

Rule 3a- 15f FMCs internal control over financial reporting is

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles Internal control over financial reporting includes those

written policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and
fairly

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the

assets of FMC

provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary

to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

provide reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of FMC

are being made only in accordance with authorization of management

and directors of FMC and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection

of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of assets that could

have material effect on the consolidated financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting
includes the controls themselves

monitoring
and internal auditing practices

and actions taken to correct

deficiencies as identified

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation
We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above

present fairly in all material respects the financial position
of FMC

Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and

the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the

years

in the three-year period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion
the

related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to

the basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents

fairly in all material respects
the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

FMC Corporations internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO and our report

dated February 22 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion on the

effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Isi KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 22 2011

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes

in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

We assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 We based this assessment on

criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission Managements

assessment included an evaluation of the design of our internal control

over financial reporting and testing
of the operational

effectiveness of

our internal control over financial reporting
We reviewed the results of

our assessment with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors

Based on this assessment we determined that as of December 31 2010

FMC has effective internal control over financial reporting

KPMG LLP our independent registered public accounting firm has

issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2010 which
appears on page

74

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting

FMC CORPORATION -2010 Form 10-K 73



PART II

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directots and Stockholders

FMC Corporation

We have audited FMC Co porations internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2010 based on the criteria established

in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring OrganizatiorLs of the Treadway Commission COSO
FMC Corporations management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal corttrol over financial reporting included in

the accompanying report
titled Managements Annual Report on

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to

express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting
based on our aud Lt

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public

Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards

require that we plan and perfirmthe audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was

maintained in all material
respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing

the risk that material wealmess exists and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effeciiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk Our audit also included performing such other procedures

as we considered necessary .n the circumstances We believe that our

audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial
reporting

is
process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of

financial
reporting

and the
preparation

of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles companys interal control over financial reporting includes

those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance

of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of

the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have

material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial

reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also projections

of
any

evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes

in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion FMC Corporation maintained in all material

respects
effective internal control over financial

reporting as of

December 31 2010 based on the criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States the

consolidated balance sheets of FMC Corporation and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements

of income changes in equity cash flows and comprehensive income for

each of the
years

in the three-year period ended December 31 2010

and our report dated February 22 2011 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those consolidated financial statements

/s/ KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 22 2011
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Schedule IIValuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

For
years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Description

in Millions Balance Beginning of Year Provision/benelit Write- offs Balance End of Year

December31 2010

Reserve for doubtful accounts 8.2 .3 0.8 21 .7

Deferred ux valuasion allowance $37 $39.2 S6.3

December 31 2009

Resere for doubtful accounts 16.3 55.8 53.9 1S.2

Deferred tax valuation alloance S5.3 18.2

December 31 2008

Reserve for doubtful accounts SI 8.0 3.1 S4.8 516.3

Deferred tax valuation allowance $65.1 S19.81 855

Ii ritaoil .o nr of recozcrles

ITEM Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants

on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures Based on

managements evaluation with the participation
of the Companys

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer the Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that

as of the end of the period covered by this report the Companys

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e

and 5d-1 5e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are

effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required

to be disclosed by the Company in
reports

filed or submitted

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded processed

summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the

SECS rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated

to management including our principal executive officer and

principal financial officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosure

Managements annual report on internal control over financial

reporting
Refer to Managements Report on Internal Control Over

FinancialReportingwhich is included in Item of Part II of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference

to this Item 9A

Audit report of the independent registered public accounting

firm Refer to Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm which is included in Item of Part II of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K and is incorporated by reference to this Item 9A

Change in Internal Controls There have been no changes in

internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during

the quarter
ended December 31 2010 that materially affected

or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control

over financial reporting
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ITEM 9B Other Information

Reporting Requirements Regarding Coal or Other Mine Safety

On July21 2010 the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act the Dodd- Frank Act was enacted Section 1503 of

the Dodd- Frank Act contains new reporting requirements regarding

coal or other mine safety The Company operates
mine in

conjunction

with its Green River Wyoming facility
which is subject to regulation

by the Mine Safety and Haz Ith Administration MSHA under the

Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977 the Mine Act and is

therefore subject to these reporting requirements Presented in the table

below is information regardir.g certain mining safety and health citations

which MSHA has issued with
respect to our operation as required by

the Dodd-Frank Act In evaluating this information consideration

should be given to the fact that citations and orders can be contested

and appealed and in that process may be reduced in severity penalty

amount or sometimes dismissed vacated altogether

The letters used as column headings in the table below correspond to

the explanations provided underneath the table as to the information

set forth in each column with
respect to the numbers of violations

orders citations or dollar amounts as the case may be during calendar

year 2010 unless otherwise indicated

For each coal or other mine of which the issuer or subsidiary

of the issuer is an operator

Assessments are generally delayed up to 60
days after the close of the inspection

The total number of violation of mandatory health or safety standards that tould sigflcantly and substantially tontribute to the tause and effett of coal or other mine safety or

health hazard under section 104 of the Mine Act
for which the operator received citation from MSHA

The total number of orders issued under section 104b of the Mine Act

The total number of citations end orders for unwarrantable failure of the
operator to comply with mandatory health or safrty standards under section 104d of the Mine Act

The total number offlagrant violations under section 110b of the Mine Act

The total number of imminen danger orders issued under section 107a ofthe Mine Act

The total dollar value
ofpropesed assessments from the MSHA under the Mine Act

The total number of mining rlacedfatalicies

Any pending legal action before
the Federal Mine

Safeey
and Health Review Commission

involving
such coal or other mines

All cases listed are pending beJre the
Offite ofAdministrative

Law
Judges of the Federal Mine

Safrcy
and Health Review Commission on January 31 2011

list of such coal or otFLer mines of which the issuer or subsidiary

of the issuer is an operator that received written notice from

MSI-IA of
pattern

of violations of mandatory health or safety

standards that are of such nature as could have significantly and

substantially contributed to the cause and effect of coal or other

mine health and safety hazards under section 104e of the Mine

Act or the potential to have such pattern

NONE

Section Section Section Section Section Proposed

Ooeration Name 104 104bl 104d 110b 21 107 Assessments

Pending

Legal

Action

Any pending legal action before the Federal Mine Safety and

Health Review Commission involving such coal or other mine

SEE COLUMN OF SECTION ABOVE
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ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate

Governance

Information concerning directors appearing under the caption
III

Board of Directors in our Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC in

connection with the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders scheduled to be

held on April 26 2011 the Proxy Statement information concerning

executive officers appearing under the caption Item 4A Executive

Officers of the Registrant in Part of this Form 10-K information

concerning the Audit Committee appearing
under the caption IV

Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance-

Committees and Independence of Directors-Audit Committee in the

Proxy Statement information concerning the Code of Ethics appearing

under the caption Information About the Board of Directors and

Corporate Governance Corporate Governance-Code of Ethics and

Business Conduct Policy in the Proxy Statement and information

about compliance with Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 appearing under the caption VII Other Matters Section 16a

Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy Statement

is incorporated
herein by reference in

response
to this Item 10

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The information contained in the Proxy Statement in the section titled VI Executive Compensation with respect to executive compensation

in the section titled IV Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Director Compensation and Corporate

Governance Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 11
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ITEM 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information contained in the section titled Security Ownership of FMC Corporation in the Proxy Statement with respect to security

ownership of certain benefkial owners and management is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 12

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The table below sets forth with respect to compensation plans under which equity securities of FMC are authoriaed for issuance

as of December 31 2010 All of the equity compensation plans pursuant to which we are currently granting equity
awards have been approved

by stockholders

Number of Securities remaining

Number of Securities to be issued Weighted- average available for future issuance under equity

upon exercise of outstanding options exercise price of outstanding options compensation pians excluding securities

and restricted stock awards and restricted stock awards reflected in column

Plan Category

Equity compensation Plans

approved by stockholders 083950 523.39 74692

Taking into account all outsrasidint stock
oprion ins Intl4 in this tabli t/ ueights 4as sra tvtscLe

pri 0/ such rod
ojiriom

is S23 39 and th5 mc ihie1nerseie is rmioexpirnzon

is
Tyears

Includes 1586503 stock
ojt

OSIS and 456073 restricted stock awards granted to employees and 41374 Restricted Stock Units RSUs held by directors

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

and Director Independence

The information contained in the Proxy Statement concerning our independent directors under the caption IV Information About the Board of

Directors and Corporate Governance and the information contained in the Proxy Statement concerning our related
party

transactions policy

appearing
under the

caption
IV Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Corporate Governance Related

Party Transactions Policy incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 13

ITEM 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information contained in the Proxy Statement in the section titled II The Proposals to be Voted On Ratification of Appointment

of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm is incorporated herein by reference in
response to this Item 14
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ITEM 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Documents filed with this Report

Consolidated financial statements of FMC Corporation and its subsidiaries are incorporated under Item of this Form 10-K

The following supplementary financial information is filed in this Form 10-K

Financial Statements Schedule II Valuation and qualiing accounts and reserves for the
years

ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 page 75

The schedules not included herein are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is presented in the financial statements

or related notes

Exhibits See attached Index of Exhibits

Exhibits

Exhibit No Exhibit Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation as filed on June 23 1998 Exhibit 4.1 to FMC Corporations Form S-3 filed on July 21 1998

Restated By-Laws of FMC Corporation as of February 20 2009 Exhibit 10.2 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K

3.2 filed on february 23 2009

Succession Agreement dared as of August 2002 among FMC Corporation BNY Midwest Trust Company as Trustee and Wachovia

Bank National Association as Successor Trustee Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on

4.1 November 14 2002

Indenture dated as of November 15 2009 by and between FMC Corporation and U.S Bank National Association as trustee

4.2 Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 30 2009

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 30 2009 by and between FMC Corporation and U.S Bank National Association

4.3 as trustee including the form of the Note Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K flied on November 30 2009

FMC Corporation undertakes to furnish to the SEC upon request copy of any instrument defining the rights of holders of long-term

debt of FMC Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries and for any of its unconsolidated subsidiaries for which financial statements

4iiiA are required to he filed

Credit Agreement dated as of August 28 2007 ansong FMC Corporation and certain Foreign Subsidiaries the Lenders and Issuing

Banks Named Therein Citibank N.A as Administrative Agent Wachovia Bank National Association as Dcumcntation Agent

Citigtoup Global Markets lot. Banc of America Securities LLC and Wachovia Securities Inc as Joint Lead Arrangers and co-Book

Managers and Bank of America N.A as Syndication Agent Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Current Report on Form 8-K filed

10.1.a on August 29 2007

Amendment No dated as of February 20 2008 to Credit Agreement dated as of August 28 2007 among FMC Corporation and

certain Foreign Subsidiaries the Lenders and Issuing Bank Named Therein Citibank N.A as Administrative Agent Citigroup Global

Markets Inc Banc of America Securities LLC and Wachovia Securities Inc as Joint Lead Arrangers and Co-Book Managers and Bank

MA ent.Exhibit10.1.btoFMCCorporationsAnnualR

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of February 20 2008 among FMC Finance B.V as borrower FMC Corporation

and FMC Chemicals Netherlands B.V as guarantors
the Lenders party thereto Citibank International plc as agent

for the Lenders

ABN Amro Bank N.V Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Agentaria S.A National City Bank and Wachovia Bank National Association

as mandated lead arrangers and Citigroup Global Markets Limited and Bane of America Securities LLC as mandated lead
arrangers

10.3 and bookrunners Fxhibii l0.3.b to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 25 2008

Amendment No to Credit Agreement dated as ofAugust 13 2010 among
FMC Finance B.V as borrower FMC Corporation

and FMC chemicals Netherlands B.V as guarantors
the lenders party thereto and Citibank International plc as agent

for the lenders

lO.3a Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Current Report on Form filed on August 13 2010

FMC Corporation Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors As Amended and Restated Effective February 20 2009

10/i Exhibit 10.4 to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Exhibit l0.4.a to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K

1O.4.a filed on February 23 2009
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Exhibit No Exhibit Description

Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Exhibit O.4.b to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K

0.4.b filed on February 23 2009

MC Corporation Salaried Employees Equivalent Retirement Plan as amended and restated eflctive as of January 2009

ifi 0.5 Exhibit to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 232009

FMC Corporation Salaried Employees Equivalent Retirement Plan Grantor irust as amended and restated effective as July 31 2001

10.6 Exhibit 106.a to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed on November 2001

FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan as adopted by the Company on December 17 2008

t1O.7 Exhibit 10.7 to 1MC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on Februany 23 2009

FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust as amended and restated effective as of September 28 2001

10.8 Exhibit 10.7.a to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 72001

First Amend -neni to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan rrt between Fidelity Management Trust Company

and FMC Corporation effective as of October 2003 Exhibit 10.15a to FMC oiorations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed

10.8.a on March 11 2004

Second Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan rust effective as ofJanuary 2004

Exhibit 10 2b to FMC Corporations Annual

fourth Amendment to IMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust between Fidelity Management Trust

Company ard FMC Corporation effective as of July 2005 Exhibit 10.8.d to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K

if 10.8.d filed on Fcbnuaty 23 2009

Fifth Amendment to FMC Corporation Non-Qualified Savings and Investment Plan Trust between Fidelity Management Trust Company

and FMC Corporation effective as of April 23 2008 Exhibit 10.8.e to FMC Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed

T10.8.c on February 23 2009

FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan as amended and restated through January 2009 Exhibit 10.9 to FMC

if 10.9 Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 23 2009

Employee Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed

t10.9a on May 20081

Form of Long_term Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock

I- I0.9b Plan Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 92004

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to the FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan

10.9c Exhibit 10.2 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 31 2006

form of Key Manager Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuant to the FMC Corporation Incentive Compensation and Stock Plan

0.9d Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 2004

FMC Corporation Executive Severance Plan as amended and restated effective as of January 2009 Exldbit 10.10 to FMC

10.10 Corporations Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 2009

FMC Corporation Executive Severance Grantor Trust Agreement dated July 31 2001 Exhibit 10.1 0.a to FMC Corporations Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q filed on November

Joint \Tennur Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc made as of April 29 1999 Exhibit 2.1 to Solutias Current Report

10.15 on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

First Amendment to Joint Venture Afireement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc effective as of December 29 1999

10.1 5.a Exhibit 2.11 to Solutias Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

Second Ansendrnent to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc effective as of February 2000 Exhibit

10.15.b 2.111 to Solurias Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

Third Amen Iment to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc effective as of March 31 000

10.15.c Exhibit 2.P to Solutias Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 27 2000

Fourth Arneidment to Joint Venture Agreement between FMC Corporation and Solutia Inc dated November 2005 Exhibit 10 to

lO.lS.d FMC Corpc rations Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 92005

Separation and Distribution Agreement by and between FMC Corporation and FMC Technologies Inc dated of May 31 2001

10.16 Exhibit 2.1 to Form S-i/A for FMC Technologies Inc Registration No 333-5 5920 filed on June 2001

Tax Sharing Agreement by and between FMC Corporation and FMC Technologies Inc dated of May 31 2001

10.17 Exhibit 10.1 to orm S-I/A for FMC Technologies Inc Registration No 333-55920 filed on June 2001

etter Areeasent dated October 23 2009 between FMC Corporation and Pierre Brondeau Exhibit 10.18 to FMC Corporations Annual

10.18 Report on Form 10-K filed on February 22 2010

Transition Agreement between William Walter and FMC Corporation dated June 2010 Exhibit 10.1 to FMC Corporations

10.19 Quarterly Rport on orm 0Q filed on August 2010

Executive Severance Agreement entered into as of December 31 2008 by and between FMC Corporation and Kim Foster

with attache schedule Exhibit 10 13 to FMC Cc
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Statement of Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

UsgigSdi
Consent of KPMG LLP

fbktsdv
Chief Financial Officer Certification

ch1ernfjtuitia1Reriorr
Chief Financial Officer Certification of Annual ReportnpiI

Incorporated by reference

Management contract or
compensatory plan or arrangement

PART

12

23.1

3i
31.2

32.1

32.2

1ol
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PART IV

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

FMC CORPORATION

Registrant

By Is KIM FOSTER

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date February 22 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this
report

has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of

the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

IS GRAHAM WOOD
Graham Wood

IS/U PF ER A1.OLA

Peter DAloia Dirajor pchrlLlr\ 22 201

IS PATRIC1 BLIFIl

Patricia Buffler Diucto 1-ebruan 22 2011

// CO11 GREER
Scott Greer Diucior cbrujr 22 201

/5/ DIRK KF\fPTHORF
Dirk Kempthorne Din c/cr 1bruarv 22 201

/5/ EDA ARD MOONLY
Edward Mooney /in c/al Fcbritar 22 201

IS PALl NORRIS

Paul Norris Jireci-or February 22 201

// ROBLR PU ASH

Robert Pallash Director February 22 201

iS FNRIQUI.J SOS1\

Enrique Sosa Director 1ebruar 22 2011

/S INCENT VOLPE JR

Vincent Volpe Jr Dirccto 1ebruarv 22 211

Vice President Controller PrincipalAccounting Officer February 22 2011
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Index of exhibits filed with Form 10-K of FMC corporation

for the Year Ended December 31 2010

Exhibit No Exhibit Description

12 Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21 FMC Corporation List of Significant Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of KPMC LU

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification

31 Chief Financial Officer Certification

32.1 Chief Executise Ofhccr Certification of Annual Report

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification of Annual Report

101 Interactive Data File

EXHIBIT 12 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges Unaudited

Year ended December 31

in Mi/lions Except Ratios 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Earnings

Income loss from continuing operations

before income ta\es
$350.5 $310.0 $471.9 $195.3 $220.2

Equi in earnings loss of affiliates 2.7 2.3 3.1 2.5 2.3

Interest expense
and amortization of debt discount

fees and expenses
39.5 27.2 32.9 37.5 42.0

Amortization of capitalized interest 3.9 3.7 4.1 3.9 3.9

Interest included in rental expense 6.3 6.3 5.3 5.0 4.8

TOTAL EARNINGS $397.5 $344.9 $511.1 $239.2 $268.6

Fixed charges

Interest expense
and amortization of debt discount

fees and expenses
$39.5 $27.2 $32.9 $37.5 $42.0

1nteret capitaliLed as part of fixed assets 7.S 3.8 5.7 .2 3.7

Jnteteot included in rental expense 6.3 6.3 5.3 5.0 4.8

TOTAL FIXED CHARGES $53.3 $37.3 $43.9 $46.7 $50.5

Ratio ofearnin.gs to fixed charges 7.5 11.6 5.1

caiu/sning nil ratio sarnis onsisr of income loss Jrom conninuit operations bejeor income taxes plus interist expense amortization expense
re/a red to dc/sr discounts fiss

and

speme amorieaision of apitalied interest intinst included in rental
expenses assumed to be onethird of

reizr and
Equity in earnings loss olaf/I/sates

Fised
hasgessonssst of

isrsrsst exps siss asnonlization of debt dssonnts fees and es-pen ses interest sapinaireed as parr off/reel assets and interest nc/tided in rental
expenses

EXHIBIT 21 Significant Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Name of Subsidiary State or Country of Incorporation

FMC Corporation the Registrant
Delaware

FM Agricultural Products International AG Switzerland

FMC Agtoquimica de Mexico S.A de CV Mexico

FMC BioPolvmer AS Norwa%

FMC BioPolymer UK imited United Kingdom

FMC Chemicals Netherlands BV Netherlands

FIVIC Chemical International AG Switzerland

1MC Chemicals Limited United Kingdom

FMC Chemical
S.p.r.I

Belgium

FMC Finance B.\ Netherlands

FMC Foret SA Spain

F.vlC India Private Limited India

FMC CORPORATION 2010 Form 10-K 83
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Name of Subsidiary State or Country of Incorporation

FMC International lrelnd

FMC Marine Colloids Phili apines Inc Philippines

FMC of Canada Limited Canada

FMC Qulmica do Brasil Liniitada Brazil

FMC Specialty Alkali Corpoiation Delaware

FMC Suzhou Crop Care CD Ltd China

FMC WPC Inc Wyoming

FMC Wyoming Corporation Delaware

Minera Del Altiplano SA Argentina

PT Bina Guna Kimia Indonesia

NOTE All subsidiaries listed are greater than 50 percent owned directly or indirectly by FMC Corporation as of December 31 2010 The names

of various active and inactive subsidiaries have been omitted Such subsidiaries considered in the aggregate as single subsidiary would not

constitute significant subs idiary

EXHIBIT 23.1

The Board of Directors

FMC Corporation

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements

on Form S-8 Nos 333-18383 333-69805 333-69714 and 333-

111456 and the Registration Statements on Form S-3 Nos 333-

165066 and 333-59543 oEFMC Corporation of our reports
dated

February 22 2011 relating to the consolidated balance sheets of FMC

Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the

related consolidated statements of income changes in equity cash flows

and comprehensive income for each of the
years

in the three-year period

ended December 31 2010 and the related financial statement schedule

and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of

December 31 2010 which reports appear in the December 31 2010

annual report on Form 10-K of FMC Corporation

Is KPMG LLP

Philadelphia Pennsylvania

February 22 2011

EXHIBIT 31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification

Pierre Brondeau certiFy that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of FMC
Corporation

Based on my knowledge this annual report does not contain any

untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in
light

of the circumstances

under which such sta ements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this annual
report

Based on my knowlelge the financial statements and other

financial information included in this annual report fairly

present
in all materiaL

respects
the financial condition results

of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in us annual report

The registrants other ertifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and mainlaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchan1e Act Rules 13a-1 5e and Sd- 15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-l5f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this annual
report

is being

prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting

or caused such internal control over financial reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the
reliability

of financial
reporting

and

the
preparation

of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure

controls and procedures and presented in this
report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this

report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this
report any change in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal
quarter

that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial
reporting

and
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The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based

on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the

design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

EXHIBIT 31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process
summarize and report

financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management

or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 22 2011

Is Pierre Brondeau

Pierre Brondeau

President and Chief Executive Officer

Kim Foster certify that

have reviewed this annual
report on Form 10-K of FMC

Corporation

Based on my knowledge this annual report does not contain any

untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in
light

of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with

respect to the period covered by this annual report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other

financial information included in this annual report fairly

present
in all material respects the financial condition results

of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this annual
report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for

establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures

as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5e and 5d-1 5e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-1 5f and 5d-1 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused

such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under

our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is

made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this annual report is being

prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting

or caused such internal control over financial reporting to

be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable

assurance regarding
the

reliability
of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure

controls and procedures
and presented in this

report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls

and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this

report
based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal

control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal
quarter

that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based

on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee

of the registrants board of directors or persons performing the

equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the

design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and
report

financial

information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management

or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 22 2011

Is Kim Foster

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
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PART IV

EXHIBIT 32.1 CEO Certification of Annual Report

Pierre Brondeau President and Chief Executive Officer of FMC the Company certify pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 18 U.S.C Seciion 1350 based on my knowledge that

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the
year

ended December 31 2010 the Report fuliy complies with the requirements

of Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated February 22 2011

/s Pierre Brondeau

Pierre Brondeau

President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 32.2 CFO Certification of Annual Report

Kim Foster Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of FMC the Company certify pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

OxleyAct of 2002 18 U.S.C Section 1350 based on my knowledge that

the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31 2010 the Report fully complies with the requirements

of Section 13a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents
in all material

respects
the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated February 22 2011

/s Kim Foster

Kim Foster

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer
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STOCKHOLDER DATA

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

FMC Corporations Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be

held on Tuesday April 26 2011 at 200 p.m ET at the Top

of the Tower 1717 Arch Street 50th Floor Philadelphia

PA 19103 Notice of the meeting together with proxy

materials will be mailed approximately five weeks prior

to the meeting to stockholders of record as of Tuesday

March 12011

Transfer Agent and Registrar of Stock

Wells Fargo Bank N.A
Shareowner Services

P.O Box 64854

St Paul MN 551 64-0854

or

161 Concord Exchange
South St Paul MN 55075-1139

Phone .800.468.9716

.651 .450.4064 local and outside the U.S

www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices

Stock Exchange Listing

New York Stock Exchange

Chicago Stock Exchange

Stock Exchange Symbol FMC

FMC was incorporated in Delaware in 1928

FMC is an active participant in the American Chemistry

Council and is in conformance with the requirements

of its Responsible Care Program FMC is certified for

the Responsible Care Management System RCMS
for our headquarters offices All of our sites located

in the United States are also in conformance with the

RCMS requirements For additional information on our

Responsible Care Program please go to www.fmc.com

FMC Avicel VigorOx OFFNOx EnProve LiquidSoda and

SLMP are trademarks and The Right Chemistry is service

mark of FMC Corporation or its subsidiaries

NON-GAAP RECONCILIATIONS

Earnings per share before restructuring and other income and charges free cash flow and return on invested capital are not measures

of financial performance under U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP and should not be considered in isolation from or

as substitutes for income from continuing operations net income or earnings per share determined in accordance with GAAP nor as

substitutes for measures of profitability performance or liquidity reported in accordance with GAAP The following charts reconcile Non

GAAP terms used in this report to the closest GAAP term All tables are unaudited and presented in millions except per share amounts

Income from continuing operations attributable to

FMC stockholders GAAP
Interest Expense net net of income tax

Corporate special charges income

Tax effect of corporate special charges income

Tax adjustments

ROIC numerator Non-GAAP

2-point average denominator

Debt

Total FMC Stockholder equity

2008 Actual 2009 Actual 2010 Actual

329.5 246.7 206.1

22.0 18.7 27.9

53.3 139.9 159.2

23.0 38.8 50.4

8.7 43.7 38.7

373.1 322.8 381.5

Dec-07 Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-10

545.2 623.6 643.9 637.9

1064.3 902.9 1076.4 1131.5

1609.5 1526.5 1720.3 1769.4

1744.91568.0 1623.4

23.8% 19.9% 21.9%

Reconciliation of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations GAAP to diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

before restructuring and other income and charges Non-GAAP

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations GAAP
Diluted restructuring and other income and charges per share

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations before

restructuring and other income and charges Non-GAAP

2008 2009 2010

4.35 3.37 2.82

0.28 0.78 2.02

4.63 4.15 4.84

Free cash flow of approximately $257 million for the year ended December31 2010 is the cash provided by operating activities GAAP excluding excess tax benefits from share-based

compensation IGAAP cash required by operating activities of discontinued operations GASP and cash required by investing activities GASP as presented in our Consolidated Statements of

Cash Flows of FMCs Form 10-K

ROIC denominator pt avg GAAP

ROIC using Non-GAAP numerator
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